
  
 

 

 

 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, April 26, 2021 

Observe live meeting (In-person, Online-Zoom or Call-in) 

 

 Approval of the Minutes from the April 08, 2021 Special Meeting of the Council 

 Approval of the Minutes from the April 08, 2021 Closed Session Meeting of theCouncil 

 Approval of the Minutes from the April 12, 2021 Regular Meeting of the Council 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

 Any Public Comments for the April 26th, 7:00 PM (ONLINE) Council Meeting are REQUIRED to be sent in advance 
BEFORE 6:30 PM by EMAIL to the Village Clerk (Vanessa Moritz, vmoritz@forestpark.net) 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 

 Fire Department March Report 
BILLS BY RESOLUTION: 

 Bills by Resolution 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of an Amendment to a Planned Unit Development (PUD) Agreement and 
Granting a Conditional Use Permit for an Amendment to a PUD Agreement for Farmington Foods in the Village, (PC 
2021-01:  7419, 7431, 7445 Franklin) 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Ordinance Temporarily Amending Hours of Sale and Delivery of Alcoholic Liquor Class A1, A7 and A8 Liquor Licensed 

Establishments in the Village 
2. Resolution Approving an agreement between the Village and Automobile Mechanics’ Local 701, IAM & AW 
3. Resolution Approving and Authorizing the Execution of a First Amendment to a Personnel Services Contract between 

the Village and Metro paramedic Services, Inc. 
4. Resolution Authorizing a Subrecipient Agreement between the Village and the County of Cook for the 2020 

Community Development Block Grant Program Year Agreement (14th Street - Circle Avenue to Harlem Avenue 
Resurfacing Project) 

5. Resolution Approving the Intergovernmental Agreement between the Village and the Metropolitan Water 
Reclamation District of Greater Chicago for the Permeable Paver Parking Lot Project (510 DESPLAINES AVENUE) 

6. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Lite Software Maintenance Agreement with American Computer and 
Communication for the Tele Ticket Lite J.U.L.I.E Software for the Village. 

7. Resolution Authorizing the Award of the Contract for the 2020 Watermain Replacement and Resurfacing Project 
for the Village (7700 Block Monroe and 400-600 Blocks Thomas) 

8. Mayor’s Proclamation to celebrate “Arbor Day” and support the efforts to protect trees and woodlands within 
the Village of Forest Park 

9. Motion to Approve the Community Center and Park District 50/50 Raffle Permit Application to Celebrate the Village 
of Forest Park on June 26th, 5pm-9pm at the Park District. 

10. Motion to Reappoint Steve Rummel to fill a vacancy on the Police Pension Board 
 

 
ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

Village Council April 26, 2021 In-Person and Zoom Meeting at 7PM 

*Join Meeting ONLINE or CALL-IN*-Observe live ZOOM meeting https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85299115975 

or Call-in (+1 312 626 6799, Webinar ID: 852 9911 5975) 

 

*Public COMMENT*-Required to be sent in advance via email to Vanessa Moritz,vmoritz@forestpark.net before 6:30PM. 

mailto:vmoritz@forestpark.net
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85299115975
mailto:vmoritz@forestpark.net


ADJOURNMENT 



1  

THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON THURSDAY AFTERNOON, APRIL 8, 2021 AT 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call at 4:18 p.m. 
Also in attendance were Village Clerk, Vanessa Moritz and Village Resident Bridget Lane. All 
participants were attending remotely via Zoom audio/video meeting platform. Mayor Hoskins 
announced that the purpose of the special meeting is to adjourn into closed session to discuss the 
results of candidate interviews for Village Administrator. 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

None 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by Commissioner Byrnes to adjourn into closed 
session to consider the employment, appointment, compensation, discipline or termination of specific 
employees of the public body. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 4:20 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



 

 

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, APRIL 12, 2021 
 
 

Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:00 p.m. 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call. Mayor 
Hoskins announced that all members are attending remotely via video teleconference and he is 
present in the Village Hall due to Social Distancing regulations resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by Commissioner Voogd that the minutes from 
the March 20, 2021, Special Meeting of the Village Council be approved without reading as each 
member has received a copy thereof. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES:       None 
ABSENT:    None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by Commissioner Voogd that the minutes from 
the March 20, 2021, Closed Session Meeting of the Village Council be approved without reading as 
each member has received a copy thereof. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES:       None 
ABSENT:    None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by Commissioner Voogd that the minutes from 
the March 22, 2021, Regular Meeting of the Village Council be approved without reading as each 
member has received a copy thereof. 



2  

 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES:       None 
ABSENT:    None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by Commissioner Byrnes that the minutes from 
the March 27, 2021, Special Meeting of the Village Council be approved without reading as each 
member has received a copy thereof. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES:       None 
ABSENT:    None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by Commissioner Byrnes that the minutes from 
the March 27, 2021, Closed Session Meeting of the Village Council be approved without reading as 
each member has received a copy thereof. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES:       None 
ABSENT:    None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Ms. Nicola Hale expressed her concerns about the expansion of Farmington Foods and their history 
of non-compliance with noise and operational restrictions. 

 

Mr. Thomas Kovac expressed his concerns about the expansion of Farmington Foods and urged 
the Village Council to reject the current proposal and rescind the PUD. 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS: 
 

None 



3  

 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 

None 

 
 

APPROVAL OF BILLS: 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Novak and seconded by 
Commissioner Byrnes that the Resolution for the payment of 
bills be adopted. The Commissioner of Accounts and Finance 
has reviewed the bills as applicable to each department and 
found the aggregate amounts to be correct and recommends 
payment when funds are available. The bills totaled 
$434,383.91. 

 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

R-27-21 
RESOLUTION FOR 

PAYMENT OF BILLS IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $434,383.91 

APPROVED 

 
 

None 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Novak that the Ordinance authorizing the 
execution of an amendment to a Planned Unit Development 
agreement and granting a conditional use permit for 
Farmington Foods, in the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, 
Illinois re: PC 2021-01: 7419, 7431, 7445 Franklin Street be 
adopted.  Mr. Peter Friedman, attorney for the petitioner and 
Mr. Albert La Valle, representative of the petitioner commented 
on the negotiated restrictions, stating that they could agree to 
all but 3 of the 18 additional requirements. 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd to continue the Ordinance to the next 
Village Council meeting on April 26, 2021, in order to allow the 
parties to come to a mutually agreeable conclusion. 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING 
AMENDMENT TO 

FARMINGTON FOODS 
PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT 
CONTINUED TO 
APRIL 26, 2021 



4  

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution appointing Salvatore 
Stella as the Director of Public Works for the Village of Forest 
Park, Illinois be adopted.  Both Commissioners Nero and 
Voogd expressed their excitement at the appointment and their 
confidence in Sal’s abilities, passion and energy. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Novak and seconded by 
Commissioner Byrnes that the Resolution to approve and 
authorize the execution of a COVID-19 Support Services 
Reimbursement Agreement by and between the Department of 
Emergency Management and Regional Security of the County 
of Cook and the Village of Forest Park for the reimbursement 
of eligible COVID-19 expenses be adopted. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
It was moved by Commissioner Byrnes and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero to direct the Forest Park Board of Fire and 
Police Commissioners to appoint three candidates from its 
current Probationary Police Officers Eligibility List to fill 
vacancies. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

R-28-21 
RESOLUTION APPOINTING 

SALVATORE STELLA AS 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
R-29-21 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 
REIMBURSEMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH COOK 
COUNTY FOR COVID-19 

VACCINATION SITE 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF FIRE AND 

POLICE COMMISSIONERS 
DIRECTED TO APPOINT 
THREE PROBATIONARY 

POLICE OFFICERS 
APPROVED BY MOTION 



5  

It was moved by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Voogd to approve the request from Forest Park 
School District 91 to display banners promoting their third 
annual Kindness Week event. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the request from Joanne Despotes, of 
Hunger Walkathon West, to display banners promoting the 
CROP Hunger Walk be approved. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Voogd and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the request from the Forest Park 
Public Library to use village property for programming be 
approved. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Novak, Byrnes, Nero, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

DISTRICT 91 BANNER 
REQUEST FOR KINDNESS 

WEEK EVENT 
APPROVED BY MOTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CROP HUNGER WALK 

BANNER REQUEST 
APPROVED BY MOTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
FOREST PARK LIBRARY 

REQUEST TO USE 
VILLAGE PROPERTY FOR 

PROGRAMMING 
APPROVED BY MOTION 

 
 

 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
 

None 

 
 

COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS: 
 

Commissioners Byrnes and Voogd requested that they receive the agenda and supporting documents 
in a more timely manner. They expressed their dissatisfaction with receiving this meeting’s documents 



6 
 

at 10:30 p.m. on Friday. 



7  

Mayor Hoskins shared a thank you letter from a resident with the Commissioners. In addition, the mayor 
reported that the Altenheim Cafeteria building is scheduled to begin demolition on Wednesday. The 
Chapel building demolition is scheduled to begin on April 26th. Mayor Hoskins invited the other elected 
officials and the Department Heads to come to the Altenheim to commemorate the event by taking a 
photograph on April 26th. Burke Engineering will provide the photographer. Last, the mayor reported 
that the Police Department is using body cameras on a trial basis. He expressed his pleasure to see the 
cameras in use, adding that they will supplement the squad car dashboard cameras. 

 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero moved and Commissioner 
Byrnes seconded to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mayor Hoskins declared the meeting adjourned at 8:36 P.M. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

Vanessa Moritz 
Village Clerk 



 

March 2021 Monthly Report 
 
 

Calls 

The Fire Department responded to 334 calls in the month of March. That is an average of 10.77 

calls per day for the month. 74% of the calls were for EMS. 26% were for fire/service calls. 

 

 
Major Incidents 

 
 

The Forest Park Fire Department responded for two major incidents during the month of March. 

1) Assist River Forest with a structure fire at 7964 Chicago. 

2) Responded to a wrong way driver crash on eastbound I-290 that resulted in both cars 

catching fire with two fatalities 

Total Calls 334 
 
 
 

87 
 
 
 

 
247 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EMS Fire/Service 



 

March 2021 Monthly Report 

Fire 7964 Chicago River Forest 



 

March 2021 Monthly Report 

Fire 7964 Chicago River Forest 



 

March 2021 Monthly Report 

 
Department Happenings-Mitch Kempka was sworn in as the newest 

probationary firefighter. 



 

March 2021 Monthly Report 

Swearing in of Kempka 



 

March 2021 Monthly Report 
 
 
 

 
 

Inspections- For the month March we conducted 17 commercial inspections. 10 violations 

were found and 2 violations were corrected. We conducted 17 residential inspections with 4 

violations found and 3 violations corrected. 1 sprinkler/alarm system acceptance test witnessed. 

 

 
Training 

Training for the month of March consisted of 
 

• Monthly EMS  3.5 hours/Shift 

• New Firefighter training 

• New Officer Training 

• New Driver training 
 
 
 

Child Safety Seat Installations - 0 

 
Community Involvement- Due to Covid-19 the Fire Department has stopped 

community contact as much as possible. 

Inspections 

17 17 

Commercial Residential 



 

R E S O L U T I O N No. 
 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 

that we dispense with the reading of the individual bills inasmuch as each department head has approved 

and signed bills in the following aggregate amount for their respective departments. 

 
Refunds and Allocations $ 12,864.78 

Public Affairs $ 27,555.02 

Police Department $ 29,317.41 

Community Center $ 7.60 

Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) $ 162,767.83 

Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) $ 1,028.30 

Department of Health & Safety $ 10,939.95 

Street Department $ 82,988.38 

Public Property $ 41,998.23 

Seizure $ 2,380.84 

Federal Customs $ 16,839.31 

TIF $ 6,450.31 

VIP $ 290.00 

Water Department $ 233,101.65 

 

TOTAL $ 628,529.61 

 

 

 

 

 
ADOPTED BY THE Council of the Village of Forest Park this 26th Day of April, 2021.  

 
Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

 

 

 

Rory Hoskins, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

100-00-000-4111-210 Forest Park Public Library 04/09/2021 11,153.60 

100-00-000-4230-135 Paul Nijensohn 04/06/2021 300.00 

100-00-000-4450-121 Passport Labs Inc 03/31/2021 19.61 

100-00-000-4450-130 Passport Labs Inc 03/31/2021 1,332.00 

100-00-000-4450-140 Passport Labs Inc 03/31/2021 59.57 
 

Refunds and Allocations 12,864.78 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

100-10-101-6120-200 34  Publishing Inc 04/12/2021 400.00 

100-10-101-6120-200 Forest Printing 04/15/2021 1,810.09 

100-10-101-6120-305 Darien Marion-Burton 04/06/2021 375.00 

100-10-101-6120-305 Growing Community Media NFP 02/03/2021 325.00 

100-10-101-6150-202 Health Endeavors SC 03/12/2021 745.00 

100-10-101-6150-210 Metro Reporting Services LTD 04/09/2021 189.00 

100-10-101-6150-210 Metro Reporting Services LTD 04/16/2021 189.00 

100-10-101-6150-220 Shavon Wesley 04/14/2021 412.50 

100-11-111-6100-120 Techno Consulting Inc 04/01/2021 3,500.00 

100-11-111-6110-105 Techno Consulting Inc 04/01/2021 5,325.00 

100-11-111-6110-105 Techno Consulting Inc 04/15/2021 750.00 

100-11-111-6110-105 Techno Consulting Inc 04/15/2021 1,500.00 

100-11-111-6110-110 ITsavvy LLC 12/18/2020 7,470.00 

100-11-111-6110-110 Municipal Systems LLC 03/31/2021 2,500.00 

100-11-111-6110-110 Techno Consulting Inc 04/01/2021 750.00 

100-11-111-6110-110 Techno Consulting Inc 04/01/2021 550.00 

100-11-111-6110-110 Techno Consulting Inc 04/01/2021 256.06 

100-11-111-6110-110 Techno Consulting Inc 04/15/2021 508.37 
 

Public Affairs 27,555.02 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

100-12-121-6100-202 Secretary of State Drivers 04/06/2021 10.00 

100-12-121-6145-305 Metro Mortuary Transport 04/02/2021 2,080.00 

100-12-121-6145-306 Animal Care League 01/28/2020 425.00 

100-12-121-6145-306 Animal Care League 02/24/2020 400.00 

100-12-121-6145-306 Animal Care League 03/26/2020 50.00 

100-12-121-6145-306 Animal Care League 12/04/2020 175.00 

100-12-123-6145-202 McDonalds 04/06/2021 177.41 

100-12-125-6145-204 Municipal Systems LLC 03/31/2021 26,000.00 
 

Police Department 29,317.41 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

100-15-154-6170-114 BLUE CAB CO. 03/19/2021 4.00 

100-15-154-6170-114 BLUE CAB CO. 03/24/2021 3.60 

 
Community Center 

 
7.60 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

100-00-000-1201-001 Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 12/08/2020 75,028.00 

100-00-000-1201-001 Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 12/08/2020 54,928.00 

100-21-211-6110-110 Pitney Bowes INC 03/30/2021 708.50 

100-21-211-6120-300 Elmhurst Occupational Health 03/31/2021 120.00 

100-21-211-6130-250 Judith Green 04/14/2021 67.14 

100-21-211-6140-102 United States Postal Service 04/13/2021 1,397.81 

100-21-211-6140-104 Office 8 04/05/2021 244.93 

100-21-211-6140-104 Quill 02/03/2021 (10.61) 

100-21-211-6140-104 Quill 03/17/2021 80.53 

100-21-211-6140-104 Quill 03/25/2021 10.99 

100-21-211-6140-104 Quill 03/25/2021 22.90 

100-21-211-6140-104 Quill 03/25/2021 94.45 

100-21-211-6140-140 Quill 03/17/2021 24.33 

100-21-211-6140-140 Quill 03/25/2021 56.57 

100-21-211-6150-112 Government Finance Officers Assoc. 03/30/2021 190.00 

100-21-211-6150-150 AT&T 04/01/2021 596.03 

100-21-211-6150-150 AT&T LONG DISTANCE 04/04/2021 1.20 

100-21-211-6160-001 Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 04/07/2020 141.84 

100-21-211-6160-001 Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 04/07/2020 494.50 

100-21-211-6160-001 Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 04/07/2020 2,772.45 

100-21-211-6160-001 Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 04/07/2020 3,155.80 

100-21-211-6160-001 Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 04/07/2020 473.00 

100-21-211-6160-001 Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 04/07/2020 2,337.00 

100-21-211-6191-001 POLICE PENSION FUND 04/09/2021 3,752.90 

100-21-211-6191-002 Firefighters Pension Fund 04/09/2021 4,086.86 

100-22-221-6320-310 Centurion Plumbing Company 04/05/2021 11,992.71 

 
Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 

 
162,767.83 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

100-30-301-6140-200 State Chemical Industrial Products 12/22/2020 263.22 

100-30-301-7000-040 SCHAUERS HARDWARE 03/31/2021 11.69 

100-30-301-7000-040 Witmer Public Safety Group 03/31/2021 198.37 

100-30-303-6100-161 Paramedic Services of Illinois 04/05/2021 14.55 

100-30-303-6145-300 EMSAR Inc. 04/06/2021 489.66 

100-30-303-6145-300 Linde Gas North America LLC 03/31/2021 50.81 
 

Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 1,028.30 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

100-40-401-5000-017 AMS Electric Inc 03/11/2021 1,575.00 

100-40-401-5000-017 Raymond Traynor 04/12/2021 1,215.00 

100-40-401-6140-130 Municipal Systems LLC 03/31/2021 3,600.00 

100-40-402-6100-115 Muse Community + Design 03/31/2021 3,042.50 

100-40-402-6150-240 Metro Reporting Services LTD 01/18/2021 307.45 

100-40-403-6140-206 Smithereen Pest Mgmt Services 04/01/2021 1,200.00 
 

Department of Health & Safety 10,939.95 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

100-50-502-6140-202 SCHAUERS HARDWARE 03/31/2021 531.84 

100-50-502-6185-108 Paulsons Rex Paint 03/31/2021 103.62 

100-50-502-6185-112 Republic Services #551 03/15/2021 373.98 

100-50-502-6185-501 Republic Services #551 03/15/2021 36,206.48 

100-50-502-6185-502 Republic Services #551 03/15/2021 25,478.26 

100-50-502-6185-503 Republic Services #551 03/15/2021 3,440.64 

100-50-502-6185-505 West Cook County Solid Waste 03/31/2021 16,853.56 
 

Street Department 82,988.38 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

100-55-551-6120-300 Steve Knysch 04/06/2021 60.00 

100-55-553-6180-150 Lyons Pinner Electric Co 03/19/2021 350.78 

100-55-553-6180-150 Lyons Pinner Electric Co 03/28/2021 3,497.00 

100-55-553-6180-150 Lyons Pinner Electric Co 03/28/2021 3,553.27 

100-55-553-6180-150 Lyons Pinner Electric Co 03/28/2021 365.00 

100-55-553-6180-150 Lyons Pinner Electric Co 03/28/2021 1,987.86 

100-55-553-6180-150 Lyons Pinner Electric Co 03/28/2021 477.63 

100-55-553-6180-150 Lyons Pinner Electric Co 03/28/2021 389.66 

100-55-553-6180-150 Lyons Pinner Electric Co 03/28/2021 1,348.90 

100-55-553-6180-160 AEP Energy 03/25/2021 3,234.92 

100-55-553-6180-160 Com Ed 03/01/2021 543.10 

100-55-553-6180-160 Com Ed 03/01/2021 172.20 

100-55-553-6180-160 Com Ed 03/16/2021 164.91 

100-55-553-6180-160 Com Ed 03/26/2021 864.83 

100-55-553-6180-160 Com Ed 04/14/2021 346.90 

100-55-555-6180-100 Brill Hygienic Products 03/26/2021 51.57 

100-55-555-6180-100 Quill 03/17/2021 250.26 

100-55-555-6180-100 Quill 03/25/2021 141.97 

100-55-555-6180-110 Comcast 04/02/2021 50.40 

100-55-555-6180-130 Comcast 04/01/2021 374.17 

100-55-555-6180-140 Comcast 03/22/2021 170.59 

100-55-555-6180-140 Comcast 03/28/2021 2.10 

100-55-555-6180-140 Case Lots Inc 04/01/2021 697.50 

100-55-570-6155-101 Mohr Oil Company 03/29/2021 5,655.02 

100-55-570-6155-101 Mohr Oil Company 03/29/2021 9,908.15 

100-55-570-6155-106 Atlas Bobcat LLC 03/23/2021 412.05 

100-55-570-6155-106 Factory Motor Parts Co 03/24/2021 68.46 

100-55-570-6155-106 Factory Motor Parts Co 03/31/2021 137.88 

100-55-570-6155-106 Praxair Distribution INC 03/23/2021 168.73 

100-55-570-6155-112 BC Body Craft Inc 03/05/2021 4,415.82 

100-55-570-6155-112 Commercial Tire Service 03/26/2021 321.50 

100-55-570-6155-112 Guzz Design 03/25/2021 250.00 

100-55-585-6180-160 Com Ed 03/29/2021 61.10 

100-55-585-6180-322 U.S.ARBOR PRODUCTS INC 03/30/2021 1,504.00 
 

Public Property 41,998.23 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

230-00-000-6900-230 J.G. UNIFORMS INC 03/24/2021 175.00 

230-00-000-6900-230 Nick Petrovic 04/10/2021 75.00 

230-00-000-6900-230 R.E. Walsh & Associates Inc 04/01/2021 1,812.50 

230-00-000-6900-230 Techno Consulting Inc 04/15/2021 318.34 

 
Seizure 

 
2,380.84 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

232-00-000-6900-232 Comcast 03/22/2021 142.60 

232-00-000-6900-232 C.G.Professional Services Inc 04/06/2021 336.20 

232-00-000-6900-232 C.G.Professional Services Inc 04/06/2021 529.00 

232-00-000-6900-232 C.G.Professional Services Inc 04/06/2021 336.20 

232-00-000-6900-232 CAPERS 04/01/2021 13,000.00 

232-00-000-6900-232 CellTech LLC 03/30/2021 1,000.00 

232-00-000-6900-232 ITsavvy LLC 02/04/2021 1,085.31 

232-00-000-6900-232 Motorola Solutions StarCom21 Network 04/01/2021 110.00 

232-00-000-6900-232 Techno Consulting Inc 04/01/2021 300.00 
 

Federal Customs 16,839.31 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

301-00-000-6100-115 Kane McKenna and Assoc 03/31/2021 350.00 

302-00-000-6100-115 Kane McKenna and Assoc 03/31/2021 350.00 

304-00-000-6100-115 Kane McKenna and Assoc 03/31/2021 350.00 

304-00-000-6185-700 S & S Electric Service Inc 03/27/2021 5,050.31 

309-00-000-6100-115 Kane McKenna and Assoc 03/31/2021 350.00 

 
TIF 

 
6,450.31 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

312-00-000-7000-312 K-Five 03/26/2021 145.00 

312-00-000-7000-312 K-Five 04/01/2021 145.00 

 
VIP 

 
290.00 



 

 
 

 
 

Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount 

501-80-800-6140-102 Suburban Mailing Services Inc 04/01/2021 1,957.74 

501-80-800-6145-100 Sal Stella 04/07/2021 300.00 

501-80-800-6150-154 Com Ed 03/01/2021 146.25 

501-80-800-6150-154 Com Ed 03/01/2021 22.92 

501-80-800-6150-154 Com Ed 03/16/2021 37.24 

501-80-800-6150-154 Com Ed 03/31/2021 39.59 

501-80-800-6150-154 Constellation Energy Services Inc 03/30/2021 3,002.05 

501-80-800-6150-154 Constellation Energy Services Inc 03/31/2021 350.47 

501-80-800-6800-100 City of Chicago 04/09/2021 191,806.62 

501-80-800-6800-111 Suburban Laboratories Inc 06/30/2020 187.50 

501-80-800-6800-150 Clear View 04/05/2021 4,992.00 

501-80-800-6800-151 Centurion Plumbing Company 04/05/2021 30,152.27 

501-80-800-6800-176 Core & Main LP 03/23/2021 107.00 
 

Water Department 233,101.65 



 

1 

RIDGELAND 
ASSOCIATES 
INC. 
ARCHITECTS 
DESIGNERS 
PLANNERS 

1 Riverside Rd. 

Riverside 

Illinois 60546 

708.435.0300 

708.435.0305 fax 
www.ridgelandassociates.com 

 
 

 

 

TYPICAL  OPAQUE 

WROUGHT IRON METAL FENCING 

 

 

 

 
 

SECTION VIEW 

ELEVATION VIEW 

 

TYPICAL 
  WROUGHT IRON FENCE 

 

 

 

 

 
PROFESSIONAL DESIGN FIRM 

REGISTRATION No. #184-002595 

 

         NTS  AS2.0        1/2" = 1'-0" AS2.0   EXPIRATION  DATE: 11/30/2022 

 

SHOWN W/ OPAQUE WD PANELING ACTUAL FENCE SYSTEM TO BE VERIFIED 

 

 

 

 
 

3 

 
20 

 

18 

 
4 

 
 
 

13 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

BUILDING 

 
 

10 

 

 

 

EXISTING 

1-STORY MASONRY 

BUILDING 

 

 

 

2 1 

6 

11 

      10 T 

 
2 

7
 

 

 
EXISTING 

BUILDING 

WEST PARKING 
X CONC 

PAD 

30 29 
 

9 8 7 6 

 
5 4 3 

 

 

 

 
EXISTING 

1-STORY MASONRY 

 
28 27 26 25 24 

5 

 
 

16 15 14 

7 

 
 

13 12 11 10 

 

BUILDING EAST PARKING 

7 

EXISTING 

BUILDING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Revisions 

 

 
23 22 21 20 19 18 17 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

       6            3      Drawing Date 
02/22/21

 

 

                   1 
(ABOVE) SIM. 

2 1 

U
S
D

A
 

G
U

E
ST

 

G
U

E
ST

 

G
U

E
ST

 

G
U

E
ST

 

R
ES

ER
V

E
D

 

R
ES

ER
V

E
D

 

F
A

R
M

IN
G

TO
N

 F
O

O
D

S
 

FE
N

C
E
 P

LA
N

 

7
4

1
9

 W
. 
F
ra

n
k
lin

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 F

o
re

st
 P

a
rk

, 
Ill

in
o

is
 6

0
1
3
0
 

http://www.ridgelandassociates.com/


 

(ABOVE) 

SIM.

 

Project Number 

20112
 

 

' 1 
8 6 

0 ' ' 32' 

4 

48' 
 

 
0 32" 64" 10'-8" 21'- 

4" 

32' 
 

 
0  2'  4' 8' 16' 24' 0 



 

N 

S2.0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
3' 6' 12' 18' 0  1'  2' 4' 8' 

 

12' 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
0  6"  1' 2' 4' 6' 0  4"  8" 16" 32" 

 

4' 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
0   3" 6" 

 

1' 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2' 3' 0   2" 4" 

 

8" 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
16" 2' 0  1"  2" 4" 8" 

 

1' 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
LINEAR 

 

This  document  is  an instrument of 

service and is  the  sole  property   

of   Ridgeland Associates, Inc. I t  m 

a y no t b e co p i e d , r e p r o d uce 

d , a l t e r ed or  reused  in  whole 

or  in part  on   any   other pr o j e 

c t w i t h o u t e x p r e s s e d  w r i t t e 

n  c o n s e n t f r o m    R i d g e l a 

n d A s s o c i a t e s ,           I n c  . 

O 
SRheet Name 

T  FARMINGT 
HON FOODS 

EXISTING 
CONDITION 
S SITE PLAN 

 

Shee

A
t Number 

GRAPHIC BAR 
SCALES 

 
1/16" = 1'-0" 3/32" = 1'-0" 1/8" = 1'-0" 3/16" = 1'-0" 1/4" = 1'-0" 1/2" = 1'-0" 3/4" = 1'-0" 1" = 1'-0" 

 

 
 

1 1/2" = 1'-0" 3" = 1'-0" 2020 Ridgeland Associates, Inc. 

 
 

Recyclabl 



 

Village of Forest Park 

Memorandum 

 
TO: Village Council 

 

FROM: Steve Glinke, Director- Building, Planning, & Zoning 

DATE: April 22, 2021 

RE: PC2021-01: 7419 W. Franklin Street 
 

At the April 12, 2021 meeting of the Village Council, the applicant and the Village Council agreed to 

continue the vote on this matter to the April 26, 2021 meeting of the Village Council so that staff and 

the applicant could come to agreement on a few remaining items. Village staff and the applicant have 

worked collaboratively during that time and are in agreement on the revised conditions of approval 

included herein. Staff has a better understanding of operational needs as they relate to on-site 

circulation of trucks and are recommending the conditions as presented particularly as they relate to 

Conditions #1, #4, and #5. The applicant has agreed with staff’s recommendation for Condition #12 

regarding open fencing near entrances. The changes are highlighted for your review. 



 

THIS DOCUMENT 
PREPARED BY AND AFTER 
RECORDING RETURN TO: 

 
Nicholas S. Peppers 
Storino, Ramello & Durkin 

9501 West Devon Ave. 8th Fl. 
Rosemont, IL 60018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Above Space For Recorder’s Use Only 

 
 
 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

AND 

FRANKLIN CONSOLIDATED, LLC 

 

 
DATED AS OF  , 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SRD980629.4 #72138508_v1# 



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
AND 

FRANKLIN CONSOLIDATED, LLC 
 

THIS IS A FIRST AMENDMENT TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT  AGREEMENT 
(“First Amendment”), dated  as of  , 2021 (“Effective Date”), to  a Planned 
Unit Development Agreement (“Development Agreement”), dated December 14, 2015, by and 
between the VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, an Illinois municipal corporation (“Village”) and 
FRANKLIN CONSOLIDATED, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company and successor to Franklin 
Investors, LLC (“Company”). 

 

IN CONSIDERATION OF the recitals and the mutual covenants and Agreements set forth 

in this First Amendment, the Village and the Company agree as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. RECITALS. 
 

A. As of the Effective Date of this First Amendment, the Company is the owner of 
record of the property located at 7419, 7431, and 7445 Franklin Street, Forest Park, Illinois 
(“Subject Property”), which Property is legally described in Exhibit A attached to and, by this 
reference, made a part of this First Amendment. 

 

B. On or about December 14, 2015, the Village adopted Ordinance No. O-35-15, 
granting the Company a conditional use permit for a planned unit development, approving a 
preliminary and final plat of subdivision, and authorizing the execution of the Development 
Agreement (“PUD Ordinance”). 

 

C. Pursuant to the Development Agreement, the Company has the right to develop 
and use the Subject Property in accordance with the PUD Ordinance and the “Approved Plans,” 
as defined in Section 3 of the Development Agreement (“Approved Plans”). 

 

D. Pursuant to Section 9-6-8 of the Village Zoning Regulations (Title 9 of the Forest 
Park Village Code (“Zoning Regulations”), the PUD Ordinance, and Section 3 of the 
Development Agreement, the Company has requested an amendment to the PUD Ordinance and 
the Development Agreement to allow for the construction of an approximately 4,333 square foot 
addition with a 753 square foot rooftop deck on the eastern portion of the Subject Property 
commonly known as 7149 Franklin Street (“Proposed Addition”), as depicted on plans and 
drawings attached to this First Amendment as Exhibit B (“Revised Plans”). 

 

E. On April 1226, 2021, the Council of the Village of Forest Park adopted Ordinance 
No. O- -21, amending the PUD Ordinance to authorize the Proposed Addition subject to certain 
conditions, and approving and authorizing execution of this First Amendment (“PUD Amendment 
Ordinance”). 

 

F. The Village and the Company now desire to amend the Development Agreement, 
in accordance with Section 3 of the Agreement, to authorize the Proposed Addition in accordance 
with the PUD Amendment Ordinance and the conditions set forth in this First Amendment. 

 
 

 

1 
#72138508_v1SRD980629.4 



SRD980629.4 2  

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS; RULES OF CONSTRUCTION. 
 

A. Definitions. All capitalized words and phrases used throughout this First 
Amendment have the meanings set forth in the various provisions of this First Amendment. If a 
word or phrase is not specifically defined in this First Amendment, it has the same meaning as in 
the Development Agreement. 

 

B. Rules of Construction. Except as specifically provided in this First Amendment, 
all terms, provisions and requirements contained in the Development Agreement remain 
unchanged and in full force and effect. In the event of a conflict between the text of the 
Development Agreement and the text of this First Amendment, the text of this First Amendment 
controls. 

 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. 
 

A. Amendment of Approved Plans. Pursuant to Section 3 of the Development 
Agreement, the Approved Plans are amended to include the Revised Plans. To the 
extent of any conflict between the Revised Plans and the Approved Plans 
approved as part of the Development Agreement, the Revised Plans attached to 
this First Amendment will control. 

 

a. Application for Zoning Action 
b. Project Narrative (“Planned Development Proposed Addition,” 6 pages, revised 

December 24,2020) 
c. Map of Existing Zoning Districts (undated) 
d. Plat of Subdivision (3 pages, dated November 13, 2015) 
e. Alta/ACSM Land Title Survey (2 pages, dated November 14, 2016) 
f. Traffic Planning Study (22 pages, dated January 5, 2021, by Gewalt 

Hamilton Associates) 
g. Proposed Elevations (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 
h. First Floor Plan (dated December 11, 2020) 
i. Second Floor Plan (dated December 11, 2020) 
j. Proposed Site Plan (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 
k. Existing 

Conditions Site Plan (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 
l. Roof Deck Graphic Section View SK4.0 (dated February 11, 2021, 

by Ridgeland Associates) 
m. Truck Operations Plan (undated, by Gewalt Hamilton Associates) 
n. Fence Plan (dated March 26, 2021, by Ridgeland Associates) 

 
B. Additional Requirements. Section 10, entitled “Additional Requirements,” of the 

Development Agreement, is hereby amended to add the following new requirements: 
 

1. Except for deliveries, the on-site truck relocation of Farmington transports will be 
prohibited between the 7419 building and the two eastern dock doors of the 7431 
building buildings on the Subject Property between from 10:00 p.m. andto 56:00 a.m. 
shall not exceed six transports (transports are defined as a one-way trip). Unless 
mandated by OSHSA, Federal or State of Illinois law, Farmington transports 
between buildings on the Subject Property will not use back up beepers from 10:00 



SRD980629.4 3  

p.m. and 5:00 a.m. and will instead use truck back up safety lights. 
2. The applicant shall install new directional off-site and on-site signage for truck 

movements as provided in the Truck Operations Plan and subject to final review and 
approval by the Village Engineer and the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

3. Trucks are required to continue to enter and exit from the west except when using 
loading docks at the southeast corner of the Subject Property. 

4. Other than trucks of standard delivery services such as UPS, Federal Express, and 
Amazon, trucks delivering materials to the Company will not be permitted toshall not 
park nor idle between 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. on either side of the Franklin Street 
and Circle Avenue frontages of the Subject Property. 

5. No At no time shall truck refrigerator units are to be used at the western-facing 
loading docks at the southeast corner of the Subject Property between the hours of 
10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. 

6. No cooking is to take place within the 7419 building, including the proposed addition 
and in no event shall food processing operations be expanded into the connected 
garage structure, without an amendment to the Original PUD Ordinance and PUD 
Agreement, as amended. 

7. The hours and operation/occupancy for the roof deck shall be limited to 6:00 a.m. to 
11:00 p.m. 

8. The roof deck is limited to 753 square feet in size and shall be in substantial 
conformance with the Project Plans. 

9. Roof deck lighting shall be “down lighting” subject to final review and approval by 
the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

10. The final material of the 6’ screen of the roof deck will be as depicted in the Roof 
Deck Graphic Section View SK 4.0, subject to review and approval by the Director 
of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

11. Landscaping per the original PUD that has died or is depleted will be replaced before 
the issuance of a final Certificate of Occupancy, subject to seasonal planting 
restrictions and approval of the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

12. The applicant will remove the current chain link fence/barbed wire fence and replace 
it with a combination of wrought-iron like open fence and wrought-iron like with 
infilled synthetic slats, as depicted in the Proposed Fence Plan, along the southern 
perimeter of the Subject Property. The fence materials will provide visual and noise 
screening for the portions of the property that are beyond fifteen (15) feet from the 
west and center entrances to the Subject Property. No trucks shall be permitted to 
park on the Subject Property adjacent to the open areas of the fence along Franklin. 
The Company shall install traffic control warning signs at the entrances, to control 
both truck ingress and egress and warning pedestrians. The final fence to be  
constructed is subject to final review and approval by the Director of Building, 
Planning, and Zoning for compliance with the Proposed Fence Plan. 

13. The applicant will identify a “Community Contact Representative” who will be 
primarily responsible for monitoring and promptly responding to messages received. 
The name, phone number, and email of a specific person shall be provided to the 
Director of Building, Planning & Zoning and listed on the company website. 
Additionally, a 24-hour phone number shall be prominently listed on the company’s 
website. 

14. A construction schedule shall be submitted prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
15. All construction shall comply with the Building Code of the Village of Forest Park, 

with final plans subject to review and approval by the Village Engineer and the 
Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

16. Final engineering shall be approved by the Village’s consulting engineer prior to 



SRD980629.4 4  

issuance of building permits for the exterior work. 
17. No building permits and no Certificate of Occupancy for the Subject Property shall 

be issued by the Department of Public Health and Safety to the Owner unless all 
debts owed to the Village of Forest Park by the Owner have been paid in full prior to 
the issuance of such permits or certificates. 

18. Any violation of the above conditions will result in a violation of the Municipal code 
of the Village of Forest Park and the owner may be subject to fines for each day said 
violation exists. 

 

SECTION 4. RECORDING; BINDING EFFECT. 
 

A copy of this First Amendment will be recorded in the Cook County Clerk's Recordings 
Division against the Subject Property at the Company’s sole cost. This First Amendment and the 
privileges, obligations, and provisions contained in this First Amendment run with the Subject 
Property and inure to the benefit of, and are and will be binding upon, the Company and its 
personal representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 

SECTION 5. REPRESENTATIONS. 
 

A. By the Village. The Village hereby represents and warrants that: (1) the persons 
executing this First Amendment on its behalf have been properly authorized to do so by the Village 
Council; (2) it has full power and authority to execute and deliver this First Amendment and to 
perform all of its obligations imposed pursuant to this First Amendment; and (3) this First 
Amendment constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Village enforceable in 
accordance with its terms. 

 

B. By the Company. The Company hereby represents and warrants that: (1) the 
persons executing this First Amendment on its behalf have been properly authorized to do so; (2) 
it has full power and authority to execute and deliver this First Amendment and to perform all of 
its obligations imposed pursuant to this First Amendment; and (3) this First Amendment 
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable in accordance with 
its terms. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have hereunto set their hands on the date first above 

written. 
 

ATTEST: VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
 
   By:  Village Clerk 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: FRANKLIN CONSOLIDATED, LLC 

An Illinois limited liability company 
 

By:   By:    
 

Its:   Its:    



SRD980629.4 5  

 



SRD980629.4 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

PARCEL 1: 
 
LOT 1 IN THE FINAL PLAT OF FRANKLIN SUBDIVISION, BEING A PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 
OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 1602544024, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 
PARCEL 2: 

 
NON-EXCLUSIVE DRIVEWAY EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1, AS CREATED 
BY DEED FROM CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY TO E. W. KNEIP, 
INCORPORATED RECORDED DECEMBER 9, 1966 AS DOCUMENT 20018802, OVER THE 
FOLLOWING DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE: 

 

THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39 
NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BOUNDED AND 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, 183.00 
FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE OF HARLEM 
AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID 
CIRCLE AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF 490.70 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF SAID 
EASEMENT, SAID POINT OF BEGINNING ALSO BEING THE MOST SOUTHERLY CORNER 
OF A TRACT OF LAND, AS CONVEYED BY QUIT CLAIM DEED DATED JULY 5, 1963 FROM 
THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, EVA 
GOLDSTEIN AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN, AND RECORDED AUGUST 23, 1963 AS DOCUMENT 
18893094; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A LINE FORMING AN ANGLE OF 109 
DEGREES, 58 MINUTES MEASURED COUNTER CLOCKWISE FROM A STRAIGHT LINE 
DRAWN FROM THE POINT OF COMMENCEMENT TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, A 
DISTANCE OF 90.5 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO A POINT 72.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS 
MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY 
COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WEST ALONG A LINE 
PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF 
HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST, TO A POINT 1140.00 FEET WEST OF THE 
CENTERLINE OF SAID HARLEM AVENUE, AS MEASURED ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH 
THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 
EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 97.7 
FEET TO A POINT 84.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE 
SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 
EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 76.1 
FEET TO A POINT 102.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE 
SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 
EXTENDED WEST; THENCE SOUTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT 43.00 FEET NORTH OF, AS MEASURED 
AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY AND EXTENSION 
THEREOF, AS CONVEYED FROM SAID RAILWAY COMPANY TO THE CITIES SERVICE OIL 

 
Exhibit A-1 



SRD980629.4 2  

COMPANY BY QUIT CLAIM DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963 AND RECORDED MARCH 8, 
1963, AS DOCUMENT 18737524; THENCE WEST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963 
TO A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID 
RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST AND DISTANT 
1707.00 FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE FROM THE 
CENTERLINE OF SAID HARLEM AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT 
RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST 
OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY 
CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963, EXTENDED WESTERLY; THENCE 
EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED 
DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963 AND THE WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF (BEING ALSO 
THE NORTH LINE OF PARCEL 5 AND THE EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF) TO THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED FEBRUARY 
25, 1963; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT 8.5 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT 
RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NO. 367 OF SAID 
RAILWAY COMPANY, AS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED; THENCE EAST ALONG A 
LINE PARALLEL WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SAID SPUR TRACK, A DISTANCE OF 162.00 
FEET; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE SOUTH 
BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED 
WEST, TO A POINT 102.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE 
SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 
EXTENDED WEST; THENCE EAST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH 
BOUNDARY LINE, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST, A DISTANCE OF 230.00 
FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO A POINT 50.00 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF, AS MEASURED AT 
RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE TRACT OF LAND, AS 
CONVEYED IN SAID DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 
ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID TRACT OF LAND, A 
DISTANCE OF 81.00 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID 
CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF 
SAID CIRCLE AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 



SRD980629.4 
 

EXHIBIT B 

REVISED PLANS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit B-1 



980227_1 

1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. O-_  -21 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 

AMENDMENT TO A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

AND GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR AN AMENDMENT 

TO A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR FARMINGTON FOODS, IN 

THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

(PC 2021-01:  7419, 7431, 7445 Franklin) 

 

WHEREAS, on December 14, 2015, the Village of Forest Park ("Village") enacted 

Ordinance No. O-35-15, entitled "AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 

PERMIT FOR A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, AND APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 

AND  FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION  FOR  FARMINGTON  FOODS IN THE VILLAGE  OF 

FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS" ("Original PUD Ordinance") for a planned unit 

development (“Planned Unit Development”) on the property legally described in Exhibit A, 

attached hereto, and commonly described as “Farmington Foods,” located at 7419, 7431, 7445 

Franklin Street, Forest Park, Illinois ("Subject Property"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Original PUD Ordinance, the Village and Franklin 

Investors, LLC entered into a Planned Unit Development Agreement, dated December 14, 

2015 (“PUD Agreement”) for the Subject Property; and 

WHEREAS, Franklin Consolidated, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company 

(“Company”), as successor and current owner of the Subject Property, has applied for an 

amendment to the current Planned Unit Development approved by the Original PUD 

Ordinance to construct an approximately 8,666 square foot addition (approximately 4,333 

square feet over two floors), with a 753 square foot rooftop deck area that will connect two 

existing buildings on the southeastern part of the Subject Property (the “PUD Amendment”); 

and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 9-6-8 of the Village Zoning Ordinance, the proposed 

PUD Amendment constitutes a major change to the approved Planned Unit Development, due 

to an overall coverage of the site that exceeds 5%; and 

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is located in an I-1 Zoning District within the 

Village and is granted a conditional use for a Planned Unit Development pursuant to the 

Original PUD Ordinance; and 



980227_1 

2 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to proper legal notice, a public hearing on the Company’s 

application for the PUD Amendment was conducted by the Plan Commission on February 1, 

2021; and 

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2021, the Plan Commission considered the testimony and 

public comment, reviewed the evidence presented, and issued its recommendation to approve 

the PUD Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Village that the application for the PUD 

Amendment be approved and that an amendment to the PUD Agreement by and between the 

Village of Forest Park and the Company (“First Amendment to PUD Agreement”) be 

approved by the corporate authorities of the Village; and 

WHEREAS, the Company is ready, willing and able to enter into said First 

Amendment to PUD Agreement and perform the obligations as required therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Forest 

Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The recitals set forth in the preamble are hereby incorporated herein by 

reference and made a part of this Ordinance. 

Section 2. Findings:  The Corporate Authorities find as follows: 

1. The proposed improvements comply with the regulations of the underlying zoning district. 

The proposed addition complies with the regulations governing the Subject Property, 

including specifically the regulations of the underlying I-1 zoning district as modified by 

the Original PUD Ordinance approved in 2015. The proposed addition requires no 

variations or zoning relief other than approval of the changes to the approved plans to 

incorporate the proposed addition. The proposed addition does not require any exceptions 

under the Village Zoning Regulations. The use of the proposed addition will be consistent 

with the uses on the Subject Property approved by the Village pursuant to the Original 

PUD Ordinance. The proposed addition will not involve or expand in any way the 

limitation on cooking of animal products as set forth in the Original PUD Ordinance. 

 

2. The proposed planned development is consistent with the comprehensive plan’s future 

land use map. The proposed addition is consistent with the official planning policies and 

the comprehensive plan of the Village. Section 2 of the Original PUD Ordinance 

specifically found that the Planned Unit Development granted in 2015 was consistent with 

the Village’s comprehensive plan and nothing about the proposed addition changes the 

nature or scope of the Planned Unit Development. 

 

3. The planned development is compatible with and will not diminish the economic value of 

the surrounding area. The surrounding area includes commercial, industrial, and 

residential areas.   The proposed addition adds no new uses to the Subject Property   and 



980227_1 

3 
 

does not change any existing uses on the Subject Property, which uses on the Subject 

Property, as determined by the Village in 2015 in the Original PUD Ordinance. 

 

4. Based on the scope of the proposed addition, there are no unusual physical, topographical 

or historical features of the site of the planned development to be preserved. The proposed 

addition will not interfere with or impact the Village’s continued use of the Village water 

tower located at the north end of the Subject Property. The proposed addition will not 

impact any unusual physical, topographical or historical features related to the Subject 

Property. 

 

5. The site is under unified control and has been in operation for several decades. Franklin 

Consolidated, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, owns the Subject Property. 

 

6. The proposed uses are consistent with current operations and will not exercise undue 

detrimental influence upon surrounding properties. The proposed addition adds no new 

uses to the Subject Property. The Original PUD Ordinance determined that the approved 

Planned Unit Development would have no detrimental influence on surrounding 

properties. The proposed addition is consistent with the 2015 approved Planned Unit 

Development and the proposed addition will not be detrimental to the surrounding 

properties and will in many respects be beneficial to surrounding properties by, among 

other things, the inclusion of agreed-upon additional conditions related to the Subject 

Property and also the removal of three dock doors at the southeast corner of the property 

on Franklin Street. 

 

7. The planned development will not endanger public health, welfare, or safety. The 

proposed addition will alter nothing on the Subject Property that would cause any change 

to the Village Council’s previous findings that the existing uses on the Subject Property 

are compatible with surrounding uses, will minimize impacts on surrounding properties, 

and will not endanger public health, welfare, or safety. The proposed addition complies 

with the applicable off-street parking requirements and will not cause any new employees 

to be hired, so the off-street parking requirements remain complied with and unchanged 

from the Original PUD Ordinance. The proposed addition will have only negligible 

impacts on area road operations, will not result in more employees (and thus more cars) 

and will not create any increase in truck trips. 

 

Section 3. The First Amendment to PUD Agreement between the Village and the 

Company, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof, is hereby 

approved. Upon receipt from the Company within seven (7) days of the date of this Ordinance of 

four (4) executed copies of said First Amendment to PUD Agreement, and any money or securities 

required to be deposited therewith, the Mayor and the Village Clerk are hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and attest to, respectively, said Amendment to PUD Agreement. 

Section 4. Upon execution of the First Amendment to PUD Agreement by the Mayor and 

Village  Clerk,  the  Subject  Property  is  hereby  granted  a  conditional  use  for  the PUD 



980227_1 

4 
 

Amendment to be developed in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the First 

Amendment to PUD Agreement. 

Section 5. The approval of the conditional use for the PUD Amendment for the Subject 

Property is subject to the terms and provisions of the Original PUD Ordinance and PUD 

Agreement, and all other conditions and requirements imposed and set forth in the Village Code 

and Zoning Code, as amended, and all other duly enacted ordinances of the Village, except as 

otherwise provided herein or as modified in the First Amendment to PUD Agreement, and shall 

be constructed, developed and operated in strict compliance with the testimony presented on 

behalf of and by the Company and the following plans (“Project Plans”):  

 
a. Application for Zoning Action 

b. Project Narrative (“Planned Development Proposed Addition,” 6 pages, revised 

December 24,2020) 

c. Map of Existing Zoning Districts (undated) 

d. Plat of Subdivision (3 pages, dated November 13, 2015) 

e. Alta/ACSM Land Title Survey (2 pages, dated November 14, 2016) 

f. Traffic Planning Study (22 pages, dated January 5, 2021, by Gewalt 

Hamilton Associates) 

g. Proposed Elevations (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 

h. First Floor Plan (dated December 11, 2020) 

i. Second Floor Plan (dated December 11, 2020) 

j. Proposed Site Plan (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 

k. Existing Conditions Site Plan (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 

l. Roof Deck Graphic Section View SK4.0 (dated February 11, 2021, 

by Ridgeland Associates) 

m. Truck Operations Plan (undated, by Gewalt Hamilton Associates) 

n. Fence Plan (dated March 26, 2021, by Ridgeland Associates) 

 

Section 6. The First Amendment to PUD Agreement between the Village and the 

Company accurately sets forth all of the agreements between the parties pertaining to the 

development of the Subject Property. 

Section 7. The proposed improvements as approved by the PUD Amendment shall be 

constructed, developed and operated in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of the 

Original PUD Ordinance and PUD Agreement, as amended herein, and subject to the following 

conditions and restrictions: 

1. Except for deliveries, the on-site truck relocation of Farmington transports will be 

prohibited between the 7419 building and the two eastern dock doors of the 7431 building 

buildings on the Subject Property from between 10:00 p.m. and 5to 6:00 a.m. shall not 

exceed six transports (transports are defined as a one-way trip). Unless mandated by 

OSHSA, Federal or State of Illinois law, Farmington transports between buildings on the 

Subject Property will not use back up beepers from 10:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. and will 

instead use truck back up safety lights. 



980227_1 

5 
 

2. The applicant shall install new directional off-site and on-site signage for truck 

movements as provided in the Truck Operations Plan and subject to final review and 

approval by the Village Engineer and the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

3. Trucks are required to continue to enter and exit from the west except when using loading 

docks at the southeast corner of the Subject Property. 

4. Other than trucks of standard delivery services such as UPS, Federal Express, and 

Amazon, trucks delivering materials to the Company will not be permitted toshall not 

park nor idle between 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. on either side of the Franklin Street and 

Circle Avenue frontages of the Subject Property. 

5. At no time shall No truck refrigerator units are to be used at the western-facing loading 

docks at the southeast corner of the Subject Property between the hours of 10:00 p.m. 

and 6:00 a.m. 

6. No cooking is to take place within the 7419 building, including the proposed addition 

and in no event shall food processing operations be expanded into the connected garage 

structure, without an amendment to the Original PUD Ordinance and PUD Agreement, 

as amended. 

7. The hours and operation/occupancy for the roof deck shall be limited to 6:00 a.m. to 

11:00 p.m. 

8. The roof deck is limited to 753 square feet in size and shall be in substantial conformance 

with the Project Plans. 

9. Roof deck lighting shall be “down lighting” subject to final review and approval by the 

Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

10. The final material of the 6’ screen of the roof deck will be as depicted in the Roof  Deck 

Graphic Section View SK 4.0, subject to review and approval by the Director of 

Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

11. Landscaping per the original PUD that has died or is depleted will be replaced before the 

issuance of a final Certificate of Occupancy, subject to seasonal planting restrictions and 

approval of the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

12. The applicant will remove the current chain link fence/barbed wire fence and replace it 

with a combination of wrought-iron like open fence and wrought-iron like with infilled 

synthetic slats, as depicted in the Proposed Fence Plan, along the southern perimeter of 

the Subject Property. The fence materials will provide visual and noise screening for the 

portions of the property that are beyond fifteen (15) feet from the west and center 

entrances to the Subject Property. No trucks shall be permitted to park on the Subject 

Property adjacent to the open areas of the fence along Franklin. The Company shall 

install traffic control warning signs at the entrances, to control both truck ingress and 

egress and warning pedestrians. The final fence to be constructed is subject to final 

review and approval by the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning for compliance 

with the Proposed Fence Plan. 

13. The applicant will identify a “Community Contact Representative” who will be primarily 

responsible for monitoring and promptly responding to messages received. The name, 

phone number, and email of a specific person shall be provided to the Director of 

Building, Planning & Zoning and listed on the company website. Additionally, a 24-hour 

phone number shall be prominently listed on the company’s website. 

14. A construction schedule shall be submitted prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

15. All construction shall comply with the Building Code of the Village of Forest Park, with 

final plans subject to review and approval by the Village Engineer and the Director of 

Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

16. Final  engineering  shall  be  approved  by  the  Village’s  consulting  engineer  prior  to 



980227_1 

6 
 

issuance of building permits for the exterior work. 

17. No building permits and no Certificate of Occupancy for the Subject Property shall be 

issued by the Department of Public Health and Safety to the Owner unless all debts owed 

to the Village of Forest Park by the Owner have been paid in full prior to the issuance of 

such permits or certificates. 

18. Any violation of the above conditions will result in a violation of the Municipal code of 

the Village of Forest Park and the owner may be subject to fines for each day said 

violation exists. 

 
Section 8. In  all  other  respects,  the  terms  and  provisions  of  the Original PUD 

Ordinance and PUD Agreement are ratified and remain in full force and effect. 

Section 9. This  Ordinance  shall  be  in  full  force  and  effect  upon  is passage and 

approval in the manner provided by law. 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 12th day of 

April, 2021. 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT:    

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

 
 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



980227_1 

7 
 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

PARCEL 1: 

 

LOT 1 IN THE FINAL PLAT OF FRANKLIN SUBDIVISION, BEING A PART OF THE 

NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 12 

EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 

RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 1602544024, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 

PARCEL 2: 

 

NON-EXCLUSIVE DRIVEWAY EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1, AS 

CREATED BY DEED FROM CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY 

TO E. W. KNEIP, INCORPORATED RECORDED DECEMBER 9, 1966 AS DOCUMENT 

20018802, OVER THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE: 

 

THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 

39 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BOUNDED AND 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF CIRCLE   AVENUE, 

183.00 FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE 

OF HARLEM AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY 

LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF 490.70 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING OF SAID EASEMENT, SAID POINT OF BEGINNING ALSO BEING THE 

MOST SOUTHERLY CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND, AS CONVEYED BY QUIT CLAIM 

DEED DATED JULY 5, 1963 FROM THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY 

COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, EVA GOLDSTEIN AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN, AND 

RECORDED AUGUST 23, 1963 AS DOCUMENT 18893094; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 

ALONG A LINE FORMING AN ANGLE OF 109 DEGREES, 58 MINUTES MEASURED 

COUNTER CLOCKWISE FROM A STRAIGHT LINE DRAWN FROM THE POINT OF 

COMMENCEMENT TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, A DISTANCE OF 90.5 FEET, MORE 

OR LESS, TO A POINT 72.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES 

FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF 

HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WEST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL 

WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF 

HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST, TO A POINT 1140.00 FEET WEST OF THE 

CENTERLINE OF SAID HARLEM AVENUE, AS MEASURED ALONG A LINE PARALLEL 

WITH THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF 

HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT 

LINE, A DISTANCE OF 97.7 FEET TO A POINT 84.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED 

AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY 

COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WESTERLY 

ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 76.1 FEET TO A POINT 102.00 FEET SOUTH 



980227_1 

8 
 

OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID 

RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE 

SOUTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE NORTH LINE OF 

FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT 43.00 FEET NORTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT 

ANGLES FROM THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY AND EXTENSION THEREOF, AS 

CONVEYED FROM SAID RAILWAY COMPANY TO THE CITIES SERVICE OIL 

COMPANY BY QUIT CLAIM DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963 AND RECORDED 

MARCH 8, 1963, AS DOCUMENT 18737524; THENCE WEST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL 

WITH THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED 

FEBRUARY 25, 1963 TO A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH 

BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 

EXTENDED WEST AND DISTANT 1707.00 FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED ALONG 

SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE FROM THE CENTERLINE OF SAID HARLEM AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH 

BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 

EXTENDED WEST TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID 

DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963, EXTENDED WESTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY 

ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED 

FEBRUARY 25, 1963 AND THE WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF (BEING ALSO THE 

NORTH LINE OF PARCEL 5 AND THE EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF) TO THE 

NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED 

FEBRUARY 25, 1963; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES 

FROM THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT 8.5 FEET SOUTH 

OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK 

I.C.C. NO. 367 OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, AS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED; 

THENCE EAST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SAID SPUR 

TRACK, A DISTANCE OF 162.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT 

RIGHT ANGLES TO THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, 

EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST, TO A POINT 102.00 FEET SOUTH OF, 

AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID 

RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE EAST 

ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE, EAST OF HARLEM 

AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST, A DISTANCE OF 230.00 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO A 

POINT 50.00 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM 

THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE TRACT OF LAND, AS CONVEYED IN SAID DEED 

DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE PARALLEL 

WITH THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID TRACT OF LAND, A DISTANCE OF 81.00 

FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE 

AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 



980227_1 

9 
 

EXHIBIT B 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PUD AGREEMENT 



980227_1 

1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. O-_  -21 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 

AMENDMENT TO A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

AND GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR AN AMENDMENT 

TO A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR FARMINGTON FOODS, IN 

THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

(PC 2021-01:  7419, 7431, 7445 Franklin) 

 

WHEREAS, on December 14, 2015, the Village of Forest Park ("Village") enacted 

Ordinance No. O-35-15, entitled "AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 

PERMIT FOR A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, AND APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 

AND  FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION  FOR  FARMINGTON  FOODS IN THE VILLAGE  OF 

FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS" ("Original PUD Ordinance") for a planned unit 

development (“Planned Unit Development”) on the property legally described in Exhibit A, 

attached hereto, and commonly described as “Farmington Foods,” located at 7419, 7431, 7445 

Franklin Street, Forest Park, Illinois ("Subject Property"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Original PUD Ordinance, the Village and Franklin 

Investors, LLC entered into a Planned Unit Development Agreement, dated December 14, 

2015 (“PUD Agreement”) for the Subject Property; and 

WHEREAS, Franklin Consolidated, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company 

(“Company”), as successor and current owner of the Subject Property, has applied for an 

amendment to the current Planned Unit Development approved by the Original PUD 

Ordinance to construct an approximately 8,666 square foot addition (approximately 4,333 

square feet over two floors), with a 753 square foot rooftop deck area that will connect two 

existing buildings on the southeastern part of the Subject Property (the “PUD Amendment”); 

and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 9-6-8 of the Village Zoning Ordinance, the proposed 

PUD Amendment constitutes a major change to the approved Planned Unit Development, due 

to an overall coverage of the site that exceeds 5%; and 

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is located in an I-1 Zoning District within the 

Village and is granted a conditional use for a Planned Unit Development pursuant to the 

Original PUD Ordinance; and 



980227_1 

2 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to proper legal notice, a public hearing on the Company’s 

application for the PUD Amendment was conducted by the Plan Commission on February 1, 

2021; and 

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2021, the Plan Commission considered the testimony and 

public comment, reviewed the evidence presented, and issued its recommendation to approve 

the PUD Amendment; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Village that the application for the PUD 

Amendment be approved and that an amendment to the PUD Agreement by and between the 

Village of Forest Park and the Company (“First Amendment to PUD Agreement”) be 

approved by the corporate authorities of the Village; and 

WHEREAS, the Company is ready, willing and able to enter into said First 

Amendment to PUD Agreement and perform the obligations as required therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Forest 

Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The recitals set forth in the preamble are hereby incorporated herein by 

reference and made a part of this Ordinance. 

Section 2. Findings:  The Corporate Authorities find as follows: 

1. The proposed improvements comply with the regulations of the underlying zoning district. 

The proposed addition complies with the regulations governing the Subject Property, 

including specifically the regulations of the underlying I-1 zoning district as modified by 

the Original PUD Ordinance approved in 2015. The proposed addition requires no 

variations or zoning relief other than approval of the changes to the approved plans to 

incorporate the proposed addition. The proposed addition does not require any exceptions 

under the Village Zoning Regulations. The use of the proposed addition will be consistent 

with the uses on the Subject Property approved by the Village pursuant to the Original 

PUD Ordinance. The proposed addition will not involve or expand in any way the 

limitation on cooking of animal products as set forth in the Original PUD Ordinance. 

 

2. The proposed planned development is consistent with the comprehensive plan’s future 

land use map. The proposed addition is consistent with the official planning policies and 

the comprehensive plan of the Village. Section 2 of the Original PUD Ordinance 

specifically found that the Planned Unit Development granted in 2015 was consistent with 

the Village’s comprehensive plan and nothing about the proposed addition changes the 

nature or scope of the Planned Unit Development. 

 

3. The planned development is compatible with and will not diminish the economic value of 

the surrounding area. The surrounding area includes commercial, industrial, and 

residential areas.   The proposed addition adds no new uses to the Subject Property   and 



980227_1 

3 
 

does not change any existing uses on the Subject Property, which uses on the Subject 

Property, as determined by the Village in 2015 in the Original PUD Ordinance. 

 

4. Based on the scope of the proposed addition, there are no unusual physical, topographical 

or historical features of the site of the planned development to be preserved. The proposed 

addition will not interfere with or impact the Village’s continued use of the Village water 

tower located at the north end of the Subject Property. The proposed addition will not 

impact any unusual physical, topographical or historical features related to the Subject 

Property. 

 

5. The site is under unified control and has been in operation for several decades. Franklin 

Consolidated, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, owns the Subject Property. 

 

6. The proposed uses are consistent with current operations and will not exercise undue 

detrimental influence upon surrounding properties. The proposed addition adds no new 

uses to the Subject Property. The Original PUD Ordinance determined that the approved 

Planned Unit Development would have no detrimental influence on surrounding 

properties. The proposed addition is consistent with the 2015 approved Planned Unit 

Development and the proposed addition will not be detrimental to the surrounding 

properties and will in many respects be beneficial to surrounding properties by, among 

other things, the inclusion of agreed-upon additional conditions related to the Subject 

Property and also the removal of three dock doors at the southeast corner of the property 

on Franklin Street. 

 

7. The planned development will not endanger public health, welfare, or safety. The 

proposed addition will alter nothing on the Subject Property that would cause any change 

to the Village Council’s previous findings that the existing uses on the Subject Property 

are compatible with surrounding uses, will minimize impacts on surrounding properties, 

and will not endanger public health, welfare, or safety. The proposed addition complies 

with the applicable off-street parking requirements and will not cause any new employees 

to be hired, so the off-street parking requirements remain complied with and unchanged 

from the Original PUD Ordinance. The proposed addition will have only negligible 

impacts on area road operations, will not result in more employees (and thus more cars) 

and will not create any increase in truck trips. 

 

Section 3. The First Amendment to PUD Agreement between the Village and the 

Company, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof, is hereby 

approved. Upon receipt from the Company within seven (7) days of the date of this Ordinance of 

four (4) executed copies of said First Amendment to PUD Agreement, and any money or securities 

required to be deposited therewith, the Mayor and the Village Clerk are hereby authorized and 

directed to execute and attest to, respectively, said Amendment to PUD Agreement. 

Section 4. Upon execution of the First Amendment to PUD Agreement by the Mayor and 

Village  Clerk,  the  Subject  Property  is  hereby  granted  a  conditional  use  for  the PUD 



980227_1 

4 
 

Amendment to be developed in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the First 

Amendment to PUD Agreement. 

Section 5. The approval of the conditional use for the PUD Amendment for the Subject 

Property is subject to the terms and provisions of the Original PUD Ordinance and PUD 

Agreement, and all other conditions and requirements imposed and set forth in the Village Code 

and Zoning Code, as amended, and all other duly enacted ordinances of the Village, except as 

otherwise provided herein or as modified in the First Amendment to PUD Agreement, and shall 

be constructed, developed and operated in strict compliance with the testimony presented on 

behalf of and by the Company and the following plans (“Project Plans”):  

 
a. Application for Zoning Action 

b. Project Narrative (“Planned Development Proposed Addition,” 6 pages, revised 

December 24,2020) 

c. Map of Existing Zoning Districts (undated) 

d. Plat of Subdivision (3 pages, dated November 13, 2015) 

e. Alta/ACSM Land Title Survey (2 pages, dated November 14, 2016) 

f. Traffic Planning Study (22 pages, dated January 5, 2021, by Gewalt 

Hamilton Associates) 

g. Proposed Elevations (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 

h. First Floor Plan (dated December 11, 2020) 

i. Second Floor Plan (dated December 11, 2020) 

j. Proposed Site Plan (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 

k. Existing Conditions Site Plan (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 

l. Roof Deck Graphic Section View SK4.0 (dated February 11, 2021, 

by Ridgeland Associates) 

m. Truck Operations Plan (undated, by Gewalt Hamilton Associates) 

n. Fence Plan (dated March 26, 2021, by Ridgeland Associates) 

 

Section 6. The First Amendment to PUD Agreement between the Village and the 

Company accurately sets forth all of the agreements between the parties pertaining to the 

development of the Subject Property. 

Section 7. The proposed improvements as approved by the PUD Amendment shall be 

constructed, developed and operated in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of the 

Original PUD Ordinance and PUD Agreement, as amended herein, and subject to the following 

conditions and restrictions: 

1. Except for deliveries, the on-site relocation of Farmington transports between the 7419 

building and the two eastern dock doors of the 7431 building on the Subject Property 

between 10:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. shall not exceed six transports (transports are defined 

as a one-way trip). Unless mandated by OSHSA, Federal or State of Illinois law, 

Farmington transports between buildings on the Subject Property will not use back up 

beepers from 10:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. and will instead use truck back up safety lights. 

2. The  applicant  shall  install  new  directional  off-site  and  on-site signage for truck 



980227_1 

5 
 

movements as provided in the Truck Operations Plan and subject to final review and 

approval by the Village Engineer and the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

3. Trucks are required to continue to enter and exit from the west except when using loading 

docks at the southeast corner ofthe Subject Property. 

4. Other than trucks of standard delivery services such as UPS, Federal Express, and 

Amazon, trucks delivering materials to the Company shall not park or idle between 10:00 

p.m. and 6:00 a.m. on either side of the Franklin Street and Circle Avenue frontages of 

the Subject Property. 

5. At no time shall truck refrigerator units be used at the western-facing loading docks at 

the southeast corner of the Subject Property between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 

a.m. 

6. No cooking is to take place within the 7419 building, including the proposed addition 

and in no event shall food processing operations be expanded into the connected garage 

structure, without an amendment to the Original PUD Ordinance and PUD Agreement, 

as amended. 

7. The hours and operation/occupancy for the roof deck shall be limited to 6:00 a.m. to 

11:00 p.m. 

8. The roof deck is limited to 753 square feet in size and shall be in substantial conformance 

with the Project Plans. 

9. Roof deck lighting shall be “down lighting” subject to final review and approval by the 

Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

10. The final material of the 6’ screen of the roof deck will be as depicted in the Roof Deck 

Graphic Section View SK 4.0, subject to review and approval by the Director of 

Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

11. Landscaping per the original PUD that has died or is depleted will be replaced before the 

issuance of a final Certificate of Occupancy, subject to seasonal planting restrictions and 

approval of the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

12. The applicant will remove the current chain link fence/barbed wire fence and replace it 

with a combination of wrought-iron like open fence and wrought-iron like with infilled 

synthetic slats, as depicted in the Proposed Fence Plan, along the southern perimeter of 

the Subject Property. The fence materials will provide visual and noise screening for the 

portions of the property that are beyond fifteen (15) feet from the west and center 

entrances to the Subject Property. The Company shall install traffic control warning signs 

at the entrances, to control both truck ingress and egress and warning pedestrians. The 

final fence to be constructed is subject to final review and approval by the Director of 

Building, Planning, and Zoning for compliance with the Proposed Fence Plan. 

13. The applicant will identify a “Community Contact Representative” who will be primarily 

responsible for monitoring and promptly responding to messages received. The name, 

phone number, and email of a specific person shall be provided to the Director of 

Building, Planning & Zoning and listed on the company website. Additionally, a 24-hour 

phone number shall be prominently listed on the company’s website. 

14. A construction schedule shall be submitted prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

15. All construction shall comply with the Building Code of the Village of Forest Park, with 

final plans subject to review and approval by the Village Engineer and the Director of 

Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

16. Final engineering shall be approved by the Village’s consulting engineer prior to 

issuance of building permits for the exterior work. 

17. No building permits and no Certificate of Occupancy for the Subject Property shall be 

issued by the Department of Public Health and Safety to the Owner unless all debts owed 



980227_1 

6 
 

to the Village of Forest Park by the Owner have been paid in full prior to the issuance of 

such permits or certificates. 

18. Any violation of the above conditions will result in a violation of the Municipal code of 

the Village of Forest Park and the owner may be subject to fines for each day said 

violation exists. 

 
Section 8. In  all  other  respects,  the  terms  and  provisions  of  the Original PUD 

Ordinance and PUD Agreement are ratified and remain in full force and effect. 

Section 9. This  Ordinance  shall  be  in  full  force  and  effect  upon  is passage and 

approval in the manner provided by law. 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 12th day of 

April, 2021. 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT:    

 

APPROVED: 
 

 

 

 
 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



980227_1 

7 
 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

PARCEL 1: 

 

LOT 1 IN THE FINAL PLAT OF FRANKLIN SUBDIVISION, BEING A PART OF THE 

NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 12 

EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 

RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 1602544024, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 

PARCEL 2: 

 

NON-EXCLUSIVE DRIVEWAY EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1, AS 

CREATED BY DEED FROM CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY 

TO E. W. KNEIP, INCORPORATED RECORDED DECEMBER 9, 1966 AS DOCUMENT 

20018802, OVER THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE: 

 

THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 

39 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BOUNDED AND 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF CIRCLE   AVENUE, 

183.00 FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE 

OF HARLEM AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY 

LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF 490.70 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING OF SAID EASEMENT, SAID POINT OF BEGINNING ALSO BEING THE 

MOST SOUTHERLY CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND, AS CONVEYED BY QUIT CLAIM 

DEED DATED JULY 5, 1963 FROM THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY 

COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, EVA GOLDSTEIN AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN, AND 

RECORDED AUGUST 23, 1963 AS DOCUMENT 18893094; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 

ALONG A LINE FORMING AN ANGLE OF 109 DEGREES, 58 MINUTES MEASURED 

COUNTER CLOCKWISE FROM A STRAIGHT LINE DRAWN FROM THE POINT OF 

COMMENCEMENT TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, A DISTANCE OF 90.5 FEET, MORE 

OR LESS, TO A POINT 72.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES 

FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF 

HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WEST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL 

WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF 

HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST, TO A POINT 1140.00 FEET WEST OF THE 

CENTERLINE OF SAID HARLEM AVENUE, AS MEASURED ALONG A LINE PARALLEL 

WITH THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF 

HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT 

LINE, A DISTANCE OF 97.7 FEET TO A POINT 84.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED 

AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY 

COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WESTERLY 

ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 76.1 FEET TO A POINT 102.00 FEET SOUTH 



980227_1 

8 
 

OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID 

RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE 

SOUTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE NORTH LINE OF 

FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT 43.00 FEET NORTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT 

ANGLES FROM THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY AND EXTENSION THEREOF, AS 

CONVEYED FROM SAID RAILWAY COMPANY TO THE CITIES SERVICE OIL 

COMPANY BY QUIT CLAIM DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963 AND RECORDED 

MARCH 8, 1963, AS DOCUMENT 18737524; THENCE WEST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL 

WITH THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED 

FEBRUARY 25, 1963 TO A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH 

BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 

EXTENDED WEST AND DISTANT 1707.00 FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED ALONG 

SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE FROM THE CENTERLINE OF SAID HARLEM AVENUE; 

THENCE SOUTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH 

BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 

EXTENDED WEST TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID 

DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963, EXTENDED WESTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY 

ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED 

FEBRUARY 25, 1963 AND THE WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF (BEING ALSO THE 

NORTH LINE OF PARCEL 5 AND THE EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF) TO THE 

NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED 

FEBRUARY 25, 1963; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES 

FROM THE NORTH LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT 8.5 FEET SOUTH 

OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK 

I.C.C. NO. 367 OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, AS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED; 

THENCE EAST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SAID SPUR 

TRACK, A DISTANCE OF 162.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT 

RIGHT ANGLES TO THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, 

EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST, TO A POINT 102.00 FEET SOUTH OF, 

AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID 

RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE EAST 

ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE, EAST OF HARLEM 

AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST, A DISTANCE OF 230.00 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO A 

POINT 50.00 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM 

THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE TRACT OF LAND, AS CONVEYED IN SAID DEED 

DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE PARALLEL 

WITH THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID TRACT OF LAND, A DISTANCE OF 81.00 

FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE AVENUE; 

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE 

AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 



980227_1 

9 
 

EXHIBIT B 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PUD AGREEMENT 



 

THIS DOCUMENT 
PREPARED BY AND AFTER 
RECORDING RETURN TO: 

 
Nicholas S. Peppers 
Storino, Ramello & Durkin 

9501 West Devon Ave. 8th Fl. 
Rosemont, IL 60018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Above Space For Recorder’s Use Only 

 
 
 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

AND 

FRANKLIN CONSOLIDATED, LLC 

 

 
DATED AS OF  , 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SRD980629.4 #72138508_v1 



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
AND 

FRANKLIN CONSOLIDATED, LLC 
 

THIS IS A FIRST AMENDMENT TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT  AGREEMENT 
(“First Amendment”), dated  as of  , 2021 (“Effective Date”), to  a Planned 
Unit Development Agreement (“Development Agreement”), dated December 14, 2015, by and 
between the VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, an Illinois municipal corporation (“Village”) and 
FRANKLIN CONSOLIDATED, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company and successor to Franklin 
Investors, LLC (“Company”). 

 

IN CONSIDERATION OF the recitals and the mutual covenants and Agreements set forth 

in this First Amendment, the Village and the Company agree as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. RECITALS. 
 

A. As of the Effective Date of this First Amendment, the Company is the owner of 
record of the property located at 7419, 7431, and 7445 Franklin Street, Forest Park, Illinois 
(“Subject Property”), which Property is legally described in Exhibit A attached to and, by this 
reference, made a part of this First Amendment. 

 

B. On or about December 14, 2015, the Village adopted Ordinance No. O-35-15, 
granting the Company a conditional use permit for a planned unit development, approving a 
preliminary and final plat of subdivision, and authorizing the execution of the Development 
Agreement (“PUD Ordinance”). 

 

C. Pursuant to the Development Agreement, the Company has the right to develop 
and use the Subject Property in accordance with the PUD Ordinance and the “Approved Plans,” 
as defined in Section 3 of the Development Agreement (“Approved Plans”). 

 

D. Pursuant to Section 9-6-8 of the Village Zoning Regulations (Title 9 of the Forest 
Park Village Code (“Zoning Regulations”), the PUD Ordinance, and Section 3 of the 
Development Agreement, the Company has requested an amendment to the PUD Ordinance and 
the Development Agreement to allow for the construction of an approximately 4,333 square foot 
addition with a 753 square foot rooftop deck on the eastern portion of the Subject Property 
commonly known as 7149 Franklin Street (“Proposed Addition”), as depicted on plans and 
drawings attached to this First Amendment as Exhibit B (“Revised Plans”). 

 

E. On April 26, 2021, the Council of the Village of Forest Park adopted Ordinance No. 
O- -21, amending the PUD Ordinance to authorize the Proposed Addition subject to certain 
conditions, and approving and authorizing execution of this First Amendment (“PUD Amendment 
Ordinance”). 

 

F. The Village and the Company now desire to amend the Development Agreement, 
in accordance with Section 3 of the Agreement, to authorize the Proposed Addition in accordance 
with the PUD Amendment Ordinance and the conditions set forth in this First Amendment. 

 
 

 

1 
#72138508_v1SRD980629.4 



SRD980629.4 2  

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS; RULES OF CONSTRUCTION. 
 

A. Definitions. All capitalized words and phrases used throughout this First 
Amendment have the meanings set forth in the various provisions of this First Amendment. If a 
word or phrase is not specifically defined in this First Amendment, it has the same meaning as in 
the Development Agreement. 

 

B. Rules of Construction. Except as specifically provided in this First Amendment, 
all terms, provisions and requirements contained in the Development Agreement remain 
unchanged and in full force and effect. In the event of a conflict between the text of the 
Development Agreement and the text of this First Amendment, the text of this First Amendment 
controls. 

 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. 
 

A. Amendment of Approved Plans. Pursuant to Section 3 of the Development 
Agreement, the Approved Plans are amended to include the Revised Plans. To the 
extent of any conflict between the Revised Plans and the Approved Plans 
approved as part of the Development Agreement, the Revised Plans attached to 
this First Amendment will control. 

 

a. Application for Zoning Action 
b. Project Narrative (“Planned Development Proposed Addition,” 6 pages, revised 

December 24,2020) 
c. Map of Existing Zoning Districts (undated) 
d. Plat of Subdivision (3 pages, dated November 13, 2015) 
e. Alta/ACSM Land Title Survey (2 pages, dated November 14, 2016) 
f. Traffic Planning Study (22 pages, dated January 5, 2021, by Gewalt 

Hamilton Associates) 
g. Proposed Elevations (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 
h. First Floor Plan (dated December 11, 2020) 
i. Second Floor Plan (dated December 11, 2020) 
j. Proposed Site Plan (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 
k. Existing 

Conditions Site Plan (dated December 23, 2020, by Ridgeland Associates) 
l. Roof Deck Graphic Section View SK4.0 (dated February 11, 2021, 

by Ridgeland Associates) 
m. Truck Operations Plan (undated, by Gewalt Hamilton Associates) 
n. Fence Plan (dated March 26, 2021, by Ridgeland Associates) 

 
B. Additional Requirements. Section 10, entitled “Additional Requirements,” of the 

Development Agreement, is hereby amended to add the following new requirements: 
 

1. Except for deliveries, the on-site relocation of Farmington transports between the 
7419 building and the two eastern dock doors of the 7431 building on the Subject 
Property between 10:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. shall not exceed six transports 
(transports are defined as a one-way trip). Unless mandated by OSHSA, Federal or 
State of Illinois law, Farmington transports between buildings on the Subject 
Property will not use back up beepers from 10:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. and will instead 



SRD980629.4 3  

use truck back up safety lights. 
2. The applicant shall install new directional off-site and on-site signage for truck 

movements as provided in the Truck Operations Plan and subject to final review and 
approval by the Village Engineer and the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

3. Trucks are required to continue to enter and exit from the west except when using 
loading docks at the southeast corner of the Subject Property. 

4. Other than trucks of standard delivery services such as UPS, Federal Express, and 
Amazon, trucks delivering materials to the Company shall not park or idle between 
10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. on either side of the Franklin Street and Circle Avenue 
frontages of the Subject Property. 

5. At no time shall truck refrigerator units be used at the western-facing loading docks 
at the southeast corner of the Subject Property. 

6. No cooking is to take place within the 7419 building, including the proposed addition 
and in no event shall food processing operations be expanded into the connected 
garage structure, without an amendment to the Original PUD Ordinance and PUD 
Agreement, as amended. 

7. The hours and operation/occupancy for the roof deck shall be limited to 6:00 a.m. to 
11:00 p.m. 

8. The roof deck is limited to 753 square feet in size and shall be in substantial 
conformance with the Project Plans. 

9. Roof deck lighting shall be “down lighting” subject to final review and approval by 
the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

10. The final material of the 6’ screen of the roof deck will be as depicted in the Roof 
Deck Graphic Section View SK 4.0, subject to review and approval by the Director 
of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

11. Landscaping per the original PUD that has died or is depleted will be replaced before 
the issuance of a final Certificate of Occupancy, subject to seasonal planting 
restrictions and approval of the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

12. The applicant will remove the current chain link fence/barbed wire fence and replace 
it with a combination of wrought-iron like open fence and wrought-iron like with 
infilled synthetic slats, as depicted in the Proposed Fence Plan, along the southern 
perimeter of the Subject Property. The fence materials will provide visual and noise 
screening for the portions of the property that are beyond fifteen (15) feet from the 
west and center entrances to the Subject Property. The Company shall install traffic 
control warning signs at the entrances, to control both truck ingress and egress and 
warning pedestrians. The final fence to be constructed is subject to final review and 
approval by the Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning for compliance with the 
Proposed Fence Plan. 

13. The applicant will identify a “Community Contact Representative” who will be 
primarily responsible for monitoring and promptly responding to messages received. 
The name, phone number, and email of a specific person shall be provided to the 
Director of Building, Planning & Zoning and listed on the company website. 
Additionally, a 24-hour phone number shall be prominently listed on the company’s 
website. 

14. A construction schedule shall be submitted prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
15. All construction shall comply with the Building Code of the Village of Forest Park, 

with final plans subject to review and approval by the Village Engineer and the 
Director of Building, Planning, and Zoning. 

16. Final engineering shall be approved by the Village’s consulting engineer prior to 
issuance of building permits for the exterior work. 

17. No building permits and no Certificate of Occupancy for the Subject Property  shall 



SRD980629.4 4  

be issued by the Department of Public Health and Safety to the Owner unless all 
debts owed to the Village of Forest Park by the Owner have been paid in full prior to 
the issuance of such permits or certificates. 

18. Any violation of the above conditions will result in a violation of the Municipal code 
of the Village of Forest Park and the owner may be subject to fines for each day said 
violation exists. 

 

SECTION 4.   RECORDING; BINDING EFFECT. 
 

A copy of this First Amendment will be recorded in the Cook County Clerk's Recordings 
Division against the Subject Property at the Company’s sole cost. This First Amendment and the 
privileges, obligations, and provisions contained in this First Amendment run with the Subject 
Property and inure to the benefit of, and are and will be binding upon, the Company and its 
personal representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 

SECTION 5. REPRESENTATIONS. 
 

A. By the Village. The Village hereby represents and warrants that: (1) the persons 
executing this First Amendment on its behalf have been properly authorized to do so by the Village 
Council; (2) it has full power and authority to execute and deliver this First Amendment and to 
perform all of its obligations imposed pursuant to this First Amendment; and (3) this First 
Amendment constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Village enforceable in 
accordance with its terms. 

 

B. By the Company. The Company hereby represents and warrants that: (1) the 
persons executing this First Amendment on its behalf have been properly authorized to do so; (2) 
it has full power and authority to execute and deliver this First Amendment and to perform all of 
its obligations imposed pursuant to this First Amendment; and (3) this First Amendment 
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable in accordance with 
its terms. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have hereunto set their hands on the date first above 
written. 

 

ATTEST: VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
 
   By:  Village Clerk 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: FRANKLIN CONSOLIDATED, LLC 

An Illinois limited liability company 
 
By:   By:  

Its:   Its:    



SRD980629.4 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

PARCEL 1: 
 
LOT 1 IN THE FINAL PLAT OF FRANKLIN SUBDIVISION, BEING A PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 
OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 1602544024, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 
PARCEL 2: 

 
NON-EXCLUSIVE DRIVEWAY EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1, AS CREATED 
BY DEED FROM CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY TO E. W. KNEIP, 
INCORPORATED RECORDED DECEMBER 9, 1966 AS DOCUMENT 20018802, OVER THE 
FOLLOWING DESCRIBED REAL ESTATE: 

 

THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 39 
NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BOUNDED AND 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF CIRCLE AVENUE, 183.00 
FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE OF HARLEM 
AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID 
CIRCLE AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF 490.70 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF SAID 
EASEMENT, SAID POINT OF BEGINNING ALSO BEING THE MOST SOUTHERLY CORNER 
OF A TRACT OF LAND, AS CONVEYED BY QUIT CLAIM DEED DATED JULY 5, 1963 FROM 
THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY TO MAX GOLDSTEIN, EVA 
GOLDSTEIN AND BESSIE GOLDSTEIN, AND RECORDED AUGUST 23, 1963 AS DOCUMENT 
18893094; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG A LINE FORMING AN ANGLE OF 109 
DEGREES, 58 MINUTES MEASURED COUNTER CLOCKWISE FROM A STRAIGHT LINE 
DRAWN FROM THE POINT OF COMMENCEMENT TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, A 
DISTANCE OF 90.5 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO A POINT 72.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS 
MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY 
COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WEST ALONG A LINE 
PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF 
HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST, TO A POINT 1140.00 FEET WEST OF THE 
CENTERLINE OF SAID HARLEM AVENUE, AS MEASURED ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH 
THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 
EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 97.7 
FEET TO A POINT 84.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE 
SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 
EXTENDED WEST; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG A STRAIGHT LINE, A DISTANCE OF 76.1 
FEET TO A POINT 102.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE 
SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 
EXTENDED WEST; THENCE SOUTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT 43.00 FEET NORTH OF, AS MEASURED 
AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY AND EXTENSION 
THEREOF, AS CONVEYED FROM SAID RAILWAY COMPANY TO THE CITIES SERVICE OIL 

 
Exhibit A-1 



SRD980629.4 2  

COMPANY BY QUIT CLAIM DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963 AND RECORDED MARCH 8, 
1963, AS DOCUMENT 18737524; THENCE WEST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE 
NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963 
TO A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID 
RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST AND DISTANT 
1707.00 FEET WEST OF, AS MEASURED ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE FROM THE 
CENTERLINE OF SAID HARLEM AVENUE; THENCE SOUTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT 
RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST 
OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY 
CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963, EXTENDED WESTERLY; THENCE 
EASTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED 
DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963 AND THE WESTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF (BEING ALSO 
THE NORTH LINE OF PARCEL 5 AND THE EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF) TO THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED BY SAID DEED DATED FEBRUARY 
25, 1963; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE NORTH 
LINE OF SAID FRANKLIN STREET TO A POINT 8.5 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT 
RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE OF SPUR TRACK I.C.C. NO. 367 OF SAID 
RAILWAY COMPANY, AS NOW LOCATED AND ESTABLISHED; THENCE EAST ALONG A 
LINE PARALLEL WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SAID SPUR TRACK, A DISTANCE OF 162.00 
FEET; THENCE NORTH ALONG A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES TO THE SOUTH 
BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED 
WEST, TO A POINT 102.00 FEET SOUTH OF, AS MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE 
SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID RAILWAY COMPANY, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, 
EXTENDED WEST; THENCE EAST ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH 
BOUNDARY LINE, EAST OF HARLEM AVENUE, EXTENDED WEST, A DISTANCE OF 230.00 
FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO A POINT 50.00 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF, AS MEASURED AT 
RIGHT ANGLES FROM THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF THE TRACT OF LAND, AS 
CONVEYED IN SAID DEED DATED FEBRUARY 25, 1963; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 
ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID TRACT OF LAND, A 
DISTANCE OF 81.00 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID 
CIRCLE AVENUE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF 
SAID CIRCLE AVENUE, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 



SRD980629.4 
 

EXHIBIT B 

REVISED PLANS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit B-1 



989250.1  

ORDINANCE O -  - 21 
 

AN ORDINANCE TEMPORARILY AMENDING HOURS OF SALE AND DELIVERY 

OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR IN CLASS A1, A7 AND A8 LIQUOR LICENSED 

ESTABLISHMENTS IN THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, ILLINOIS 
 

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) are 

expressly authorized by Section 4-1 of the Illinois Liquor Control Act of 1934 (235 ILCS 5/4-1) 

to regulate, by general ordinance the number, kind and classification of liquor licenses within the 

Village; and 

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village are further authorized to establish 

regulations and restrictions upon the Village’s local liquor licenses not inconsistent with law as 

the public health, safety and welfare may require; and 

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village find that it is necessary, desirable and 

in the public interest that the Village temporarily amend the hours of operation of certain liquor 

licensed establishments to limit the hours of operation, to reasonably and necessarily respond to 

and address the increasingly frequent events of overcrowding, public disturbances and nuisance 

activities related to late hour drinking establishments. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and the Council of the Village 

of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The  corporate  authorities  hereby  incorporate the foregoing preamble 
 

clauses into this Ordinance. 

 

Section 2. That effective May 1, 2021 to and until December 31, 2021, or as may  be 
 

further modified, repealed or extended by the corporate authorities of the Village, no alcoholic 

liquor shall be sold, delivered, given away or consumed on the premises of Class A1, Class A7 or 

Class A8 Village of Forest Park liquor license holders between the hours of two o’clock (2:00) 



989250.1  

a.m. and seven o’clock (7:00) a.m. on Saturdays and Sundays and between the hours of one o’clock 

(1:00) a.m. and seven o’clock (7:00) a.m. on all other days. 

Section 3. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable;  and 
 

if any section, phrase, or provisions shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such 

declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this sections phrases, or provisions. 

Section 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are 
 

hereby amended to the extent of the conflict. 

 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its  passage, 
 

approval and publication in accordance with law. 
 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 26th day 

of April, 2021. 

 

AYES:   
 

NAYS:   
 

ABSENT:   
 

APPROVED: 
 

 

 
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



985006-1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-  -21 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 

FOREST PARK AND AUTOMOBILE MECHANICS’ LOCAL 701, IAM&AW 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. That  certain  agreement  between  the  Village  of  Forest Park and the 
 

Automobile Mechanics’ Local No. 701, IAM&AW, a copy of which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A,” is hereby approved. 

Section 2. The Mayor and the Village Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to 
 

execute and attest, respectively, said agreement, subject to the prior execution of said agreement 

by representatives of the Automobile Mechanics’ Local No. 701, IAM&AW, and the Participation 

Agreement for the Automobile Mechanics’ Local No. 701 Union and Industry Welfare Fund, a 

copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” 

Resolved this 26th  day of April, 2021. 

 

AYES:    
 

NAYS:    
 

ABSENT:    
 

APPROVED: 
 

 

 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 

and published in pamphlet form 

this  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



985006-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

 



985006-1 
 

EXHIBIT B, 
 

AUTOMOBILE MECHANICS’ LOCAL NO. 701 UNION AND INDUSTRY 

WELFARE FUND PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 



985006-1 
 

 



988230.1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-  -21 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO A PERSONNEL SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK AND METRO PARAMEDIC SERVICES, INC. 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park (the “Village”) and Metro Paramedic Services, Inc. 

(“Metro”) previously entered into and are parties to a Personnel Services Contract, dated April 16, 2020 

(the “Contract”); and 

WHEREAS, the Village and Metro desire to modify certain provisions of the Contract to amend 

the amount to be paid by the Village to Metro for the second year of services to be provided under the 

Contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Village of Forest 

Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park hereby approve a First 

Amendment to Personnel Services Contract between the Village of Forest Park and Metro Paramedic 

Services, Inc., a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “First Amendment”). 

Section 2. The Village President is hereby authorized and directed to execute the First Amendment 

on behalf of the Village. 

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and approval in pamphlet form. 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 26th day of April, 

2021. 
 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT:      
 

APPROVED by me this 26th  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 

and published in pamphlet form 

this  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



988230.1 
 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

First Amendment to Personnel Services Contract 



988230.1 
 

 



988230.1 
 

 



988230.1 
 

 



986804_1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-  -21 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK AND THE COUNTY OF 

COOK FOR 2020 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

PROGRAM YEAR AGREEMENT 

(14th Street - Circle Avenue to Harlem Avenue Resurfacing Project) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park that the Mayor and the Village 

Clerk are hereby directed and authorized to submit the Agreement, with all understandings and 

assurances, and to execute the 2020 Community Development Block Grant Program Year Agreement 

with the County of Cook, Illinois for Project Number 2006-086, a copy of which is on file with the Clerk. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park that the Mayor is 

hereby directed and authorized to execute any and all additional documents necessary to carry out the 

2020 Community Development Block Grant Program for the 14th Street – Circle Avenue to Harlem 

Avenue resurfacing project in the award amount of Two Hundred Thousand ($200,000.00) Dollars, with 

the Village matching obligation of Eighty Thousand ($80,000.00) Dollars. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park that the Village 

Clerk, or her designee, is hereby authorized and directed to deliver two (2) certified copies of this 

Resolution and the Subrecipient Agreement for CDBG Project No. 2006-086 to the County of Cook, 

Illinois. 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, this 26th day of 

April, 2021. 
 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT:    
 

APPROVED by me this 26th  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 
Mayor Rory E. Hoskins 

Attested and filed in my office 

and published in pamphlet form 

this  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



970017.1 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R- _  -21 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

AND THE METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT OF GREATER 

CHICAGO FOR THE PERMEABLE PAVER PARKING LOT PROJECT (510 

DESPLAINES AVENUE) 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park and the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District 

of Greater Chicago are public agencies within the meaning of the Illinois Intergovernmental 

Cooperation Act, as specified in 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., and are authorized by said Act and Article 

VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois to enter into intergovernmental 

agreements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Resolution are 
 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 

Section 2. That certain “Intergovernmental Agreement By and Between the Village 
 

of Forest Park and the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago for the 

Design, Construction, Operation and Maintenance of the Permeable Paver Parking Lot Project in 

the Village of Forest Park” (“Agreement”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit  A, 

is hereby approved. 

 

Section 3. The Village authorizes acceptance of, and further agrees to use the funds 
 

received, pursuant to the Agreement, and that any required Village expenditure under the 

Agreement, be approved. 

Section 4. The Mayor  is hereby authorized  to execute, and the Village  Clerk is 
 

hereby authorized to attest the Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A 



970017.1 
 

with such changes therein as may be approved by the officials executing the same, their 

execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of such changes. 

Section 5. The officers and employees of the Village shall take all action  necessary 
 

or reasonably required by the parties to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions 

contemplated hereby under the Agreement and to take all action necessary in conformity 

therewith, including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of any documents required 

to be delivered in connection with the Agreement. 

Section 6. This  Resolution  shall  be  in  full  force  and  effect  from  and  after  its 
 

passage in the manner provided by law. 
 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 26th 

day of April, 2021. 

 
AYES:     

 

NAYS:     
 

ABSENT:     
 

APPROVED by me this 26th  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 

And published in pamphlet form 

This  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 

 
 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



970017.1  

 

RESOLUTION NO. R- _  -21 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

AND THE METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT OF 

GREATER CHICAGO FOR THE PERMEABLE PAVER PARKING LOT PROJECT 

(510 DESPLAINES AVENUE) 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park and the Metropolitan Water Reclamation  District 

of Greater Chicago are public agencies within the meaning of the Illinois Intergovernmental 

Cooperation Act, as specified in 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., and are authorized by said Act and Article 

VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois to enter  into intergovernmental 

agreements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Resolution are 
 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 

Section 2. That certain “Intergovernmental Agreement By and Between the Village 
 

of Forest Park and the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago for the 

Design, Construction, Operation and Maintenance of the Permeable Paver Parking Lot Project in 

the Village of Forest Park” (“Agreement”), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit   A, 

is hereby approved. 

 

Section 3. The Village authorizes acceptance of, and further agrees to use the funds 
 

received, pursuant to the Agreement, and that any required Village expenditure under the 

Agreement, be approved. 

Section 4. The Mayor  is hereby authorized  to execute, and the     Village  Clerk  is 
 

hereby authorized to attest the Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A 
 

 

 



970017.1  

970017.1 



970017.1  

with such changes therein as may be approved by the officials executing the same, their 

execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of such changes. 

Section 5. The officers and employees of the Village shall take all action  necessary 
 

or reasonably required by the parties to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions 

contemplated hereby under the Agreement and to take all action necessary in conformity 

therewith, including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of any documents required 

to be delivered in connection with the Agreement. 

Section 6. This  Resolution  shall  be  in  full  force  and  effect  from  and  after   its 
 

passage in the manner provided by law. 
 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 26th 

day of April, 2021. 

 

AYES:     
 

NAYS:     
 

ABSENT:     
 

APPROVED by me this 26th  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 

And published in pamphlet form 

This  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 

 
 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 
 

 

 

 

970017.1 



970017.1  

EXHIBIT A 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



970017.1  

970017.1 



970017.1  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF 

FOREST PARK AND THE METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION 

DISTRICT OF GREATER CHICAGO FOR THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, 

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE FOREST PARK PERMEABLE 

PAVER PARKING LOT PROJECT IN FOREST PARK, ILLINOIS 

 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by and 

between the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago, a unit of local 

government and corporate and body politic organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

Illinois (“MWRDGC”), and the Village of Forest Park, an Illinois municipal corporation 

(“Village”). Together, MWRDGC and the Village may be referred to as the “Parties” and each 

individually as a “Party.” 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, on November 17, 2004, Public Act 093-1049 amended the Metropolitan 

Water Reclamation District Act (“Act”) in various ways; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Act, as amended, declares that stormwater management in Cook County, 

Illinois is under the general supervision of MWRDGC; and 

 

WHEREAS, Public Act 098-0652 amended the Act again on June 18, 2014 by specifically 

authorizing MWRDGC to plan, implement, and finance activities relating to local stormwater 

management projects in Cook County; and 

 

WHEREAS, one component of MWRDGC’s stormwater management program includes 

green infrastructure, which is defined as the range of stormwater control measures that use 

plant/soil systems, permeable pavement, stormwater harvest and reuse, or native landscaping to 

store, infiltrate, and/or evapotranspirate stormwater and reduce flows to sewer systems or to 

surface waters as set forth at 33 U.S.C. § 1362 (27); and 

 

WHEREAS, MWRDGC committed to implement a Green Infrastructure Program Plan  in 

conformance with Appendix E, Section II (C) of the consent decree entered into in United States, 

et al., v. Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago, Case No. 1:11-cv- 08859 

(N.D. Ill. 2014), and MWRDGC’s formal commitment in this Agreement is intended to satisfy 

that obligation; and 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 1 



970017.1  

WHEREAS, the Village is located within the boundaries of Cook County, Illinois; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Division 110 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, the 

Village is empowered to construct and maintain green infrastructure and manage water, sewers, 

and stormwater within its corporate limits; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village proposes constructing a permeable parking lot using permeable 

pavers on the Village’s public parking lot located at 510 Desplaines Avenue, Forest Park, Illinois, 

for the public benefit of reducing flooding and providing green infrastructure in the general 

area(“Public Benefit”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the aforementioned green infrastructure installations will provide the total 

design retention capacity set forth in Article 2 and further MWRDGC’s goal of informing the 

public of the value of green infrastructure; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village intends to design, construct, operate, maintain, and own the 

proposed green infrastructure installations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village’s plans to construct the proposed green infrastructure 

installations may be accomplished more effectively, economically, and comprehensively with the 

Village and MWRDGC cooperating and using their joint efforts and resources; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., and   Section 

10 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution, allow and encourage intergovernmental 

cooperation; and 

 

WHEREAS,   on  ,   MWRDGC’s   Board   of   Commissioners 

authorized MWRDGC to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the Village; and 

 

WHEREAS,  on  ,   the   corporate   authorities   of the  Village 

authorized the Village to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with MWRDGC; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained 

in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the Village and MWRDGC agree 

as follows: 

 

21- IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 2 



970017.1  

Article 1. Incorporation of Recitals 

The above recitals are incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

Article 2. Scope of Work 

1. The work contemplated by this Agreement will include design, construction, operation, and 

maintenance of permeable installations on, under, and about the Village’s public parking lot 

located at 510 Desplaines Avenue. These improvements (“Project”) are categorized by 

MWRDGC as “green infrastructure.” 

2. The Village, at its sole cost and expense, will prepare construction drawings, specifications, 

and details (“Construction Documents”) for the Project. 

3. The Project will be constructed to maximize the design retention capacity. The green 

infrastructure components of the Project will be designed to capture at least forty thousand two 

hundred ninety-one (40,291) gallons of stormwater per rain event. 

4. The Project will realize the Public Benefit of helping to alleviate flooding by, among other 

things, routing runoff from impervious tributary area to the green infrastructure installations 

so as to reduce flooding and ponding located within and around the Project area, as shown in 

Exhibit 1. 

5. The Village will provide MWRDGC with a copy of thirty percent (30%), sixty percent (60%), 

and ninety-eight percent (98%) complete Construction Documents for MWRDGC’s approval 

as to the Public Benefit. 

6. Upon execution of this Agreement and until commencement of Project construction, the 

Village will provide monthly updates to MWRDGC on (1) the status and progress of Project 

design; and (2) the schedule for Bid Advertisement and Award for the Project. 

7. MWRDGC will review and provide written comments to the Village as to the Public Benefit 

within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the thirty percent (30%), sixty percent (60%), and 

ninety-eight percent (98%) complete Construction Documents. The Village will incorporate 

MWRDGC’s review comments into the Construction Documents. 

8. Upon award of any Project-related construction contracts, the Village will provide monthly 

updates to MWRDGC as to (1) construction progress; and (2) anticipated timeframes for 

submission of reimbursement requests, with the final request being submitted no later than 

sixty (60) calendar days upon final completion of the construction project. 

 

 
 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 3 



970017.1  

9. After construction, the Village will provide MWRDGC with a copy of as-built drawings and 

related Project documentation, including any addenda, change orders, stormwater-related shop 

drawings, and field changes. 

10. MWRDGC retains the discretion to adjust the amount of its reimbursement commitment if, 

based on MWRDGC’s review of the final Construction Documents—including any addenda, 

change orders, shop drawings, or field changes—it determines that the Project will not provide 

sufficient design retention capacity and the intended Public Benefit. 

11. Although MWRDGC will reimburse the Village for a portion of the Project, the Village  bears 

sole responsibility for the overall cost, expense, and payment for the Project, which the Village 

will construct in accordance with the final Construction Documents. 

12. To the extent practicable, the Village, its agents, contractors, or employees will use 

MWRDGC’s biosolids in any amendments performed to the soil of the Project area,  including 

but not limited to landscaping. Subject to availability, MWRDGC will provide biosolids free 

of charge. The Village may be required to arrange and pay for the transportation necessary to 

deliver the biosolids to the Project area. 

13. The Village will publicly advertise the Project and publicly award all Project-related 

construction contracts to the lowest responsible bidder as determined by the Village. The 

Village will consider and act in general accord with the applicable standards of MWRDGC’s 

Purchasing Act, 70 ILCS 2605/11.1-11.24 (attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 2), when 

advertising and awarding the construction contracts. The Village will also require a payment 

bond and performance bond for all Project-related construction contracts in general accord 

with the applicable standards of Exhibit 2. The Village may impose more stringent 

requirements than those contained in Exhibit 2 when awarding Project-related construction 

contracts, but in no event will the Village’s requirements fall below MWRDGC’s applicable 

general standards. Although the Village need not include the attached Exhibit 2 as part of its 

bid documents, the Village is responsible for ensuring that these applicable minimum 

requirements are met. 

14. The Village agrees that the Project is a “Covered Project” as defined in MWRDGC’s Multi- 

Project Labor Agreement for Cook County (“MPLA”) (attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 

3). As such, the Village agrees to be obligated as MWRDGC would be in the MPLA and will 

ensure that the standards and requirements for “Covered Projects” will be met for the Project, 

 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 4 



970017.1  

as applicable. The Village may impose more stringent requirements than those contained in 

the MPLA when awarding Project-related construction contracts, but in no event will the 

Village’s requirements fall below the standards for “Covered Projects” detailed in it. Although 

the attached Exhibit 3 need not be included as part of the Project’s bid documents, the Village 

is responsible for ensuring that its applicable minimum requirements are met. 

15. The Village must comply with the applicable portions of MWRDGC’s Affirmative Action 

Ordinance and Diversity Policies. Revised Appendix D governs Affirmative Action goal 

requirements for subcontracting with Minority- and Women-owned Small Business 

Enterprises (attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 4). Appendix V governs the diversity policy 

requirements for subcontracting with Veteran-owned Small Business Enterprises (attached to 

this Agreement as Exhibit 5.) Collectively these goals are referred to a “participation goals.” 

16. The Village must meet the following participation goals applicable to the Project before 

construction is completed: 

a. twenty percent (20%) of the total amount of reimbursement provided by MWRDGC 

for the Project must be applied to work performed by Minority-owned Business 

Enterprises (“MBE”); and 

b. ten percent (10%) of the total amount of reimbursement provided by MWRDGC for 

the Project must be applied to work performed by Women-owned Business Enterprises 

(“WBE”); and 

c. ten percent (10%) of the total amount of reimbursement to be provided by MWRDGC 

for the Project must be applied to work performed by Small Business Enterprises 

(“SBE”). 

17. The Village should meet the following participation goal applicable to the Project before 

construction is completed: three percent (3%) of the total amount of reimbursement to be 

provided by MWRDGC for the Project should be applied to work performed by Veteran- 

owned Small Business Enterprise (“VBE”). 

18. The determination as to whether the Village has complied with the requirements of this 

Agreement by attaining MWRDGC’s participation goals is solely in MWRDGC’s discretion. 

If the Village fails to attain each goal as determined by MWRDGC,   MWRDGC 

 

 
 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 5 



970017.1  

may withhold payments to the Village up to or equal to the dollar amount by which the Village 

failed to attain the participation goal(s). 

19. The Village will provide MWRDGC access to inspect, with reasonable notice, any records or 

documentation related to the Village’s compliance with MWRDGC’s participation goals and 

requirements. 

20. To evidence compliance with MWRDGC’s participation goals, the Village must submit the 

following items to MWRDGC’s Diversity Administrator prior to the start of construction: 

(1) a completed Utilization Plan for MBE/WBE/SBE participation, attached to this Agreement 

as Exhibit 6 and a completed VBE Commitment Form, attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 

7; and (2) a current letter from a certifying agency that verifies as appropriate the 

MBE/WBE/SBE/VBE status of each vendor listed as a subcontractor on the MBE/WBE/SBE 

Utilization Plan and/or VBE Commitment Form. A certification letter will be deemed current 

so long as its expiration date is after the date of the Utilization Plan or Commitment Form. 

Failure to timely submit a Utilization Plan, Commitment Form, or certifying letter may result 

in a payment delay and/or denial. 

21. Together with each and every reimbursement request, the Village must submit to MWRDGC 

the following: (1) a MBE/WBE/SBE and VBE Status Report (“Status Report”), attached to 

this Agreement as Exhibit 8; (2) full or partial lien waivers from the participating 

MBE/WBE/SBE/VBE vendors, as applicable; and (3) proof of payment to the participating 

MBE/WBE/SBE/VBE vendors (e.g., canceled checks), as applicable. Failure to submit a 

Status Report and any supporting documentation may result in a payment  delay and/or denial. 

22. The Village will comply with the Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/0.01 et seq. Current 

prevailing wage rates for Cook County are determined by the Illinois Department of Labor. 

The prevailing wage rates are available on the Illinois Department of Labor’s official  website. 

It is the responsibility of the Village to obtain and comply with any revisions to the rates should 

they change throughout the duration of this Agreement. 

23. The Village, at its sole cost and expense, will provide (1) the final design of the Project; (2) 

land acquisition and remediation, if any; and (3) construction oversight and administrative 

support for the Project. 

 

 
 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 6 



970017.1  

24. The Village will submit an Operation and Maintenance Plan ( “O&M Plan”) for MWRDGC’s 

review and approval. The O&M Plan will be included as part of the Agreement as Exhibit 9. 

At its sole cost and expense, the Village will operate and maintain the Project in accordance 

with the O&M Plan. 

25. MWRDGC will reimburse the Village for seventy percent (70.0%) of the total construction 

cost of the Project, but in no event will that amount exceed Two Hundred One Thousand Six 

Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($201,600.00) (the “Maximum Reimbursement Amount”). For 

purposes of this Agreement, “construction” will mean all work necessary to build the Project 

as depicted in the Construction Documents. The Village will be responsible for securing 

funding or contributing its own funds for all costs necessary to construct the Project in 

accordance with the Construction Documents. The Village will be solely responsible for 

change orders, overruns, or any other increases in the cost of the Project. All  funding provided 

by MWRDGC will be exclusively to reimburse the Village for construction of the Project. 

26. MWRDGC will disburse funds to the Village in accordance with the following schedule: 

a. Fifty percent (50%) at receipt of a reimbursement request for fifty percent (50%) 

completion of construction; and 

b. Subject to the Maximum Reimbursement Amount, the remaining amount necessary to 

cover seventy percent (70.0%) of the Project cost will be paid upon receipt of invoices 

for final completion and after final inspection by MWRDGC. 

The Village must submit invoices for the representative percentage of construction within 

thirty (30) calendar days of meeting fifty percent (50%) completion, and within sixty (60) 

calendar days of final completion for the final reimbursement cost. MWRDGC will only pay 

invoices submitted in strict accordance with the foregoing schedule. The District may opt to 

not pay any late reimbursement request or invoices. 

27. MWRDGC’s Maximum Reimbursement Amount under this Agreement is based on the 

funding amount that MWRDGC’s Board of Commissioners approved and appropriated for the 

calendar year in which the Agreement is executed. Any additional funding from MWRDGC 

beyond that which was approved and appropriated for the initial calendar year is subject to the 

approval of MWRDGC’s Board of Commissioners. 

 

 
 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 7 



970017.1  

28. The Village is responsible for all other Project costs including engineering, property 

acquisition, other design-related costs, construction inspection, and the remainder of the 

construction cost that is not reimbursed by MWRDGC. 

29. As a condition for reimbursement, the Village must submit copies of construction invoices to 

MWRDGC for review along with the respective reimbursement requests. 

Article 3. Permits and Fees 

1. Federal, State, and County Requirements. The Village will obtain all federal, state, county, and 

local permits required by law for the construction of the Project and will assume any costs in 

procuring said permits. Additionally, the Village will obtain all consents and approvals 

required by federal, state, and/or county regulations for the construction of the Project and will 

assume any costs incurred in procuring all such consents and approvals. 

2. Operation and Maintenance. The Village will obtain all permits necessary for  the performance 

of any operations or maintenance work associated with the improvements to be constructed by 

the Village in connection with the Project, and in accordance with Article 5 of this Agreement. 

 

Article 4. Property Interests 

1. If the Project Site is located entirely within a right of way or perpetual easement or on other 

property represented to be owned solely by and within the Village, prior to execution of this 

Agreement, the Village must have an enforceable property interest in the Project site and 

provide proof of that interest to MWRDGC. If the Project site is situated entirely in a right of 

way or perpetual easement or on other property owned solely by and within the Village, and 

no proof of dedication, perpetual easement, or ownership is available, the Village  may request 

and submit the form affidavit that MWRDGC will provide, which must be executed by an 

authorized officer of the Village. Acceptance of the affidavit is at MWRDGC’s discretion. 

Exhibit 10 appended to this Agreement contains the executed affidavit or, in the alternative, 

all relevant documentary evidence of dedication, perpetual easement, or ownership. 

2. For all surrounding property impacting or being impacted by the Project, prior to starting 

construction of the Project, the Village will acquire any temporary or permanent easements, 

license agreements, or fee simple title necessary for access to the Project site as well as 

construction and maintenance of the Project. Any property interests acquired by the    Village 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 8 



970017.1  

must be consistent with MWRDGC’s right to access the Project to conduct an inspection or 

perform maintenance as set out in Article 5 of this Agreement. 

3. Should acquisition of property interests via condemnation be necessary, the Village will  incur 

all associated costs, including purchase price and/or easement fee as well as any attorney’s 

fees. 

4. The Village will record all easements, licenses, or deeds acquired for the Project. 

5. The Village will own all the improvements constructed for the Project. Nothing in this 

Agreement creates an ownership or property interest for MWRDGC in any part of the  Project. 

6. The Village may not lease the Project site or property owned by the Village that is necessary 

for construction, maintenance, and access to the Project site, in whole or part, to a third-party 

during the term of the IGA without MWRDGC’s prior written approval. The Village must 

provide MWRDGC with at least sixty (60) days’ written notice of the date on which it intends 

to execute a lease. 

7. The Village may not sell or transfer ownership of the Project site or property owned by the 

Village that is necessary for construction, maintenance, and access to the Project site, in whole 

or part, during the term of the IGA without MWRDGC’s prior written approval. The Village 

must provide MWRDGC with sixty (60) days’ written notice of the date on which it intends to 

sell or transfer the property. 

 

Article 5. Maintenance 

1. The Village, at its sole cost and expense, will perpetually maintain the permeable parking lot 

and any other associated appurtenances in accordance with the O&M plan approved by 

MWRDGC. 

2. The Village must conduct annual inspections to ensure adequate maintenance of the Project. 

The Village will prepare a report detailing its annual inspection, observations, and conclusions 

including whether the Project is operating as designed, functioning, and providing the intended 

Public Benefit. The annual inspection report must either be stamped by a Professional Engineer 

licensed by the State of Illinois or signed by the head of the department responsible for 

maintenance duties. The stamped or signed annual inspection report will be provided to 

MWRDGC within thirty (30) calendar days of completion, and the Village must submit annual 

reports to MWRDGC by December 31st of each following year. 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 9 



970017.1  

3. MWRDGC will have the right (including any necessary right of access) to conduct its own 

annual inspection of the constructed Project upon reasonable notice to the Village. 

4. In the event of failure of the Village to maintain the Project as described above to the 

satisfaction of MWRDGC, MWRDGC may issue a thirty (30) day written notice by certified 

or registered mail or electronic mail to the Village directing the Village to perform such 

maintenance. If maintenance has not been accomplished on or before thirty (30) calendar  days 

after such notice, MWRDGC may cause such maintenance to be performed and the Village 

will pay MWRDGC the entire cost MWRDGC incurred to perform the required maintenance. 

5. In addition to paragraph 4 above, if the MWRDGC determines that the Village has failed to 

maintain the Project’s improvements to provide the intended Public Benefit, MWRDGC may 

require the Village to repay some or all the funding that MWRDGC provided under this 

Agreement. The amount of repayment is at the sole discretion of MWRDGC. 

6. In performing its obligations under this Article, the Village will comply with all access 

restrictions and notice requirements set forth in the easements, licenses, or deeds recorded 

pursuant to Article 4 of this Agreement. 

 

Article 6. Notification 

1. Bid Advertisement. The Village will provide MWRDGC with thirty (30) calendar days’ notice 

prior to Bid Advertisement for the Project. 

2. Construction. The Village will provide MWRDGC with a construction schedule and a 

minimum of seventy-two (72) hours’ notice before the following project milestones: 

 Start of work 

 Substantial completion 

 Completion of work 

 
Article 7. Notification to Residents 

1. Wherever the Project is present and visible to the community, the Village will permanently 

display signs setting forth the following information: “This project is a joint effort between the 

Village of Forest Park and the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago, 

designed to promote the use of green infrastructure as an effective means of stormwater  

management.”  The  signs  will  be  maintained  by the  Village  and  will include 

 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 10 



970017.1  

educational information about the benefits of green infrastructure. MWRDGC will provide 

examples of signage used for similar projects. 

2. The Village will maintain on its website a hyperlink leading to the URL for MWRDGC’s 

website (http://www.mwrd.org). 

3. The Village will advertise on its website—or, alternatively, in newsletters, bills, payment 

receipts, fliers, social media posts, or other mediums, electronic or otherwise—any upcoming 

MWRDGC-affiliated community events that are scheduled to occur within the Village’s 

geographic boundaries or jurisdiction at least two weeks in advance of their scheduled 

occurrence or within two weeks after notice of their scheduled occurrence is transmitted to the 

Village’s representative designated pursuant to Subsection 5 of this Article 7. 

4. Upon request by MWRDGC, the Village will submit to MWRDGC a report detailing the 

following: 

 Any MWRDGC-affiliated community events advertised pursuant to the preceding 

subsection (if none, then the report will so state); and 

 The timeframe during which those advertisements were transmitted; and 

 The mediums employed to transmit those advertisements. 

5. Immediately upon execution of this Agreement the following individuals will represent the 

Parties as a primary contact in all matters under this Article 7—including, but not limited to, 

notices or advertisements of upcoming MWRDGC-affiliated events—and, in addition to the 

individuals named in Article 27 of this Agreement, will be entitled to receipt of notice in all 

matters under this Article 7. 

For the MWRDGC: For the Village: 

Public & Intergovernmental Affairs 

Officer 

Metropolitan Water Reclamation 

District of Greater Chicago 

100 East Erie Street 

Chicago, Illinois 60611 

Phone: (312) 751-6626 

Email: publicaffairsinfo@mwrd.org 

Vanessa Moritz 

Village Clerk 

Village of Forest Park 

517 Desplaines Avenue 

Forest Park, Illinois 60130 

Phone: (708) 366-2323 

Email: vmoritz@forestpark.net 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.mwrd.org/
mailto:publicaffairsinfo@mwrd.org
mailto:vmoritz@forestpark.net


970017.1  

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 11 



970017.1  

Each Party agrees to promptly notify the other Party of any change in its designated 

representative under this Article 7, which notice will include the name, address, telephone 

number, and electronic mail address of the representative for such Party for the purpose of 

providing notice. 

6. The rights, duties, and obligations of this Article 7 - except those set forth in Subsection 1 - 

will automatically terminate upon MWRDGC’s payment of the final installment of any 

payments owed to the Village under the terms of this Agreement, or once two (2) years have 

elapsed since the date on which this Agreement was fully executed by all Parties, whichever 

of those two dates occurs later. 

 

Article 8. Termination by the Village 

Prior to commencement of construction of the Project, the Village may, at its option, and upon 

giving notice to MWRDGC in the manner provided in Article 26 below, terminate this Agreement 

as it pertains to the entire Project. The Village will return all Project-related funds received from 

MWRDGC no later than fourteen (14) calendar days following its termination of the Agreement. 

 

Article 9. Termination by MWRDGC 

1. Prior to Bid Advertisement of the Project, MWRDGC may, at its option, and upon giving 

notice to the Village in the manner provided in Article 26 below, terminate this Agreement as 

it pertains to the entire Project. 

2. MWRDGC may terminate this Agreement if: (a) the Village does not award construction of 

the Project within one (1) year from the date of execution of the IGA; or (b) the Project is not 

completed in accordance with the Construction Documents within two (2) years of the 

Village’s initial award of a construction contract related to the Project. If the MWRDGC elects 

to terminate this Agreement based on expiration of the two (2) year completion period, then 

the Village must return all funds provided by MWRDGC within fourteen (14) calendar days 

of termination. In its sole discretion, MWRDGC may approve an extension prior to the 

expiration of the one (1) year award period or two (2) year completion period for delays outside 

the Village’s control and where the Village made good faith efforts to advance the Project. 

 

 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 12 



970017.1  

Article 10. Effective Date 

This Agreement becomes effective on the date that the last signature is affixed to the signature 

pages. 

 

Article 11. Duration 

Subject to the terms and conditions of Articles 8 and 9 above, this Agreement will remain in full 

force and effect for perpetuity. 

 

Article 12. Non-Assignment 

Neither Party may assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the written consent 

of the other Party. 

 

Article 13. Waiver of Personal Liability 

No official, employee, or agent of either Party to this Agreement will be charged personally by the 

other Party with any liability or expenses of defense incurred as a result of the exercise of any 

rights, privileges, or authority granted in this Agreement, nor will he or she be held personally 

liable under any term or provision of this Agreement, or because of a Party’s execution or 

attempted execution of this Agreement, or because of any breach of this Agreement. 

 

Article 14. Indemnification 

The Village will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless MWRDGC, its Commissioners, officers, 

employees, and other agents (“MWRDGC Party”) from liabilities of every kind,  including losses, 

damages and reasonable costs, payments and expenses (such as, but not limited to, court costs and 

reasonable attorney fees and disbursements), claims, demands, actions, suits, proceedings, 

judgments, or settlements, any or all of which are asserted by  any individual, private entity, or 

public entity against the MWRDGC Party and arise out of or are in any way related to: (1) design, 

construction, or maintenance of the Project that is the subject of this Agreement; or (2) the exercise 

of any right, privilege, or authority granted to the Village under this Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21- IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 13 



970017.1  

Article 15. Representations of the Village 

The Village covenants, represents, and warrants as follows: 

1. The Village has full authority to execute, deliver, and perform or cause to be performed this 

Agreement; and 

2. The individuals signing this Agreement and all other documents executed on behalf of the 

Village are duly authorized to sign on behalf of and to bind the Village; and 

3. The execution and delivery of this Agreement, consummation of the transactions provided  for 

in this Agreement, and the fulfillment of the terms will not result in any breach of any of the 

terms or provisions of or constitute a default under any agreement of the Village or any 

instrument to which the Village is bound or any judgment, decree, or order of any court or 

governmental body or any applicable law, rule, or regulation; and 

4. The Village’s allocated funds as described in Article 2 are separate from and in addition to the 

funds MWRDGC will provide under this Agreement. 

 

Article 16. Representations of MWRDGC 

MWRDGC covenants, represents, and warrants as follows: 

1. MWRDGC has full authority to execute, deliver, and perform or cause to be performed this 

Agreement; and 

2. The individuals signing this Agreement and all other documents executed on behalf of 

MWRDGC are duly authorized to sign on behalf of and to bind MWRDGC; and 

3. The execution and delivery of this Agreement, consummation of the transactions provided  for 

in this Agreement, and the fulfillment of its terms will not result in any breach of any of the 

terms or provisions of or constitute a default under any agreement of MWRDGC or any 

instrument to which MWRDGC is bound or any judgment, decree, or order of any court or 

governmental body or any applicable law, rule, or regulation. 

 

Article 17. Disclaimers 

This Agreement is not intended, nor will it be construed, to confer any rights, privileges, or 

authority not permitted by Illinois law. Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to establish  a 

contractual relationship between MWRDGC and any party other than the Village. 

 

 

 

 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 14 



970017.1  

Article 18. Waivers 

Whenever a Party to this Agreement by proper authority waives the other Party’s performance in 

any respect or waives a requirement or condition to performance, the waiver so granted, whether 

express or implied, will only apply to the particular instance and will not be deemed a waiver for 

subsequent instances of the performance, requirement, or condition. No such waiver will be 

construed as a modification of this Agreement regardless of the number of times the  performance, 

requirement, or condition may have been waived. 

 

Article 19. Severability 

If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, such invalidity, 

illegality, or unenforceability will not affect any other provisions of this Agreement, and this 

Agreement will be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision has never been 

contained herein. The remaining provisions will remain in full force and will not be  affected by 

the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision or by its severance. In lieu of such illegal, invalid, 

or unenforceable provision, there will be added automatically as part of this Agreement a provision 

as similar in its terms to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision as may be possible and 

be legal, valid, and enforceable. 

 

Article 20. Necessary Documents 

Each Party agrees to execute and deliver all further documents, and take all further action 

reasonably necessary, to effectuate the purpose of this Agreement. Upon the completion of the 

Project, the Village will provide MWRDGC with a full-sized copy of “As-Built” drawings for  the 

Project. The drawings will be affixed with the “As-Built” printed mark and must be signed  by 

both the Village resident engineer and the contractor. 

 

Article 21. Compliance with Applicable Laws and Deemed Inclusion of Same 

The Parties agree to observe and comply with all federal, State, and local laws, codes, and 

ordinances applicable to the Project. Provisions required (as of the effective date) by law, 

ordinances, rules, regulations, or executive orders to be inserted in this Agreement are deemed 

inserted in this Agreement whether or not they appear in this Agreement or, upon application by 

either Party, this Agreement will be amended to make the insertions. However, in no event will 

the  failure  to  insert  such  provisions  before  or  after  this  Agreement  is  signed  prevent     its 

 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 15 



970017.1  

enforcement. The Parties to this Agreement will comply with all applicable federal, State, and 

local laws, rules, and regulations in carrying out the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 

including the Equal Opportunity clause set forth in Appendix A to the Illinois Department of 

Human Rights’ regulations, which is incorporated by reference in its entirety as though fully set 

forth in this Agreement. 

 

Article 22. Entire Agreement 

This Agreement, and any exhibits or riders attached hereto, constitute the entire agreement 

between the Parties. No other warranties, inducements, considerations, promises, or interpretations 

may be implied that are not expressly set forth in this Agreement. 

 

Article 23. Amendments 

This Agreement cannot be amended unless it is done so in writing and signed by the authorized 

representatives of both Parties. 

 

Article 24. References to Documents 

All references in this Agreement to any exhibit or document will be deemed to include all 

supplements and/or authorized amendments to any such exhibits or documents to which both 

Parties hereto are privy. 

 

Article 25. Judicial and Administrative Remedies 

The Parties agree that this Agreement and any subsequent Amendment will be governed by, and 

construed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of Illinois in all respects, including 

matters of construction, validity, and performance. The Parties further agree that the proper venue 

to resolve any dispute which may arise out of this Agreement is an appropriate court of competent 

jurisdiction located in Cook County, Illinois. 

The rights and remedies of MWRDGC or the Village will be cumulative, and election by 

MWRDGC or the Village of any single remedy will not constitute a waiver of any other remedy 

that such Party may pursue under this Agreement. 

 

Article 26. Notices 

Unless otherwise stated in this Agreement, all notices given in connection with this Agreement 

will be deemed adequately given only if in writing and addressed to the Party for whom such 

 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 16 



970017.1  

notices are intended at the address set forth below. All notices will be sent by personal delivery, 

overnight messenger service, first class registered or certified mail with postage prepaid and return 

receipt requested, or by electronic mail. A written notice will be deemed to have been given to the 

recipient Party on the earlier of (a) the date it is hand-delivered to the address required by this 

Agreement; (b) with respect to notices sent by overnight courier service, on the next business day 

following deposit with the overnight courier; (c) with respect to notices sent by mail, two calendar 

days (excluding Sundays and federal holidays) following the date it is properly addressed and 

placed in the U.S. Mail, with proper postage prepaid; or (d) with respect to notices sent 

electronically by email, on the date of notification of delivery receipt, if delivery was during 

normal business hours of the recipient, or on the next business day, if delivery was outside normal 

business hours of the recipient. In the heading of all notices, the Parties must identify the project 

by stating as follows: “IGA between the Village of Forest Park and MWRDGC for the 2021 Green 

Parking Lot Project.” 

The Parties must address all notices referred to in this Agreement, or that either Party desires to 

give to the other, as set forth in Article 27 or Article 7, as applicable, unless otherwise specified 

and agreed to by the Parties. 

 

Article 27. Representatives 

Immediately upon execution of this Agreement, the following individuals will represent the Parties 

as primary contacts and must receive notice in all matters under this Agreement. For matters under 

Article 7, notice must also be given to the individuals named in that Article as primary contacts. 

For MWRDGC: For the Village: 

Director of Engineering 

Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of 

Greater Chicago 

100 East Erie Street 

Chicago, Illinois 60611 

Phone: (312) 751-7905 

Email: oconnorc@mwrd.org 

Mayor Rory E. Hoskins 

Village of Forest Park 

517 Desplaines Avenue 

Forest Park, Illinois 60130 

Phone: (708) 615-6200 

Email: mayorhoskins@forestpark.net 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21- IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 17 

mailto:oconnorc@mwrd.org
mailto:mayorhoskins@forestpark.net


970017.1  

 

 

 

Each Party agrees to promptly notify the other Party of any change in its designated representative, 

and provide the new representative’s name, address, telephone number, and email address. 

 

Article 28. Interpretation and Execution 

1. The Parties agree that this Agreement will not be construed against a Party by reason of who 

prepared it. 

2. Each Party agrees to provide a certified copy of the ordinance, bylaw, or other authority 

demonstrating that the person(s) signing this Agreement is/are authorized to do so and that this 

Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Party. 

3. The Parties will execute this Agreement in quadruplicate with original signatures unless the 

Parties otherwise agree. 

 

Article 29. Exhibits and Attachments 

The following Exhibits are attached and incorporated into this Agreement, with amended versions 

attached, as applicable: 

Exhibit 1: Project Vicinity Map and Project Conceptual Drawing 

Exhibit 2: MWRDGC’s Purchasing Act, 70 ILCS 2605/11.1-11.24 

Exhibit 3: MWRDGC’s Multi-Project Labor Agreement (Cook County) with 

Certificate of Compliance (effective date of October 6, 2017) (“MPLA”) 

Exhibit 4: Affirmative Action Ordinance, Revised Appendix D 

Exhibit 5: Veteran’s Business Enterprise Contracting Policy, Appendix V 

Exhibit 6: M/W/SBE Utilization Plan 

Exhibit 7: VBE Commitment Form 

Exhibit 8: Affirmative Action Status Report 

Exhibit 9: Operation and Maintenance Plan, Inspection Log 

Exhibit 10: Project site property interest documents or Affidavit 
 

 

 

 

 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 18 



970017.1  

The Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago and Village of Forest 

Park have executed this Agreement by their authorized officers, duly attested and their seals 

affixed, as of the last attested date. 

 

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

 

BY:    

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 
 

Date    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 19 



970017.1  

METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT OF GREATER CHICAGO 
 

 

 

 

 

Chairman of the Committee on Finance 
 

 

 

 

Executive Director 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 
 

Clerk Date 
 

APPROVED AS TO ENGINEERING AND TECHNICAL MATTERS: 
 

 

 

 

Director of Engineering 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 

 

 

 

Head Assistant Attorney 
 

 

 

 

General Counsel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

21-IGA-08; SRD970015.1 PAGE 20 



970017.1  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

PROJECT VICINITY MAP AND CONCEPTUAL DRAWING 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT 2 

MWRDGC’S PURCHASING ACT 



970017.1  

(70 ILCS 2605/11.1) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.1) 

Sec. 11.1. Sections 11.1 through 11.24 of this amendatory 

Act of 1963 shall be known and may be cited as the "Purchasing 

Act for the Metropolitan Sanitary District of Greater 

Chicago." 

(Source: P.A. 82-1046.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.2) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.2) 

Sec. 11.2. In addition to all the rights, powers, 

privileges, duties and obligations conferred thereon in "An 

Act to create sanitary districts and to remove obstructions in 

the Des Plaines and Illinois rivers", approved May 29, 1889, 

as amended, the Metropolitan Sanitary District of Greater 

Chicago shall have the rights, powers and privileges and shall 

be subject to the duties and obligations conferred thereon by 

this amendatory Act of 1963. 

(Source: Laws 1963, p. 2498.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.3) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.3) 

Sec. 11.3. Except as provided in Sections 11.4 and 11.5, 

all purchase orders or contracts involving amounts in excess 

of the mandatory competitive bid threshold and made by or on 

behalf of the sanitary district for labor, services or work, 

the purchase, lease or sale of personal property, materials, 

equipment or supplies, or the granting of any concession, 

shall be let by free and open competitive bidding after 

advertisement, to the lowest responsible bidder or to the 

highest responsible bidder, as the case may be, depending upon 

whether the sanitary district is to expend or receive money. 

All such purchase orders or contracts which shall involve 

amounts that will not exceed the mandatory competitive bid 

threshold, shall also be let in the manner prescribed above 

whenever practicable, except that after solicitation of bids, 

such purchase orders or contracts may be let in the open 

market, in a manner calculated to insure the best interests of 

the public. The provisions of this section are subject to any 

contrary provisions contained in "An Act concerning the use of 

Illinois mined coal in certain plants and institutions", filed 

July 13, 1937, as heretofore and hereafter amended. For 

purposes of this Section, the "mandatory competitive bid 

threshold" is a dollar amount equal to 0.1% of the total 

general fixed assets of the district as reported in the most 

recent required audit report. In no event, however, shall the 

mandatory competitive bid threshold dollar amount be less than 

$10,000 or more than $40,000. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, the 

sanitary district is expressly authorized to establish such 

procedures as it deems appropriate to comply with state or 

federal regulations as to affirmative action and the 

utilization of small and minority businesses in construction 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

and procurement contracts. 

(Source: P.A. 92-195, eff. 1-1-02.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.4) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.4) 

Sec. 11.4. Contracts which by their nature are not adapted 

to award by competitive bidding, such as, but not only, 

contracts for the services of individuals possessing a high 

degree of professional skill where the ability or fitness of 

the individual plays an important part, contracts for the 

purchase or sale of utilities and contracts for materials 

economically procurable only from a single source of supply 

and leases of real property where the sanitary district is the 

lessee shall not be subject to the competitive bidding 

requirements of this Act. The sanitary district is expressly 

authorized to procure from any federal, state or local 

governmental unit or agency such surplus materials, as may be 

made available without conforming to the competitive bidding 

requirements of this Act. Regular employment contracts, 

whether classified in civil service or not, shall not be 

subject to the competitive bidding requirements of this Act. 

(Source: Laws 1963, p. 2498.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.5) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.5) 

Sec. 11.5. In the event of an emergency affecting the 

public health or safety, so declared by action of the board of 

trustees, which declaration shall describe the nature of the 

injurious effect upon the public health or safety, contracts 

may be let to the extent necessary to resolve such emergency 

without public advertisement. The declaration shall fix the 

date upon which such emergency shall terminate. The date may 

be extended or abridged by the board of trustees as in its 

judgment the circumstances require. 

The executive director appointed in accordance with 

Section 4 of this Act shall authorize in writing and certify 

to the director of procurement and materials management those 

officials or employees of the several departments of the 

sanitary district who may purchase in the open market without 

filing a requisition or estimate therefor, and without 

advertisement, any supplies, materials, equipment or services, 

for immediate delivery to meet bona fide operating emergencies 

where the amount thereof is not in excess of $50,000; 

provided, that the director of procurement and materials 

management shall be notified of such emergency. A full written 

account of any such emergency together with a requisition for 

the materials, supplies, equipment or services required 

therefor shall be submitted immediately by the requisitioning 

agent to the executive director and such report and 

requisition shall be submitted to the director of procurement 

and materials management and shall be open to public 

inspection for a period of at least one year subsequent to the 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

date of such emergency purchase. The exercise of authority in 

respect to purchases for such bona fide operating emergencies 

shall not be dependent upon a declaration of emergency by the 

board of trustees under the first paragraph of this Section. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09; 96-165, eff. 8-10-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.6) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.6) 

Sec. 11.6. The head of each department shall notify the 

director of procurement and materials management of those 

officers and employees authorized to sign requests for 

purchases. Requests for purchases shall be void unless 

executed by an authorized officer or employee and approved by 

the director of procurement and materials management. Requests 

for purchases may be executed, approved and signed manually or 

electronically. 

Officials and employees making requests for purchases 

shall not split or otherwise partition for the purpose of 

evading the competitive bidding requirements of this Act, any 

undertaking involving amounts in excess of the mandatory 

competitive bid threshold. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.7) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.7) 

Sec. 11.7. All proposals to award purchase orders or 

contracts involving amounts in excess of the mandatory 

competitive bid threshold shall be published at least 12 

calendar days in advance of the date announced for the 

receiving of bids, in a secular English language newspaper of 

general circulation in said sanitary district and shall be 

posted simultaneously on readily accessible bulletin boards in 

the principal office of the sanitary district. Nothing 

contained in this section shall be construed to prohibit the 

placing of additional advertisements in recognized trade 

journals. Advertisements for bids shall describe the character 

of the proposed contract or agreement in sufficient detail 

either in the advertisement itself or by reference to plans, 

specifications or other detail on file at the time of 

publication of the first announcement, to enable the bidders 

to know what their obligation will be. The advertisement shall 

also state the date, time and place assigned for the opening 

of bids. No bids shall be received at any time subsequent to 

the time indicated in the announcement; however, an extension 

of time may be granted for the opening of such bids upon 

publication in the same newspaper of general circulation in 

said sanitary district stating the date to which bid opening 

has been extended. The time of the extended bid opening shall 

not be less than 5 days after publication, Sundays and legal 

holidays excluded. 

Cash, cashier's check or a certified check payable to the 

clerk and drawn upon a bank, as a deposit of good faith, in a 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

reasonable amount not in excess of 10% of the contract amount, 

may be required of each bidder by the director of procurement 

and materials management on all bids involving amounts in 

excess of the mandatory competitive bid threshold. If a 

deposit is required, the advertisement for bids shall so 

specify. Instead of a deposit, the director of procurement and 

materials management may allow the use of a bid bond if the 

bond is issued by a surety company that is listed in the 

Federal Register and is authorized to do business in the State 

of Illinois. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.8) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.8) 

Sec. 11.8. Any agreement or collusion among bidders or 

prospective bidders in restraint of freedom of competition by 

agreement to bid a fixed price, or otherwise, shall render the 

bids of such bidder void. Each bidder shall accompany his bid 

with a sworn statement, or otherwise swear or affirm, that he 

has not been a party to any such agreement or collusion. Any 

disclosure in advance of the opening of bids, on the terms of 

the bids submitted in response to an advertisement, made or 

permitted by the director of procurement and materials 

management or any officer or employee of said sanitary 

district shall render the proceedings void and shall require 

re-advertisement and re-award. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.9) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.9) 

Sec. 11.9. All sealed bids shall be publicly opened by the 

director of procurement and materials management, or his 

designee, and such bids shall be open to public inspection for 

a period of at least 48 hours before award is made; provided, 

this provision shall not apply to the sale of bonds, tax 

anticipation warrants or other financial obligations of the 

sanitary district. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.10) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.10) 

Sec. 11.10. Every contract or purchase order involving 

amounts in excess of the mandatory competitive bid threshold 

shall be signed by the president or other duly authorized 

officer of the board of commissioners, by the executive 

director, by the clerk and by the director of procurement and 

materials management. Each bid with the name of the bidder 

shall be entered upon a record which shall be open to public 

inspection in the office of the director of procurement and 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

materials management. After the award is made, the bids shall 

be entered in the official records of the board of 

commissioners. 

All purchase orders or contracts involving amounts that 

will not exceed the mandatory competitive bid threshold shall 

be let by the director of procurement and materials 

management. They shall be signed by the director of 

procurement and materials management and the clerk. All 

records pertaining to such awards shall be open to public 

inspection for a period of at least one year subsequent to the 

date of the award. 

An official copy of each awarded purchase order or 

contract together with all necessary attachments thereto, 

including assignments and written consent of the director of 

procurement and materials management shall be retained by the 

director of procurement and materials management in an 

appropriate file open to the public for such period of time 

after termination of contract during which action against the 

municipality might ensue under applicable laws of limitation. 

Certified copies of all completed contracts and purchase 

orders shall be filed with the clerk. After the appropriate 

period, purchase orders, contracts and attachments in the 

clerk's possession may be destroyed by direction of the 

director of procurement and materials management. 

The provisions of this Act are not applicable to joint 

purchases of personal property, supplies and services made by 

governmental units in accordance with Sections 1 through 5 of 

"An Act authorizing certain governmental units to purchase 

personal property, supplies and services jointly," approved 

August 15, 1961. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.11) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.11) 

Sec. 11.11. In determining the responsibility of any 

bidder, the director of procurement and materials management 

may take into account, in addition to financial 

responsibility, past records of transactions with the bidder, 

experience, adequacy of equipment, ability to complete 

performance within a specific time and other pertinent 

factors, including but not limited to whether the equipment or 

material is manufactured in North America. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.12) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.12) 

Sec. 11.12. Any and all bids received in response to an 

advertisement may be rejected by the director of procurement 

and materials management if the bidders are not deemed 

responsible, or the character or quality of the services, 

supplies, materials, equipment or labor do not conform to 

requirements, or if the public interest may be better served 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

thereby. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.13) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.13) 

Sec. 11.13. Bond, with sufficient sureties, in such amount 

as shall be deemed adequate by the director of procurement and 

materials management not only to insure performance of the 

contract in the time and manner specified in said contract but 

also to save, indemnify and keep harmless the sanitary 

district against all liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses which may in anywise accrue against said sanitary 

district in consequence of the granting of the contract or 

execution thereof shall be required for all contracts relative 

to construction, rehabilitation or repair of any of the works 

of the sanitary district and may be required of each bidder 

upon all other contracts in excess of the mandatory 

competitive bid threshold when, in the opinion of the director 

of procurement and materials management, the public interest 

will be better served thereby. 

In accordance with the provisions of "An Act in relation 

to bonds of contractors entering into contracts for public 

construction", approved June 20, 1931, as amended, all 

contracts for construction work, to which the sanitary 

district is a party, shall require that the contractor furnish 

bond guaranteeing payment for materials and labor utilized in 

the contract. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.14) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.14) 

Sec. 11.14. No contract to which the sanitary district is 

a party shall be assigned by the successful bidder without the 

written consent of the director of procurement and materials 

management. In no event shall a contract or any part thereof 

be assigned to a bidder who has been declared not to be a 

responsible bidder in the consideration of bids submitted upon 

the particular contract. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.15) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.15) 

Sec. 11.15. No person shall be employed upon contracts for 

work to be done by any such sanitary district unless he or she 

is a citizen of the United States, a national of the United 

States under Section 1401 of Title 8 of the United States 

Code, an alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence under 

Section 1101 of Title 8 of the United States Code, an 

individual who has been granted asylum under Section 1158 of 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

Title 8 of the United States Code, or an individual who is 

otherwise legally authorized to work in the United States. 

(Source: P.A. 98-280, eff. 8-9-13; 99-231, eff. 8-3-15.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.16) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.16) 

Sec. 11.16. The executive director, with the advice and 

consent of the board of trustees, shall appoint the director 

of procurement and materials management. Any person appointed 

as the director of procurement and materials management must 

have served at least 5 years in a responsible executive 

capacity requiring knowledge and experience in large scale 

purchasing activities. 

In making the appointment, the president shall appoint an 

advisory committee consisting of 5 persons, one of whom shall 

be the executive director, which advisory board shall submit 

not fewer than 3 names to the general superintendent for the 

appointment. The executive director shall make the appointment 

from nominees submitted by the Advisory Committee after giving 

due consideration to each nominee's executive experience and 

his ability to properly and effectively discharge the duties 

of the director of procurement and materials management. 

The director of procurement and materials management may 

be removed for cause by the executive director. He is entitled 

to a public hearing before the executive director prior to 

such anticipated removal. The director of procurement and 

materials management is entitled to counsel of his own choice. 

The executive director shall notify the board of trustees of 

the date, time, place and nature of each hearing and he shall 

invite the board to appear at each hearing. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.17) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.17) 

Sec. 11.17. Powers of director of procurement and 

materials management. The director of procurement and 

materials management shall: (a) adopt, promulgate and from 

time to time revise rules and regulations for the proper 

conduct of his office; (b) constitute the agent of the 

sanitary district in contracting for labor, materials, 

services, or work, the purchase, lease or sale of personal 

property, materials, equipment or supplies in conformity with 

this Act; (c) open all sealed bids; (d) determine the lowest 

or highest responsible bidder, as the case may be; (e) enforce 

written specifications describing standards established 

pursuant to this Act; (f) operate or require such physical, 

chemical or other tests as may be necessary to insure 

conformity to such specifications with respect to quality of 

materials; (g) exercise or require such control as may be 

necessary to insure conformity to contract provisions with 

respect to quantity; (h) distribute or cause to be 

distributed, to the various requisitioning agencies of such 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

sanitary district such supplies, materials or equipment, as 

may be purchased by him; (i) transfer materials, supplies, and 

equipment to or between the various requisitioning agencies 

and to trade in, sell, donate, or dispose of any materials, 

supplies, or equipment that may become surplus, obsolete, or 

unusable; except that materials, supplies, and equipment may 

be donated only to not-for-profit institutions; (j) control 

and maintain adequate inventories and inventory records of all 

stocks of materials, supplies and equipment of common usage 

contained in any central or principal storeroom, stockyard or 

warehouse of the sanitary district; (k) assume such related 

activities as may be assigned to him from time to time by the 

board of trustees; and (m) submit to the board of trustees an 

annual report describing the activities of his office. The 

report shall be placed upon the official records of the 

sanitary district or given comparable public distribution. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.18) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.18) 

Sec. 11.18. The board of trustees is expressly authorized 

to establish a revolving fund to enable the director of 

procurement and materials management to purchase items of 

common usage in advance of immediate need. The revolving fund 

shall be reimbursed from appropriations of the using agencies. 

No officer or employee of a sanitary district organized 

pursuant to this Act shall be financially interested, directly 

or indirectly, in any bid, purchase order, lease or contract 

to which such sanitary district is a party. For purposes of 

this Section an officer or employee of the sanitary district 

is deemed to have a direct financial interest in a bid, 

purchase order, lease or contract with the district, if the 

officer or employee is employed by the district and is 

simultaneously employed by a person or corporation that is a 

party to any bid, purchase order, lease or contract with the 

sanitary district. 

Any officer or employee convicted of a violation of this 

section shall forfeit his office or employment and in addition 

shall be guilty of a Class 4 felony. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.19) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.19) 

Sec. 11.19. No department, office, agency or 

instrumentality, officer or employe of the sanitary district, 

shall be empowered to execute any purchase order or contract 

except as expressly authorized by this Act. 

(Source: Laws 1963, p. 2498.) 

 

 

 

 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

(70 ILCS 2605/11.19a) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.19a) 

Sec. 11.19a. Purchases made pursuant to this Act shall be 

made in compliance with the "Local Government Prompt Payment 

Act", approved by the Eighty-fourth General Assembly. 

(Source: P.A. 84-731.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.20) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.20) 

Sec. 11.20. There shall be a board of standardization, 

composed of the director of procurement and materials 

management of the sanitary district who shall be chairman, and 

4 other members who shall be appointed by the president of the 

board of trustees of the sanitary district. The members shall 

be responsible heads of a major office or department of the 

sanitary district and shall receive no compensation for their 

services on the board. The board shall meet at least once each 

3 calendar months upon notification by the chairman at least 5 

days in advance of the date announced for such meeting. 

Official action of the board shall require the vote of a 

majority of all members of the board. The chairman shall cause 

to be prepared a report describing the proceedings of each 

meeting. The report shall be transmitted to each member and 

shall be made available to the president and board of trustees 

of such sanitary district within 5 days subsequent to the date 

of the meeting and all such reports shall be open to public 

inspection, excluding Sundays and legal holidays. 

The board of standardization shall: (a) classify the 

requirements of the sanitary district, including the 

departments, offices and other boards thereof, with respect to 

supplies, materials and equipment; (b) adopt as standards, the 

smallest numbers of the various qualities, sizes and varieties 

of such supplies, materials and equipment as may be consistent 

with the efficient operation of the sanitary district; and (c) 

prepare, adopt, promulgate, and from time to time revise, 

written specifications describing such standards. 

Specifications describing in detail the physical, chemical 

and other characteristics of supplies, material or equipment 

to be acquired by purchase order or contract shall be prepared 

by the board of standardization. However, all specifications 

pertaining to the construction, alteration, rehabilitation or 

repair of any real property of such sanitary district shall be 

prepared by the engineering agency engaged in the design of 

such construction, alteration, rehabilitation or repair, prior 

to approval by the director of procurement and materials 

management. The specification shall form a part of the 

purchase order or contract, and the performance of all such 

contracts shall be supervised by the engineering agency 

designated in the contracts. 

In the preparation or revision of standard specifications 

the board of standardization shall solicit the advice, 

assistance and cooperation of the several requisitioning 

agencies and shall be empowered to consult such public or non- 

public laboratory or technical services as may be deemed 

expedient. After adoption, each standard specification shall, 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

until rescinded, apply alike in terms and effect to every 

purchase order or contract for the purchase of any commodity, 

material, supply or equipment. The specifications shall be 

made available to the public upon request. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.21) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.21) 

Sec. 11.21. Official ordinances authorized by this Act 

shall be adopted by formal action of the board of trustees of 

the sanitary district and shall be published for the 

information of the public. 

(Source: Laws 1963, p. 2498.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.22) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.22) 

Sec. 11.22. Any purchase order or contract executed in 

violation of this Act shall be null and void. Public funds 

which have been expended thereon, may be recovered in the name 

of the sanitary district in any court of competent 

jurisdiction. 

(Source: Laws 1963, p. 2498.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.23) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.23) 

Sec. 11.23. The comptroller of the sanitary district shall 

conduct audits of all expenditures incident to all purchase 

orders and contracts awarded by the director of procurement 

and materials management. The comptroller shall report the 

results of such audits to the president and board of trustees. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

(70 ILCS 2605/11.24) (from Ch. 42, par. 331.24) 

Sec. 11.24. (a) A person or business entity shall be 

disqualified from doing business with The Metropolitan 

Sanitary District of Greater Chicago for a period of 5 years 

from the date of conviction or entry of a plea or admission of 

guilt, if that person or business entity: 

1. has been convicted of an act of bribery or 
attempting to bribe an officer or employee of the federal 

government or of a unit of any state or local government 

or school district in that officer's or employee's 

official capacity; or 

2. has been convicted of an act of bid-rigging or 
attempting to rig bids as defined in the Federal Sherman 

Anti-Trust Act and Clayton Act; or 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

3. has been convicted of bid-rigging or attempting 
to rig bids under the laws of the State of Illinois or any 

other state; or 

4. has been convicted of an act of price-fixing or 
attempting to fix prices as defined by the Federal Sherman 

Anti-Trust Act and Clayton Act; or 

5. has been convicted of price-fixing or attempting 
to fix prices under the laws of the State of Illinois or 

any other state; or 

6. has been convicted of defrauding or attempting to 
defraud the Federal government or a unit of any state or 

local government or school district; or 

7. has made an admission of guilt of such conduct as 
set forth in subsections 1 through 6 above, which 

admission is a matter of record, whether or not such 

person or business entity was subject to prosecution for 

the offense or offenses admitted to; or 

8. has entered a plea of nolo contendere to charges 
of bribery, price-fixing, bid-rigging, or fraud as set 

forth in subsections 1 through 6 above. 

(b) "Business entity" as used in this section means a 
corporation, partnership, trust, association, unincorporated 

business or individually owned business. 

(c) A business entity shall be disqualified if the 
following persons are convicted of, have made an admission of 

guilt, or enter a plea of nolo contendere to a disqualifying 

act described in paragraph (a), subsections 1 through 6, 

regardless of whether or not the disqualifying act was 

committed on behalf or for the benefit of such business 

entity: 

(1) a person owning or controlling, directly or 
indirectly, 20% or more of its outstanding shares; or 

(2) a member of its board of directors; or 
(3) an agent, officer or employee of such business 

entity. 

(d) Disqualification Procedure. After bids are received, 
whether in response to a solicitation for bids or public 

advertising for bids, if it shall come to the attention of the 

director of procurement and materials management that a bidder 

has been convicted, made an admission of guilt, a plea of nolo 

contendere, or otherwise falls within one or more of the 

categories set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) of this 

Section, the director of procurement and materials management 

shall notify the bidder by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, that such bidder is disqualified from doing 

business with the Sanitary District. The notice shall specify 

the reasons for disqualification. 

(e) Review Board. A review board consisting of 3 
individuals shall be appointed by the Executive Director of 

the Sanitary District. The board shall select a chairman from 

its own members. A majority of the members shall constitute a 

quorum and all matters coming before the board shall be 

determined by a majority. All members of the review board 

shall serve without compensation, but shall be reimbursed 

actual expenses. 

(f) Review. The director of procurement and materials 
management's determination of disqualification shall be final 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

as of the date of the notice of disqualification unless, 

within 10 calendar days thereafter, the disqualified bidder 

files with the director of procurement and materials 

management a notice of appeal. The notice of appeal shall 

specify the exceptions to the director of procurement and 

materials management's determination and shall include a 

request for a hearing, if one is desired. Upon receipt of the 

notice of appeal, the director of procurement and materials 

management shall provide a copy to each member of the review 

board. If the notice does not contain a request for a hearing, 

the director of procurement and materials management may 

request one within 5 days after receipt of the notice of 

appeal. If a hearing is not requested, the review board may, 

but need not, hold a hearing. 

If a hearing is not requested, the review board, unless it 

decides to hold a hearing, shall review the notice of 

disqualification, the notice of appeal and any other 

supporting documents which may be filed by either party. 

Within 15 days after the notice of appeal is filed, the review 

board shall either affirm or reverse the director of 

procurement and materials management's determination of 

disqualification and shall transmit a copy to each party by 

certified mail, return receipt requested. 

If there is a hearing, the hearing shall commence within 

15 days after the filing of the notice of appeal. A notice of 

hearing shall be transmitted to the director of procurement 

and materials management and the disqualified bidder not later 

than 12 calendar days prior to the hearing date, by certified 

mail, return receipt requested. 

Evidence shall be limited to the factual issues involved. 

Either party may present evidence and persons with relevant 

information may testify, under oath, before a certified 

reporter. Strict rules of evidence shall not apply to the 

proceedings, but the review board shall strive to elicit the 

facts fully and in credible form. The disqualified bidder may 

be represented by an attorney. 

Within 10 calendar days after the conclusion of the 

hearing, the review board shall make a finding as to whether 

or not the reasons given in the director of procurement and 

materials management's notice of disqualification apply to the 

bidder, and an appropriate order shall be entered. A copy of 

the order shall be transmitted to the director of procurement 

and materials management and the bidder by certified mail, 

return receipt requested. 

(g) All final decisions of the review board shall be 
subject to review under the Administrative Review Law. 

(h) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section to 
the contrary, the Sanitary District may do business with any 

person or business entity when it is determined by the 

director of procurement and materials management to be in the 

best interest of the Sanitary District, such as, but not 

limited to contracts for materials or services economically 

procurable only from a single source. 

(Source: P.A. 95-923, eff. 1-1-09.) 

 

 

 

 

Version 2-1-16 



970017.1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 3 
 

MWRDGC’S MULTI-PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT (MPLA) 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

Contract No.    

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 
WITH MULTI‐PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT (MPLA) 

 
I (name of Company) hereby acknowledge that I have read the Metropolitan Water 

Reclamation District of Greater Chicago’s 2017 Multi Project Labor Agreement (MPLA). I certify that my company and all 

subcontractors are in compliance with the MPLA in that my company and all subcontractors agree to be bound by and 

operate under a current collective bargaining agreement with a union or labor organization affiliate with the AFL‐CIO 

Building Trades Department and the Chicago and Cook County Building and Construction Trades Council , or their affiliates 

which have jurisdiction over the work to be performed pursuant to this Contract, (hereinafter referred to as a 

“participating trade group”) for all applicable work. 

My company is currently a signatory with the following trade groups: 

(e.g. Operating Engineers 150)  
 
 

 

If bidder is not currently signatory with a participating union or labor organization, complete one of the following: 

   The work to be performed by my company will occur at the company’s facility and is exempt from the application 

of the MPLA. All other work for which the MPLA is applicable will be performed by signatories to the following 

participating trade groups:    

 
 

(Identify all such participating unions or labor organizations. Attach a separate sheet if necessary). 
 

 

   I commit to comply with the MPLA by entering into a collective bargaining agreement with the following 

participating trade group(s):    

 
 

(Identify all such participating unions or labor organizations. Attach a separate sheet if necessary). 
 
 
 

Name of Company 
 
 

By:    

Signature of Authorized Officer 
 

Attest:     

Secretary 
 

Dated:     
 
 

Revised: October 2019 

MPLA‐CC‐49 



970017.1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 4 
 

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION ORDINANCE, REVISED APPENDIX D 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT 5 
 
VETERAN’S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE CONTRACTING POLICY, APPENDIX V 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT  6 

M/W/SBE UTILIZATION PLAN 



970017.1  

REVISED JUNE, 2015 

 

METROPOLITAN WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT OF GREATER 
CHICAGO 

 

 

MBE, WBE, SBE UTILIZATION PLAN 
 

 

For Local and Small business entities - Definitions for terms used below can be found in Appendix 

D: MBE - Section 5(s); WBE - Section 5(cc); SBE - Section 5(w). 
 

NOTE:  The Bidder shall  submit with the Bid, originals or facsimile copies    of all 

MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent furnished to all MBEs, WBEs, and SBEs. 

IF A BIDDER FAILS TO INCLUDE signed copies of the MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan 

and all signed MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent with its bid, said bid will be 

deemed nonresponsive and rejected. 

 
All Bidders must sign the signature page UP-5 of the 

Utilization Plan, even if a waiver is requested. 

 
Name of Bidder:     

 

 

Contract No.:    

 

 

Affirmative Action Contact & Phone No.:    

 

 

E-Mail Address:    

 

 

Total Bid:     

 

 

MBE, WBE, SBE UTILIZATION PLAN AND ALL SIGNED MBE, WBE, SBE 
SUBCONTRACTOR’S LETTER OF INTENT MUST BE COMPLETED, SIGNED AND 

ACCOMPANY YOUR BID!!! 



970017.1  

The bidder should indicate on the Utilization Plan explicitly if the dollar amounts for the MBE participation will also be counted toward the 

achievement of its SBE participation. See Affirmative Action Ordinance, Revised Appendix D, Section 11, Counting MBE, WBE and SBE 

Participation towards Contract Goals. (a) (b) (c) 

MBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of MBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number: Email Address:     

Address:   

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:     

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:   

Total Dollar Amount Participation:    
 

If the MBE participation will be counted towards the 

achievement of the SBE goal please indicate here: 

YES NO 
 

  The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  
 

MBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of MBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number: Email Address:     

Address:   

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:     

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:   

Total Dollar Amount Participation:    
 

If the MBE participation will be counted towards the 
achievement of the SBE goal please indicate here: 

YES NO 
 

  The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  
 

MBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of MBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number: Email Address:     

Address:   

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:     

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:   

Total Dollar Amount Participation:    
 

If the MBE participation will be counted towards the 

achievement of the SBE goal please indicate here: 

YES NO 

 

  The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  

(Attach additional sheets as needed) 

 

 

UP-2 



970017.1  

The bidder should indicate on the Utilization Plan explicitly if the dollar amounts for the WBE participation will also be counted toward the 

achievement of its SBE participation. See Affirmative Action Ordinance, Revised Appendix D, Section 11, Counting MBE, WBE and SBE 

Participation towards Contract Goals. (a) (b) (c) 

WBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of WBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number: Email Address:     

Address:   

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:     

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:   

Total Dollar Amount Participation:    
 

If the WBE participation will be counted towards the 

achievement of the SBE goal please indicate here: 

YES NO 
 

  The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  
 

WBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of WBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number: Email Address:     

Address:   

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:     

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:   

Total Dollar Amount Participation:    
 

If the WBE participation will be counted towards the 
achievement of the SBE goal please indicate here: 

YES NO 
 

  The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  
 

WBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of WBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number: Email Address:     

Address:   

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:     

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:   

Total Dollar Amount Participation:    
 

If the WBE participation will be counted towards the 

achievement of the SBE goal please indicate here: 

YES NO 
 

(Attach additional sheets as needed) 

 

 

 

 

UP-3 

The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! ! 



970017.1  

SBE UTILIZATION 

 

Name of SBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number: Email Address:     

Address:   

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:     

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:   

Total Dollar Amount Participation:    

 

 

 
 

 

SBE UTILIZATION 
 

Name of SBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number: Email Address:     

Address:   

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:     

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:   

Total Dollar Amount Participation:    

 

 

 
 

 

SBE UTILIZATION 
 

Name of SBE and contact person:     

Business Phone Number: Email Address:     

Address:   

Description of Work, Services or Supplies to be provided:     

 

CONTRACT ITEM NO.:   

Total Dollar Amount Participation:    

(Attach additional sheets as needed) 
 

  The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

UP-4 

The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! ! 

The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! ! 



970017.1  

SIGNATURE SECTION 

 
On Behalf of I/We hereby acknowledge that 

(name of company) 

I/WE have read Revised Appendix D, will comply with the provisions of Revised Appendix D, and intend to use the 

MBEs, WBEs, and SBEs listed above in the performance of this contract and/or have completed the Waiver Request 

Form. To the best of my knowledge, information and belief, the facts and representations contained in this Exhibit are 

true, and no material facts have been omitted. 

 

I do solemnly declare and affirm under penalties of perjury that the contents of the foregoing 

document are true and correct, and that I am authorized, on behalf of the bidder, to make this 

affidavit. 
 

 

 

Date Signature of Authorized officer 
 

 

ATTEST: 

Print name and title 
 

 

 

Secretary 
 

Phone number 

1) The Bidder is required to sign and execute this page, EVEN 
IF A WAIVER IS BEING REQUESTED. 

 

2) Failure to do so will result in a nonresponsive bid 

and rejection of the bid. 
 

3) If a waiver is requested, the bidder must also 

complete the following “WAIVER REQUEST 

FORM.” 
 

  The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  

 

 

 

 

UP-5 



970017.1  

WAIVER REQUEST FORM 

If a waiver is requested, the Bidder is required to sign 

and execute this page. 
 

Contract No.:    
 

Name of Bidder:    
 

Contact Person and Phone Number:    

With respect to the contract specified above, the Bidder hereby requests a 

total or partial waiver of the requirement that, pursuant to Section 12 (a)- 

(d) of the Affirmative Action Ordinance, Revised Appendix D, it files a MBE, 

WBE, SBE Utilization Plan or achieve a particular goal for MBE, WBE, SBE 

participation in the contract. The reasons for the request are as follows: 
 

 

 

 

 

On Behalf of I/We hereby acknowledge that 
(name of company) 

I/WE have read Affirmative Action Ordinance, Revised Appendix D, will comply with the provisions of Affirmative 

Action Ordinance, Revised Appendix D, and intend to use the MBEs, WBEs, and SBEs listed in the MBE, WBE, SBE 

Utilization Plan in the performance of this contract and have completed the Waiver Request Form. To the best of my 

knowledge, information and belief, the facts and representations contained in this Waiver Request Form are true, and 

no material facts have been omitted. 

 
I do solemnly declare and affirm under penalties of perjury that the contents of the foregoing document are true and 

correct, and that I am authorized, on behalf of the contractor, to make this affidavit. 

 
 

Date Signature of Authorized officer 
 

ATTEST: 

Print name and title 

 
 

 

Secretary  
 

Phone number 

NOTE TO BIDDERS 

All Waiver requests are evaluated carefully by the District. The 

evaluation is based on your firm’s documented GOOD FAITH 

EFFORTS. 

The GOOD FAITH EFFORTS MUST be 

Undertaken PRIOR to your bid submittal to the District. 

Good Faith Efforts are identified on pp. D15–D16, 

Section 12. Utilization Plan Submission (e), (i)(i)-(xi). 

 

 

UP-6 

The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! ! 



970017.1  

MBE, WBE, SBE SUBCONTRACTOR’S LETTER OF INTENT 

To: (Name of Bidder)  and the MWRDGC 

RE: Contract Name:(Insert Name)    

Contract Number: (Insert Number)   

From: (Name of MBE/WBE/SBE Firm)    MBE:  Yes 

WBE:  Yes 

SBE: Yes     

No   

No   

No     

The MBE/WBE status of the undersigned is confirmed by the attached letter of 

Certification. A certification letter must be attached hereto. 

The undersigned is prepared to provide the following described services or 

supply the following described goods in connection with the above named 

project/contract: 

 
 

 

If more space is needed to fully describe the MBE/WBE/SBE firms’ proposed 

scope of work and/or payment schedule, attach additional sheets. 

The above described performance is offered for the following total price: 

$    

(Written in Figures) (Written in Words) 

In the event of a discrepancy between the “Written in Words” price and the 

“Written in Figures” price, the “Written in Words” price shall govern.” 

The undersigned will enter into a formal written agreement for the above work 

with the Prime Contractor, conditioned upon the execution of a contract by  the 

Prime contractor with the MWRDGC. 

 

(Signature of Owner, President or Authorized Agent of MBE/WBE/SBE) 

 

Name/Title (Print) 

Date  Phone   

THIS SIGNED DOCUMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH THE BID. 

FAILURE TO DO SO WILL RESULT IN A NONRESPONSIVE BID AND REJECTION 

OF THE BID. 

All bidders shall submit with the Bid, copies of MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent in paper form with 

signatures, which were furnished to each MBE, WBE, and SBE listed in its MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and 

must be submitted to the District with its bid as part of its bid packet with either a copy of each MBE, WBE, and SBE 

current Letter of Certification from a state or local government or agency or documentation demonstrating that the 

MBE, WBE, SBE is a MBE, WBE or SBE within the meaning of this Revised Appendix D. Failure to submit   the 

MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent signed by each MBE, WBE, SBE subcontractor will be viewed as 

nonresponsive and the bid will be rejected. All MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent must conform to 

the MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan submitted with the bid. An original or facsimile copy of MBE, WBE, SBE 

Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent will be acceptable. 

  The MBE, WBE, SBE Utilization Plan and the MBE, WBE, SBE Subcontractor’s Letter of Intent MUST Accompany the Bid! ! !  

 

 

 

 

 

UP-7 



970017.1  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 
 

VBE COMMITMENT FORM 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT 8 
 

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION STATUS REPORT 



970017.1  

AFFIDAVIT - AFFIRMATIVE ACTION STATUS REPORT 
Notice: This report is required to be submitted at 25%, 50%, 75%, and 100% completion of construction. 

Contract Title:            

Contract Number:         

Prime Contractor’s Name:           

Prime’s Contact Name:     Estimated Completion Date:      

Prime’s Contact Phone #: ( )     Status Report No.:  25%  -  50%  -  75%  - 100% 
(CIRCLE ONE) 

In connection with the above-captioned contract: 

For each MBE, WBE, and SBE subcontractor, including third tier contracts awarded by your MBE/WBE/SBE company, 

describe the work or goods or services provided in relation to this contract (indicate line items, if applicable) performed 

during the report period. 

 

MBE, WBE, and SBE Subcontractor MBE / WBE 

/ SBE 

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT AMOUNT PAID TO DATE 

    

DESCRIPTION OF 
WORK/SERVICES AND/OR 

GOODS PROVIDED. BE 
SPECIFIC. 

 

 

 

MBE, WBE, and SBE Subcontractor MBE / WBE 

/ SBE 

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT AMOUNT PAID TO DATE 

    

DESCRIPTION OF 
WORK/SERVICES AND/OR 

GOODS PROVIDED. BE 
SPECIFIC. 

 

 

 

MBE, WBE, and SBE Subcontractor MBE / WBE 

/ SBE 

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT AMOUNT PAID TO DATE 

    

DESCRIPTION OF 
WORK/SERVICES AND/OR 

GOODS PROVIDED. BE 
SPECIFIC. 

 



970017.1  

Page 2 of 2 

MBE, WBE, and SBE Subcontractor MBE / WBE 

/ SBE 

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT AMOUNT PAID TO DATE 

    

DESCRIPTION OF 
WORK/SERVICES AND/OR 

GOODS PROVIDED. BE 
SPECIFIC. 

 

 

 
MBE, WBE, and SBE Subcontractor MBE / WBE 

/ SBE 

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT AMOUNT PAID TO DATE 

    

DESCRIPTION OF 
WORK/SERVICES AND/OR 

GOODS PROVIDED. BE 
SPECIFIC. 

 

 

I DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE AND AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY THAT THE CONTENTS OF 

THIS DOCUMENT ARE TRUE AND CORRECT, AND THAT I AM AUTHORIZED TO MAKE THIS AFFIDAVIT. I 

CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE NAMED FIRMS WERE AWARDED CONTRACT(S), PERFORMED THE WORK WITH 

THEIR OWN FORCES, AMOUNTS LISTED ARE ACCURATE AND PAYMENTS WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS. CANCELLED CHECKS AND/OR SUPPORTING INFORMATION WILL BE 

ON FILE FOR INSPECTION OR AUDIT. 

 

Name of Affiant:     

Title:  

Signature:       
(Signature of Affiant) 

 

 

Date:    

State of   County (City) of       

 

This instrument was SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO before me on    
 
 

Signature of Notary Public 



970017.1  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 9 
 

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN, INSPECTION LOG 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT 10 
 

PROJECT SITE PROPERTY INTEREST DOCUMENTS OR AFFIDAVIT 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1  

 



970017.1 
 



988012.1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R-_  -21 
 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 

LITE SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH 

AMERICAN COMPUTER & COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

FOR THE TELE TICKET LITE J.U.L.I.E. SOFTWARE FOR 

THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, ILLINOIS 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park (the "Village") currently operates the Tele Ticket 

Lite J.U.L.I.E. Software; and 

WHEREAS, the Village desires to contract for continued maintenance of the Tele Ticket 

Lite J.U.L.I.E. Software necessary for the Village to perform essential governmental functions; 

and 

WHEREAS, in the opinion of a majority of the corporate authorities of the Village, it is 

advisable, necessary and in the public interest that the Village waive newspaper advertisement for 

bids, waive the procedure prescribed for the submission of competitive bids and solicit proposals 

in the open market for continued services and support for the Tele Ticket Lite J.U.L.I.E. Software; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Village has received a satisfactory proposal for continued services and 

support for the Tele Ticket Lite J.U.L.I.E. Software from American Computer & Communications, 

Inc. (“ACC”), and has negotiated a satisfactory Licensed Software Maintenance Agreement 

between the Village of Forest Park, Illinois, and ACC for the continued services and support for 

the Tele Ticket Lite J.U.L.I.E. Software (the “Agreement”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Village Council of the 

Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1: The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Resolution are found 

to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

Section 2: It is hereby determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest 

that the Village waive newspaper advertisement for bids, waive the procedure prescribed for the 

submission of competitive bids and solicit proposals in the open market for the purchase of and 

negotiate a satisfactory Agreement with ACC to be therein described on the terms and conditions 

therein provided. 



988012.1 
 

Section 3: The Village hereby approves the Agreement with ACC substantially in the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit A, with such insertions, omissions and changes as shall be approved by 

the Village as may be necessary and proper to carry out, give effect to and consummate the 

transactions contemplated herein the execution of such documents being conclusive evidence of 

such approval and subject to ACC executing and providing the Village the Certification attached 

hereto as Exhibit B. 

Section 4: The officers and employees of the Village shall take all action necessary or 

reasonably required by the parties to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions 

contemplated hereby and to take all action necessary in conformity therewith, including, without 

limitation, the execution and delivery of any documents required to be delivered in connection 

with the Agreement 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 26th day 

of April, 2021. 

 

AYES:     
 

NAYS:     
 

ABSENT:     
 

APPROVED by me this 26th  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 

 
 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 

and published in pamphlet form 

this  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 

 
 

Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



988012.1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LICENSED SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE RENEWAL AGREEMENT 

WITH AMERICAN COMPUTER & COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

FOR THE TELE TICKET LITE J.U.L.I.E. SOFTWARE 

FOR THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, ILLINOIS 



988012.1 
 

 



988012.1 
 

 



988012.1 
 

 



988012.1 
 

 



988012.1 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

This Certification to the Village of Forest Park (“Village”),  dated April  , 2021, is made 

by American Computer & Communications, Inc. (“Contractor”), and supplements that certain 

Maintenance Agreement, effective April 1, 2021 through March 31, 2022, by and between the 

Village and Contractor, as follows: 

 

1. The Contractor represents and warrants to the Village that neither it nor any of its 

principals, shareholders, members, partners, or affiliates, as applicable, is a person or entity 

named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person (as defined in Presidential 

Executive Order 13224) and that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of 

a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person. The Contractor further represents 

and warrants to the Village that the Contractor and its principals, shareholders, members, 

partners, or affiliates, as applicable, are not, directly or indirectly, engaged in, and are not 

facilitating, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement on behalf of any person or 

entity named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person. The Contractor 

hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Village, the Corporate 

Authorities, and all Village elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, 

representatives, contractors, and attorneys, from and against any and all claims, damages, 

losses, risks, liabilities, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) 

arising from and related to any breach of the foregoing representations and warranties. 

 

2. The Contractor certifies that the Contractor, its shareholders holding more than five percent 

(5%) of the outstanding shares of the Contractor, its officers and directors are: 

 

a. not delinquent in the payment of taxes to the Illinois Department of Revenue in 

accordance with 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1; 

 

b. in compliance with equal employment opportunities and that during the performance 

of the Agreement. In addition to the terms provided in the Agreement, the Contractor 

shall: 

 

(1) Not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

because of race, color, religion, sex, marital status, national origin or 

ancestry, age, physical or mental handicap unrelated to ability, or an 

unfavorable discharge from military service; and further that it will examine 

all job classifications to determine if minority persons or women are 

underutilized and will take appropriate affirmative action to rectify any such 

underutilization. 

 

(2) If it hires additional employees in order to perform this Agreement or any 

portion hereof, it will determine the availability (in accordance with the 

Illinois Department of Human Right’s Rules and Regulations) of minorities 

and women in the area(s) from which it may reasonably recruit and it  will 



988012.1 
 

hire for each job classification for which employees are hired in such a way 

that minorities and women are not underutilized. 

 

(3) In all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it or on its 

behalf, it will state that all applicants will be afforded equal opportunity 

without discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex, marital status, 

national origin or ancestry, age, physical or mental handicap unrelated to 

ability, or an unfavorable discharge from military service. 

 

(4) Send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which it 

has or is bound by a collective bargaining or other agreement or 

understanding, a notice advising such labor organization or representative 

of the Contractor’s obligations under the Illinois Human Rights Act and the 

Department’s Rules and Regulations. If any such labor organization or 

representative fails or refuses to cooperate with the Contractor in its efforts 

to comply with such Act and Rules and Regulations, the Contractor will 

promptly so notify the Illinois Department of Human Rights and the Village 

and will recruit employees from other sources when necessary to fulfill its 

obligations thereunder. 

 

(5) Submit reports as required by the Illinois Department of Human Rights, 

Rules and Regulations, furnish all relevant information as may from time to 

time be requested by the Department or the contracting agency, and in all 

respects comply with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the Department’s 

Rules and Regulations. 

 

(6) Permit access to all relevant books, records, accounts, and work sites by 

personnel of the contracting agency and the Illinois Department of Human 

Rights for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the Illinois 

Human Rights Act and the Department’s Rules and Regulations. 

 

(7) Not maintain or provide for its employees any segregated facilities at any 

of its establishments, and not permit its employees to perform their services 

at any location, under its control, where segregated facilities are maintained. 

As used in this section, the term “segregated facilities” means any waiting 

rooms, work areas, restrooms and washrooms, restaurants and other eating 

areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking 

lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, 

and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by 

explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, creed, color, 

or national origin because of habit, local custom, or otherwise. 

 

c. in compliance with 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4)by having in place and enforcing a 

written sexual harassment policy. 



988012.1 
 

d. in agreement that in the event of non-compliance with the provisions of this 

certification relating to equal employment opportunity, the Illinois Human Rights 

Act or the Illinois Department of Human Rights, Rules and Regulations, the 

Contractor may be declared ineligible for future Agreements with the Village, and 

this Agreement may be canceled or voided in whole or in part, and such other 

sanctions or penalties may be imposed or remedies invoked as provided by statute 

or regulation. 

 

e. in compliance with 30 ILCS 580/1 et. seq. (Drug Free Workplace Act) by providing 

a drug-free workplace by: 

 

(1) Publishing a statement: 

 

(a) Notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, 

distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled 

substance, including cannabis, is prohibited in the 

Contractor’s workplace. 

 

(b) Specifying the actions that will be taken against employees 

for violations of such prohibition. 

 

(c) Notifying the employee that, as a condition of employment 

on such Contact, the employee will: 

 

(i) abide by the terms of the statement; and 

(ii) notify the employer of any criminal drug statute 

conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace 

no later than five (5) days after such conviction. 

 

(2) Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees 

about: 

 

(a) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

 

(b) the Contractor’s policy of maintaining a drug-free 

workplace; 

 

(c) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee 

assistance program; and 

 

(d) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug 

violations. 

 

(3) Making it a requirement to give a copy of the statement required by 

subparagraph 3.e.(1) to each employee engaged in the performance 



988012.1 
 

of the Agreement, and to post the statement in a prominent place in 

the workplace. 

 

(4) Notifying the Village within ten (10) days after receiving notice 

under Subparagraph 3.e.(1)(c) (ii) from any employee or otherwise 

receiving actual notice of such conviction. 

 

(5) Imposing a sanction on, or requiring the satisfactory participation in 

a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee 

who is so convicted, as required by 30 ILCS 580/5. 

 

(6) Assisting employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug 

counseling treatment and rehabilitation is required and indicating 

that a trained referral team is in place. 

 

(7) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free 

workplace through implementation of this section. 

 

3. Contractor certifies that no officer or employee of the Village has solicited any gratuity, 

discount, entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible or intangible item 

having monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, food and drink, and honoraria 

for speaking engagements related to or attributable to the government employment or the 

official position of the employee or officer from the Contractor in violation of Chapter 7 

of the Village Code of the Village of Forest Park pursuant to the requirements of Article 

10 of the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act. 

 

4. Contractor certifies that Contractor has not given to any officer or employee of the Village 

any gratuity, discount, entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible or 

intangible item having monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, food and drink, 

and honoraria for speaking engagements related to or attributable to the government 

employment or the official position of the employee or officer from the Contractor in 

violation of Chapter 7 of the Village Code of the Village of Forest Park pursuant to the 

requirements of Article 10 of the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed. 

AMERICAN COMPUTER & COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

 
 

By:_  

Name:   

Title:    



 

 
 

Whereas, In 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of Agriculture that a special 

day be set aside for the planting of trees, and 

Whereas, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more than a million 

trees in Nebraska, and 

Whereas, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 

Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, cut heating and 

cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce life-giving oxygen, and 

provide habitat for wildlife, and 

Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel for our fires 

and countless other wood products, and 

Whereas, trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of business 

areas, and beautify our community, and 

Whereas, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual renewal. 

 

 
Now, Therefore, I   , Mayor of the City of 

  , do hereby proclaim 

  , as 
 

In the City of  , and I urge all citizens to celebrate 

Arbor Day and to support efforts to protect our trees and woodlands, and 

Further, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-being of this and 

future generations. 

 

 
Dated this   day of  . 

 

 

Mayor  _ 

Rory E. Hoskins 



987948-1  

RESOLUTION NO. R-  -21 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF THE 

CONTRACT FOR THE 2020 WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT AND 

RESURFACING PROJECT FOR THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

(7700 Block Monroe and 400-600 Blocks Thomas) 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park has advertised for bids for the 2020 Watermain 

Replacement and Resurfacing Project ("Project"); and 

WHEREAS, on April 7, 2021 at 10:00 A.M. the bid results were publicly opened, read 

aloud and the following seven (7) bids were received and reviewed by the Village staff and 

Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd.: 

 COMPANY BID 

- ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE $1,361,755.10 

1 Uno Construction Co. $1,096,000.63 

2 Suburban General Construction, Inc. $1,148,353.62 

3 Gerardi Sewer & Water Co. $1,157,239.47 

4 Unique Plumbing Co. $1,271,996.61 

5 Chicagoland Paving Contractors, Inc. $1,305,000.00 

6 H. Linden & Sons Sewer and Water, Inc. $1,318,144.26 

7 Swallow Construction $1,397,952.51 
 

WHEREAS, Uno Construction Co. was the apparent low bidder and provided the correct 

forms required, including its bid bond and specifications; and 

WHEREAS, the bid documents have been reviewed by Christopher B. Burke Engineering, 

Ltd., the Village Engineers, who have determined Uno Construction Co. to be a responsible bidder 

and have recommended to the Village Council that the award of the contract for the Project be 

made to Uno Construction Co. for their bid in the amount of $1,096,000.63; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the Village of Forest Park have determined that it 

is in the best interest of the Village to award the contract for the Project be made to the lowest 

bidder, Uno Construction Co. for their bid in the amount of $1,096,000.63; and 



987948-1  

WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Mayor of the Village of Forest Park execute and file 

the appropriate documents and sign any and all documents necessary for the awarding of the 

contract and that the Village Clerk attest to the Mayor’s signature on said documents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1.  The Council of the Village of Forest Park finds that it is in the best interest of 
 

the Village to award the contract for the Project to the lowest bidder, Uno Construction Co. for 

their bid in the amount of $1,096,000.63. 

Section 2. The  Mayor  and  the  Village  Clerk  are  hereby authorized  and  directed to 
 

execute and attest, respectively, any and all documents necessary to award the contract for the 

Project to the lowest bidder, Uno Construction Co., for their bid in the amount of $1,096,000.63. 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 26th 

day of April, 2021. 
 

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT:      
 

APPROVED by me this 26th  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 

and published in pamphlet form 

this  day of April, 2021. 
 

 

 
Vanessa Moritz, Village Clerk 



 

 

CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD. 
9575 W Higgins Road, Suite 600 Rosemont, Illinois 60018-4920 Tel (847) 823-0500 Fax (847) 823-0520 

April 7, 2021 

 
 

Village of Forest Park 
517 Desplaines Avenue 
Forest Park, Illinois 60130 

Attention: Tim Gillian – Village Administrator 

Subject: 2020 Watermain and Resurfacing Project 
Bid Results / Recommendation of Award 
(CBBEL Project No. 00-23BG094) 

 

Dear Mr. Gillian: 
 

On Wednesday April 7, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. bids were received at the Village of Forest Park, 
Village Hall and opened for the 2020 Watermain and Resurfacing Project. Seven (7) bids were 
received for this project. The bids have been reviewed and tabulated and are as follows. 

 
 COMPANY BID 

- ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE $ 1,361,755.10 
1 Uno Construction Co. $ 1,096,000.63 

2 Suburban General Construction, Inc. $ 1,148,353.62 

3 Gerardi Sewer & Water Co. $ 1,157,239.47 

4 Unique Plumbing Co. $ 1,271,996.61* 

5 Chicagoland Paving Contractors, Inc. $ 1,305,000.00 

6 H. Linden & Sons Sewer and Water, Inc. $ 1,318,144.26 

7 Swallow Construction $ 1,397,952.51 
*indicates corrected by CBBEL 

 

Uno Construction Co. is the low bidder with a bid of $1,096,000.63. We have reviewed their 
bid document and find it to be in order. The Village and CBBEL have worked with Uno 
Construction Co. previously and they appear qualified to perform this work. 

 

Based  on  Uno  Construction  Co.  pricing,  we  estimate  the following  funding breakdown: 
$414,939.88 MFT, and $681,060.75 Water Fund. Enclosed for your review is the bid 
tabulation. If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
James F. Amelio, PE 
Senior Project Manager 

cc: John Doss – Village of Forest Park 

 

 
N:\FORESTPARK\0023\BG094\Admin\L1.Recommendation of Award.2020 Forest Park Watermain and Resurfacing.040721.doc 



1 of 2 N:\FORESTPARK\0023\BG094\Civil\Spreadsheets\BG094_2021LETBidTab.xlsx Printed 4/7/2021 

 

Village of Forest Park 
2020 Watermain and Resurfacing Project 

BID TABULATION 

Tuesday April 5, 2021, 10:00 AM 

PREPARED BY: CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING 

 
 

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE 

Uno Construction Co. 
 

6037 Brookbank Road 

Downers Grove, IL 60516 

Bid Bond: YES 

Planholder: YES 

Suburban General 

Construction, Inc. 

1019 E. 31st Street 

La Grange Park, IL 60526 

Bid Bond: YES 

Planholder: YES 

Gerardi Sewer & Water 

Co. 

1785 Armitage Court 

Addison, IL60101 

Bid Bond: YES 

Planholder: YES 

Unique Plumbing Co. 
 

9408 W. 47th Street 

Brookfield, IL 60513 

Bid Bond: YES 
Planholder: YES 

Chicagoland Paving 

Contractors, Inc. 

225 Telser Road 

Lake Zurich, IL 60047 

Bid Bond: YES 
Planholder: YES 

H. Linden & Sons Sewer 

and Water, Inc. 

722 E. South Street, Unit D 

Plano, IL 60545 

Bid Bond: YES 
Planholder: YES 

Swallow Construction 
 

4250 Lacey 

Downers Grove, IL 60515 

Bid Bond: YES 

Planholder: YES 

Item Description Unit Quantity  Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost  

1 TREE REMOVAL (6 TO 15 UNITS DIAMETER) UNIT 45 $ 40.00 $ 1,800.00 $ 46.75 $ 2,103.75 $ 100.00 $ 4,500.00 $ 46.75 $ 2,103.75 $ 108.00 $ 4,860.00 $ 110.00 $ 4,950.00 $ 20.00 $ 900.00 $ 100.00 $ 4,500.00 

2 TREE TRUNK PROTECTION EACH 10 $ 200.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 100.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 125.00 $ 1,250.00 $ 100.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 135.00 $ 1,350.00 $ 140.00 $ 1,400.00 $ 100.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 32.00 $ 320.00 

3 TREE ROOT PRUNING EACH 59 $ 125.00 $ 7,375.00 $ 100.00 $ 5,900.00 $ 100.00 $ 5,900.00 $ 100.00 $ 5,900.00 $ 108.00 $ 6,372.00 $ 110.00 $ 6,490.00 $ 110.00 $ 6,490.00 $ 100.00 $ 5,900.00 

4 TRENCH BACKFILL CU YD 1760 $ 35.00 $ 61,600.00 $ 27.00 $ 47,520.00 $ 0.01 $ 17.60 $ 20.00 $ 35,200.00 $ 40.20 $ 70,752.00 $ 25.75 $ 45,320.00 $ 35.00 $ 61,600.00 $ 37.00 $ 65,120.00 

5 TOPSOIL FURNISH AND PLACE, 4" SQ YD 3554 $ 10.00 $ 35,540.00 $ 5.38 $ 19,120.52 $ 6.00 $ 21,324.00 $ 5.00 $ 17,770.00 $ 6.50 $ 23,101.00 $ 5.30 $ 18,836.20 $ 4.00 $ 14,216.00 $ 5.00 $ 17,770.00 

6 SEEDING, CLASS 1A ACRE 1 $     5,000.00 $ 3,700.00 $     1,352.00 $ 1,000.48 $     7,000.00 $ 5,180.00 $   10,000.00 $ 7,400.00 $     3,200.00 $ 2,368.00 $     2,450.00 $ 1,813.00 $     5,000.00 $ 3,700.00 $     2,300.00 $ 1,702.00 

7 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET SQ YD 3554 $ 5.00 $ 17,770.00 $ 1.13 $ 4,016.02 $ 2.00 $ 7,108.00 $ 2.00 $ 7,108.00 $ 2.45 $ 8,707.30 $ 1.10 $ 3,909.40 $ 3.00 $ 10,662.00 $ 1.00 $ 3,554.00 

8 SODDING, SALT TOLERANT SQ YD 1726 $ 10.00 $ 17,260.00 $ 8.00 $ 13,808.00 $ 6.00 $ 10,356.00 $ 8.00 $ 13,808.00 $ 16.20 $ 27,961.20 $ 14.00 $ 24,164.00 $ 10.00 $ 17,260.00 $ 11.00 $ 18,986.00 

9 SUPPLEMENTAL WATERING UNIT 15 $ 40.00 $ 600.00 $ 50.00 $ 750.00 $ 1.00 $ 15.00 $ 1.00 $ 15.00 $ 27.00 $ 405.00 $ 0.01 $ 0.15 $ 1.00 $ 15.00 $ 100.00 $ 1,500.00 

10 INLET FILTERS EACH 37 $ 125.00 $ 4,625.00 $ 20.00 $ 740.00 $ 75.00 $ 2,775.00 $ 10.00 $ 370.00 $ 105.00 $ 3,885.00 $ 150.00 $ 5,550.00 $ 140.00 $ 5,180.00 $ 118.50 $ 4,384.50 

11 AGGREGATE FOR TEMPORARY ACCESS TON 80 $ 20.00 $ 1,600.00 $ 15.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 15.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 20.00 $ 1,600.00 $ 16.20 $ 1,296.00 $ 20.00 $ 1,600.00 $ 24.00 $ 1,920.00 $ 52.00 $ 4,160.00 

12 BITUMINOUS MATERIALS (TACK COAT) POUND 5426 $ 0.10 $ 542.60 $ 0.01 $ 54.26 $ 0.01 $ 54.26 $ 0.01 $ 54.26 $ 0.01 $ 54.26 $ 0.01 $ 54.26 $ 0.01 $ 54.26 $ 0.01 $ 54.26 

13 POLYMERIZED LEVELING BINDER (MACHINE METHOD), N50 TON 332 $ 100.00 $ 33,200.00 $ 113.25 $ 37,599.00 $ 113.25 $ 37,599.00 $ 98.75 $ 32,785.00 $ 106.65 $ 35,407.80 $ 100.00 $ 33,200.00 $ 106.00 $ 35,192.00 $ 99.00 $ 32,868.00 

14 HOT-MIX ASPHALT SURFACE REMOVAL - BUTT JOINT SQ YD 129 $ 8.00 $ 1,032.00 $ 6.50 $ 838.50 $ 6.50 $ 838.50 $ 15.00 $ 1,935.00 $ 13.00 $ 1,677.00 $ 10.00 $ 1,290.00 $ 7.00 $ 903.00 $ 15.00 $ 1,935.00 

15 HOT-MIX ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE, MIX "D", N50 TON 663 $ 90.00 $ 59,670.00 $ 76.00 $ 50,388.00 $ 76.00 $ 50,388.00 $ 85.50 $ 56,686.50 $ 90.70 $ 60,134.10 $ 90.00 $ 59,670.00 $ 85.00 $ 56,355.00 $ 86.00 $ 57,018.00 

16 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT, 6 INCH SQ YD 50 $ 70.00 $ 3,500.00 $ 50.00 $ 2,500.00 $ 50.00 $ 2,500.00 $ 50.00 $ 2,500.00 $ 60.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 72.50 $ 3,625.00 $ 75.00 $ 3,750.00 $ 56.25 $ 2,812.50 

17 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT, 8 INCH SQ YD 20 $ 80.00 $ 1,600.00 $ 52.00 $ 1,040.00 $ 52.00 $ 1,040.00 $ 52.00 $ 1,040.00 $ 62.20 $ 1,244.00 $ 94.00 $ 1,880.00 $ 95.00 $ 1,900.00 $ 58.25 $ 1,165.00 

18 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5 INCH SQ FT 6700 $ 7.00 $ 46,900.00 $ 6.50 $ 43,550.00 $ 6.50 $ 43,550.00 $ 6.50 $ 43,550.00 $ 8.00 $ 53,600.00 $ 7.00 $ 46,900.00 $ 7.00 $ 46,900.00 $ 8.00 $ 53,600.00 

19 DETECTABLE WARNINGS SQ FT 168 $ 35.00 $ 5,880.00 $ 29.50 $ 4,956.00 $ 29.50 $ 4,956.00 $ 29.50 $ 4,956.00 $ 32.00 $ 5,376.00 $ 23.85 $ 4,006.80 $ 28.00 $ 4,704.00 $ 34.00 $ 5,712.00 

20 HOT-MIX ASPHALT SURFACE REMOVAL, 2 1/4" SQ YD 7654 $ 4.00 $ 30,616.00 $ 2.70 $ 20,665.80 $ 2.70 $ 20,665.80 $ 3.95 $ 30,233.30 $ 4.05 $ 30,998.70 $ 2.50 $ 19,135.00 $ 4.00 $ 30,616.00 $ 5.00 $ 38,270.00 

21 DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT REMOVAL SQ YD 70 $ 15.00 $ 1,050.00 $ 11.00 $ 770.00 $ 11.00 $ 770.00 $ 11.00 $ 770.00 $ 13.00 $ 910.00 $ 15.00 $ 1,050.00 $ 10.00 $ 700.00 $ 22.00 $ 1,540.00 

22 SIDEWALK REMOVAL SQ FT 6700 $ 1.75 $ 11,725.00 $ 0.50 $ 3,350.00 $ 0.50 $ 3,350.00 $ 0.50 $ 3,350.00 $ 0.54 $ 3,618.00 $ 1.00 $ 6,700.00 $ 2.00 $ 13,400.00 $ 0.50 $ 3,350.00 

23 STORM SEWER REMOVAL 6" FOOT 23 $ 15.00 $ 345.00 $ 8.00 $ 184.00 $ 1.00 $ 23.00 $ 3.00 $ 69.00 $ 10.00 $ 230.00 $ 10.30 $ 236.90 $ 1.00 $ 23.00 $ 0.25 $ 5.75 

24 STORM SEWER REMOVAL 8" FOOT 52 $ 15.00 $ 780.00 $ 8.00 $ 416.00 $ 1.00 $ 52.00 $ 4.00 $ 208.00 $ 10.00 $ 520.00 $ 10.30 $ 535.60 $ 1.00 $ 52.00 $ 0.25 $ 13.00 

25 STORM SEWER REMOVAL 10" FOOT 203 $ 17.50 $ 3,552.50 $ 8.00 $ 1,624.00 $ 1.00 $ 203.00 $ 5.00 $ 1,015.00 $ 10.00 $ 2,030.00 $ 12.40 $ 2,517.20 $ 1.00 $ 203.00 $ 0.25 $ 50.75 

26 STORM SEWER REMOVAL 12" FOOT 214 $ 17.50 $ 3,745.00 $ 8.00 $ 1,712.00 $ 1.00 $ 214.00 $ 6.00 $ 1,284.00 $ 10.00 $ 2,140.00 $ 12.40 $ 2,653.60 $ 1.00 $ 214.00 $ 0.25 $ 53.50 

*27 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN 6" FOOT 35 $ 110.00 $ 3,850.00 $ 75.00 $ 2,625.00 $ 100.00 $ 3,500.00 $ 60.00 $ 2,100.00 $ 91.65 $ 3,207.75 $ 97.85 $ 3,424.75 $ 82.00 $ 2,870.00 $ 39.00 $ 1,365.00 

*28 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN 8" FOOT 2005 $ 110.00 $ 220,550.00 $ 95.00 $ 190,475.00 $ 129.00 $ 258,645.00 $ 100.00 $ 200,500.00 $ 92.05 $ 184,560.25 $ 113.30 $ 227,166.50 $ 85.00 $ 170,425.00 $ 80.00 $ 160,400.00 

*29 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN 10" FOOT 15 $ 115.00 $ 1,725.00 $ 125.00 $ 1,875.00 $ 132.00 $ 1,980.00 $ 110.00 $ 1,650.00 $ 109.00 $ 1,635.00 $ 145.00 $ 2,175.00 $ 91.00 $ 1,365.00 $ 55.00 $ 825.00 

*30 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN 12" FOOT 45 $ 125.00 $ 5,625.00 $ 90.00 $ 4,050.00 $ 135.00 $ 6,075.00 $ 120.00 $ 5,400.00 $ 118.60 $ 5,337.00 $ 160.00 $ 7,200.00 $ 104.00 $ 4,680.00 $ 145.00 $ 6,525.00 

*31 WATER VALVES 8" EACH 4 $     3,500.00 $ 14,000.00 $     3,000.00 $ 12,000.00 $     4,250.00 $ 17,000.00 $     2,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $     1,830.00 $ 7,320.00 $     2,320.00 $ 9,280.00 $     2,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $     1,500.00 $ 6,000.00 

*32 ADJUSTING SANITARY SEWERS, 8-INCH DIAMETER OR LESS FOOT 740 $ 30.00 $ 22,200.00 $ 45.00 $ 33,300.00 $ 5.00 $ 3,700.00 $ 20.00 $ 14,800.00 $ 33.40 $ 24,716.00 $ 51.50 $ 38,110.00 $ 125.00 $ 92,500.00 $ 121.00 $ 89,540.00 

*33 FIRE HYDRANT WITH AUXILIARY VALVE AND VALVE BOX EACH 4 $     7,000.00 $ 28,000.00 $     5,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $     8,500.00 $ 34,000.00 $     5,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $     5,500.00 $ 22,000.00 $     6,975.00 $ 27,900.00 $     5,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $     9,500.00 $ 38,000.00 

34 INLETS, TYPE A, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID EACH 2 $     1,500.00 $ 3,000.00 $     1,800.00 $ 3,600.00 $     1,350.00 $ 2,700.00 $     1,575.00 $ 3,150.00 $     1,775.00 $ 3,550.00 $     1,700.00 $ 3,400.00 $     1,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $     1,000.00 $ 2,000.00 

35 FRAMES AND LIDS, TYPE 1, OPEN LID EACH 12 $ 400.00 $ 4,800.00 $ 300.00 $ 3,600.00 $ 250.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 275.00 $ 3,300.00 $ 307.00 $ 3,684.00 $ 670.00 $ 8,040.00 $ 400.00 $ 4,800.00 $ 275.00 $ 3,300.00 

36 FRAMES AND LIDS, TYPE 1, CLOSED LID EACH 16 $ 400.00 $ 6,400.00 $ 300.00 $ 4,800.00 $ 250.00 $ 4,000.00 $ 275.00 $ 4,400.00 $ 307.00 $ 4,912.00 $ 670.00 $ 10,720.00 $ 400.00 $ 6,400.00 $ 275.00 $ 4,400.00 

*37 REMOVE AND REERECT RAIL ELEMENT OF EXISTING GUARDRAILS FOOT 30 $ 50.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 23.00 $ 690.00 $ 25.00 $ 750.00 $ 80.00 $ 2,400.00 $ 110.00 $ 3,300.00 $ 95.00 $ 2,850.00 $ 200.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 8.00 $ 240.00 

38 MOBILIZATION L SUM 1 $   15,000.00 $ 15,000.00 $   20,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $     3,900.00 $ 3,900.00 $   65,000.00 $ 65,000.00 $   23,000.00 $ 23,000.00 $   35,867.84 $ 35,867.84 $   20,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $   50,000.00 $ 50,000.00 

39 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LETTERS AND SYMBOLS SQ FT 6 $ 7.50 $ 45.00 $ 18.00 $ 108.00 $ 18.00 $ 108.00 $ 18.00 $ 108.00 $ 19.45 $ 116.70 $ 11.25 $ 67.50 $ 100.00 $ 600.00 $ 18.00 $ 108.00 

40 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE 4" FOOT 395 $ 1.50 $ 592.50 $ 1.45 $ 572.75 $ 2.00 $ 790.00 $ 1.45 $ 572.75 $ 1.60 $ 632.00 $ 2.25 $ 888.75 $ 3.00 $ 1,185.00 $ 1.50 $ 592.50 

41 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE 6" FOOT 735 $ 2.00 $ 1,470.00 $ 2.25 $ 1,653.75 $ 3.00 $ 2,205.00 $ 2.45 $ 1,800.75 $ 2.65 $ 1,947.75 $ 2.25 $ 1,653.75 $ 4.00 $ 2,940.00 $ 2.50 $ 1,837.50 

42 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE 12" FOOT 530 $ 4.00 $ 2,120.00 $ 4.45 $ 2,358.50 $ 5.00 $ 2,650.00 $ 4.45 $ 2,358.50 $ 4.80 $ 2,544.00 $ 2.35 $ 1,245.50 $ 6.00 $ 3,180.00 $ 4.50 $ 2,385.00 

43 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING - LINE 24" FOOT 103 $ 7.50 $ 772.50 $ 6.75 $ 695.25 $ 7.00 $ 721.00 $ 6.75 $ 695.25 $ 7.30 $ 751.90 $ 9.00 $ 927.00 $ 20.00 $ 2,060.00 $ 6.75 $ 695.25 

*44 PAVEMENT IMPRINTING SQ YD 85 $ 200.00 $ 17,000.00 $ 200.00 $ 17,000.00 $ 145.00 $ 12,325.00 $ 145.00 $ 12,325.00 $ 156.60 $ 13,311.00 $ 156.00 $ 13,260.00 $ 220.00 $ 18,700.00 $ 146.00 $ 12,410.00 

*45 STRUCTURES TO BE ADJUSTED EACH 23 $ 500.00 $ 11,500.00 $ 400.00 $ 9,200.00 $ 750.00 $ 17,250.00 $ 350.00 $ 8,050.00 $ 385.00 $ 8,855.00 $ 695.00 $ 15,985.00 $     1,000.00 $ 23,000.00 $ 292.00 $ 6,716.00 

*46 FIRE HYDRANTS TO BE REMOVED & SALVAGED EACH 5 $     1,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 300.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 100.00 $ 500.00 $ 600.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 570.00 $ 2,850.00 $ 500.00 $ 2,500.00 $ 86.00 $ 430.00 

*47 MANHOLE REMOVAL EACH 5 $ 750.00 $ 3,750.00 $ 200.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 100.00 $ 500.00 $ 300.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 500.00 $ 2,500.00 $ 515.00 $ 2,575.00 $ 400.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 210.00 $ 1,050.00 

*48 EXPLORATION TRENCH (SPECIAL) FOOT 100 $ 10.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 25.00 $ 2,500.00 $ 1.00 $ 100.00 $ 1.00 $ 100.00 $ 20.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 28.00 $ 2,800.00 $ 30.00 $ 3,000.00 $ 24.50 $ 2,450.00 

*49 DUCTILE IRON WATER MAIN FITTINGS POUND 4466 $ 4.00 $ 17,864.00 $ 4.00 $ 17,864.00 $ 0.01 $ 44.66 $ 0.01 $ 44.66 $ 0.05 $ 223.30 $ 3.10 $ 13,844.60 $ 3.00 $ 13,398.00 $ 1.00 $ 4,466.00 

*50 WATER MAIN REMOVAL FOOT 190 $ 50.00 $ 9,500.00 $ 20.00 $ 3,800.00 $ 1.00 $ 190.00 $ 1.00 $ 190.00 $ 15.00 $ 2,850.00 $ 20.60 $ 3,914.00 $ 5.00 $ 950.00 $ 6.50 $ 1,235.00 

*51 CATCH BASINS, TYPE A, 4'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID, SPECIAL EACH 5 $     4,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $     4,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $     3,000.00 $ 15,000.00 $     3,000.00 $ 15,000.00 $     3,750.00 $ 18,750.00 $     5,100.00 $ 25,500.00 $     2,400.00 $ 12,000.00 $     2,750.00 $ 13,750.00 

*52 MANHOLES, SANITARY, 4'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, CLOSED LID EACH 2 $     4,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $     4,500.00 $ 9,000.00 $     3,750.00 $ 7,500.00 $     5,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $     4,500.00 $ 9,000.00 $     7,725.00 $ 15,450.00 $     7,000.00 $ 14,000.00 $     2,600.00 $ 5,200.00 

*53 CATCH BASINS, TYPE C, TYPE 1 FRAME, OPEN LID, SPECIAL EACH 4 $     2,500.00 $ 10,000.00 $     2,200.00 $ 8,800.00 $     1,500.00 $ 6,000.00 $     2,200.00 $ 8,800.00 $     3,500.00 $ 14,000.00 $     2,320.00 $ 9,280.00 $     2,400.00 $ 9,600.00 $     1,500.00 $ 6,000.00 

*54 VALVE VAULTS TO BE REMOVED EACH 5 $ 500.00 $ 2,500.00 $ 200.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 100.00 $ 500.00 $ 275.00 $ 1,375.00 $ 500.00 $ 2,500.00 $ 515.00 $ 2,575.00 $ 400.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 150.00 $ 750.00 



2 of 2 N:\FORESTPARK\0023\BG094\Civil\Spreadsheets\BG094_2021LETBidTab.xlsx Printed 4/7/2021 

 

Village of Forest Park 
2020 Watermain and Resurfacing Project 

BID TABULATION 

Tuesday April 5, 2021, 10:00 AM 

PREPARED BY: CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING 

 
 

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE 

Uno Construction Co. 
 

6037 Brookbank Road 

Downers Grove, IL 60516 

Bid Bond: YES 

Planholder: YES 

Suburban General 

Construction, Inc. 

1019 E. 31st Street 

La Grange Park, IL 60526 

Bid Bond: YES 

Planholder: YES 

Gerardi Sewer & Water 

Co. 

1785 Armitage Court 

Addison, IL60101 

Bid Bond: YES 

Planholder: YES 

Unique Plumbing Co. 
 

9408 W. 47th Street 

Brookfield, IL 60513 

Bid Bond: YES 
Planholder: YES 

Chicagoland Paving 

Contractors, Inc. 

225 Telser Road 

Lake Zurich, IL 60047 

Bid Bond: YES 
Planholder: YES 

H. Linden & Sons Sewer 

and Water, Inc. 

722 E. South Street, Unit D 

Plano, IL 60545 

Bid Bond: YES 
Planholder: YES 

Swallow Construction 
 

4250 Lacey 

Downers Grove, IL 60515 

Bid Bond: YES 

Planholder: YES 

Item Description Unit Quantity  Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost   Unit Price   Unit Cost  

*55 TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION, (SPECIAL) L SUM 1 $  15,000.00 $ 15,000.00 $  25,000.00 $ 25,000.00 $  31,500.00 $ 31,500.00 $  35,000.00 $ 35,000.00 $  22,265.00 $ 22,265.00 $     5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $  30,000.00 $ 30,000.00 $  65,000.00 $ 65,000.00 

*56 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT L SUM 1 $     5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $     6,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $     7,500.00 $ 7,500.00 $     6,500.00 $ 6,500.00 $  15,230.00 $ 15,230.00 $     2,900.00 $ 2,900.00 $  14,000.00 $ 14,000.00 $     9,000.00 $ 9,000.00 

*57 DRAINAGE AND UTILITY STRUCTURES TO BE RECONSTRUCTED (SPECIAL) EACH 10 $     1,750.00 $ 17,500.00 $     1,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $     1,750.00 $ 17,500.00 $     1,750.00 $ 17,500.00 $     1,600.00 $ 16,000.00 $     2,060.00 $ 20,600.00 $     1,300.00 $ 13,000.00 $     1,700.00 $ 17,000.00 

*58 DRAINAGE STRUCTURE TO BE REMOVED EACH 11 $ 500.00 $ 5,500.00 $ 200.00 $ 2,200.00 $ 100.00 $ 1,100.00 $ 200.00 $ 2,200.00 $ 450.00 $ 4,950.00 $ 515.00 $ 5,665.00 $ 300.00 $ 3,300.00 $ 140.00 $ 1,540.00 

*59 STORM SEWER (WATER MAIN REQUIREMENTS) 6 INCH FOOT 23 $ 70.00 $ 1,610.00 $ 90.00 $ 2,070.00 $ 35.00 $ 805.00 $ 40.00 $ 920.00 $ 76.25 $ 1,753.75 $ 51.50 $ 1,184.50 $ 65.00 $ 1,495.00 $ 85.00 $ 1,955.00 

*60 STORM SEWER (WATER MAIN REQUIREMENTS) 8 INCH FOOT 52 $ 75.00 $ 3,900.00 $ 95.00 $ 4,940.00 $ 36.00 $ 1,872.00 $ 50.00 $ 2,600.00 $ 85.00 $ 4,420.00 $ 67.00 $ 3,484.00 $ 71.00 $ 3,692.00 $ 70.00 $ 3,640.00 

*61 STORM SEWER (WATER MAIN REQUIREMENTS) 10 INCH FOOT 203 $ 80.00 $ 16,240.00 $ 55.00 $ 11,165.00 $ 37.00 $ 7,511.00 $ 60.00 $ 12,180.00 $ 89.40 $ 18,148.20 $ 81.40 $ 16,524.20 $ 73.00 $ 14,819.00 $ 110.00 $ 22,330.00 

*62 STORM SEWER (WATER MAIN REQUIREMENTS) 12 INCH FOOT 214 $ 85.00 $ 18,190.00 $ 65.00 $ 13,910.00 $ 40.00 $ 8,560.00 $ 70.00 $ 14,980.00 $ 97.45 $ 20,854.30 $ 92.75 $ 19,848.50 $ 75.00 $ 16,050.00 $ 100.00 $ 21,400.00 

*63 SEWER CLEANING AND TELEVISING, 12" FOOT 3161 $ 8.00 $ 25,288.00 $ 2.25 $ 7,112.25 $ 3.00 $ 9,483.00 $ 2.50 $ 7,902.50 $ 2.45 $ 7,744.45 $ 4.00 $ 12,644.00 $ 5.00 $ 15,805.00 $ 3.00 $ 9,483.00 

*64 SEWER CLEANING AND TELEVISION, 10" FOOT 300 $ 8.00 $ 2,400.00 $ 2.25 $ 675.00 $ 3.00 $ 900.00 $ 2.50 $ 750.00 $ 2.45 $ 735.00 $ 5.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 5.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 3.00 $ 900.00 

*65 SEWER CLEANING AND TELEVISING, 8" FOOT 145 $ 8.00 $ 1,160.00 $ 2.25 $ 326.25 $ 3.00 $ 435.00 $ 2.50 $ 362.50 $ 2.45 $ 355.25 $ 5.00 $ 725.00 $ 5.00 $ 725.00 $ 3.00 $ 435.00 

*66 CLASS D PATCHES, 6 INCH (SPECIAL) SQ YD 1446 $ 45.00 $ 65,070.00 $ 36.30 $ 52,489.80 $ 36.30 $ 52,489.80 $ 50.00 $ 72,300.00 $ 39.20 $ 56,683.20 $ 40.00 $ 57,840.00 $ 43.00 $ 62,178.00 $ 55.00 $ 79,530.00 

*67 COMBINATION CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT ( FOOT 2155 $ 35.00 $ 75,425.00 $ 26.25 $ 56,568.75 $ 27.00 $ 58,185.00 $ 26.25 $ 56,568.75 $ 30.35 $ 65,404.25 $ 28.50 $ 61,417.50 $ 28.00 $ 60,340.00 $ 35.00 $ 75,425.00 

*68 STRUCTURES TO BE ADJUSTED (SPECIAL) EACH 21 $     1,000.00 $ 21,000.00 $ 800.00 $ 16,800.00 $     1,100.00 $ 23,100.00 $ 900.00 $ 18,900.00 $ 600.00 $ 12,600.00 $ 980.00 $ 20,580.00 $     1,000.00 $ 21,000.00 $     1,300.00 $ 27,300.00 

*69 PRECONSTRUCTION VIDEO (SPECIAL) LSUM 1 $     2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 $     3,485.00 $ 3,485.00 $     1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 $     1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $     1,620.00 $ 1,620.00 $     1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $     2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $     5,500.00 $ 5,500.00 

*70 ITEMS ORDERED BY ENGINEER DOLLAR 25000 $ 1.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 1.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 1.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 1.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 1.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 1.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 1.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 1.00 $ 25,000.00 

*71 SHRUB EACH 4 $     1,000.00 $ 4,000.00 $ 40.00 $ 160.00 $ 250.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 80.00 $ 320.00 $ 270.00 $ 1,080.00 $ 100.00 $ 400.00 $ 300.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 75.00 $ 300.00 

*72 PLUG AND BLOCK WATER MAIN (SPECIAL) EACH 6 $     1,500.00 $ 9,000.00 $     1,200.00 $ 7,200.00 $     1,500.00 $ 9,000.00 $     1,575.00 $ 9,450.00 $     1,800.00 $ 10,800.00 $     1,290.00 $ 7,740.00 $     1,200.00 $ 7,200.00 $     1,500.00 $ 9,000.00 

*73 PRESSURE CONNECTION, 10" X 8" EACH 1 $     7,500.00 $ 7,500.00 $     4,200.00 $ 4,200.00 $     3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 $     5,750.00 $ 5,750.00 $     5,100.00 $ 5,100.00 $   10,300.00 $ 10,300.00 $     6,500.00 $ 6,500.00 $     9,000.00 $ 9,000.00 

*74 PRESSURE CONNECTION, 12" X 8" EACH 1 $     9,500.00 $ 9,500.00 $     4,215.00 $ 4,215.00 $     3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 $     5,850.00 $ 5,850.00 $     5,255.00 $ 5,255.00 $   12,360.00 $ 12,360.00 $   10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $   10,000.00 $ 10,000.00 

*75 NON-PRESSURE CONNECTION TO EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN EACH 2 $     5,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $     2,000.00 $ 4,000.00 $     3,500.00 $ 7,000.00 $     3,750.00 $ 7,500.00 $     4,800.00 $ 9,600.00 $     4,635.00 $ 9,270.00 $     3,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $     6,000.00 $ 12,000.00 

*76 NON-PRESSURE CONNECTION TO EXISTING 12" WATER MAIN EACH 2 $     6,000.00 $ 12,000.00 $     3,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $     3,500.00 $ 7,000.00 $     4,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $     4,800.00 $ 9,600.00 $     6,130.00 $ 12,260.00 $     4,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $     7,000.00 $ 14,000.00 

*77 PVC C-900 CASING, 16" FOOT 26 $ 200.00 $ 5,200.00 $ 85.00 $ 2,210.00 $ 100.00 $ 2,600.00 $ 100.00 $ 2,600.00 $ 82.20 $ 2,137.20 $ 200.00 $ 5,200.00 $ 103.00 $ 2,678.00 $ 75.00 $ 1,950.00 

*78 VALVE VAULTS, TYPE A, 4'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, CLOSED LID, SPECIAL EACH 4 $     4,000.00 $ 16,000.00 $     3,800.00 $ 15,200.00 $     2,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $     2,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $     2,900.00 $ 11,600.00 $     2,525.00 $ 10,100.00 $     2,400.00 $ 9,600.00 $     1,800.00 $ 7,200.00 

*79 VALVE VAULTS, TYPE A, 5'-DIAMETER, TYPE 1 FRAME, CLOSED LID, SPECIAL EACH 2 $     4,500.00 $ 9,000.00 $     4,000.00 $ 8,000.00 $     3,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $     2,600.00 $ 5,200.00 $     3,400.00 $ 6,800.00 $     2,935.00 $ 5,870.00 $     3,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $     2,000.00 $ 4,000.00 

*80 WATER SERVICE REPLACEMENT, WITH NEW BUFFALO BOX, LONG SIDE - 1" EACH 40 $     2,500.00 $ 100,000.00 $     2,000.00 $ 80,000.00 $     3,000.00 $ 120,000.00 $     2,400.00 $ 96,000.00 $     3,300.00 $ 132,000.00 $     2,475.00 $ 99,000.00 $     3,000.00 $ 120,000.00 $     3,200.00 $ 128,000.00 

*81 WATER SERVICE REPLACEMENT, WITH NEW BUFFALO BOX, LONG SIDE - 2" EACH 2 $     3,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $     2,000.00 $ 4,000.00 $     6,750.00 $ 13,500.00 $     4,175.00 $ 8,350.00 $     1,225.00 $ 2,450.00 $     4,635.00 $ 9,270.00 $     5,000.00 $ 10,000.00 $     5,000.00 $ 10,000.00 

*82 WATER SERVICE REPLACEMENT, WITH NEW BUFFALO BOX, SHORT SIDE - 1" EACH 35 $     2,000.00 $ 70,000.00 $     1,600.00 $ 56,000.00 $     2,260.00 $ 79,100.00 $     1,450.00 $ 50,750.00 $     2,010.00 $ 70,350.00 $     2,010.00 $ 70,350.00 $     2,000.00 $ 70,000.00 $     2,000.00 $ 70,000.00 

*83 WATER SERVICE REPLACEMENT, WITH NEW BUFFALO BOX, SHORT SIDE - 1.5" EACH 1 $     2,500.00 $ 2,500.00 $     2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $     3,500.00 $ 3,500.00 $     2,175.00 $ 2,175.00 $     3,800.00 $ 3,800.00 $     3,100.00 $ 3,100.00 $     3,000.00 $ 3,000.00 $     2,700.00 $ 2,700.00 

*84 WATER SERVICE REPLACEMENT, WITH NEW BUFFALO BOX, SHORT SIDE - 2" EACH 1 $     3,000.00 $ 3,000.00 $     2,200.00 $ 2,200.00 $     5,500.00 $ 5,500.00 $     2,800.00 $ 2,800.00 $     4,660.00 $ 4,660.00 $     4,330.00 $ 4,330.00 $     4,000.00 $ 4,000.00 $     5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 

*85 WATER VALVE TO BE REMOVED AND SALVAGED (SPECIAL) EACH 1 $     1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 $     2,000.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 250.00 $ 250.00 $ 500.00 $ 500.00 $ 800.00 $ 800.00 $     3,100.00 $ 3,100.00 $     1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 350.00 $ 350.00 

AS-READ TOTAL: 

CALCULATED TOTAL: 

 $ 1,096,000.63 $ 1,148,353.62 $ 1,157,239.47 $ 1,271,998.61 $ 1,305,000.00 $ 1,318,144.26 $ 1,397,952.51 

$ 1,361,755.10 $ 1,096,000.63 $ 1,148,353.62 $ 1,157,239.47 $ 1,271,996.61 $ 1,305,000.00 $ 1,318,144.26 $ 1,397,952.51 



 

 
 

Whereas, In 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the 

planting of trees, and 

Whereas, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more than a million trees in Nebraska, and 

Whereas, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 

Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and water, cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the 

temperature, clean the air, produce life-giving oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife, and 

Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel for our fires and countless other wood 

products, and 

Whereas, trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of business areas, and beautify our 

community, and 

Whereas, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual renewal. 

 

 
Now, Therefore, I   , Mayor of the City of 

  , do hereby proclaim 

  , as 
 

In the City of  , and I urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support 

efforts to protect our trees and woodlands, and 

Further, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-being of this and future generations. 

 

 
Dated this   day of  . 

 

 

Mayor  _ 

Rory E. Hoskins 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR – RORY E. HOSKINS 

 

 

 

 
 

To: The Honorable Commissioners 

Date: April 21, 2021 

 

Dear Commissioners, 

I am seeking your support in the reappointment of Steve Rummel to fill a vacancy on the 

Police Pension Board.  His application and resume is attached for your review: 

 

Your favorable support would be appreciated. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
517 Desplaines Avenue, Forest Park, IL 60130 – 708.615.6200 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 


